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25 September 2013

Dear Securityholder

DUET Group (DUET) 2013 Annual Report

| am pleased to enclose with this letter DUET’s annual report for the year ended 30 June
2013.

The annual report provides details of our activities during the year, an update on our
operating companies, and DUET’s financial report. With the successful internalisation of
DUET's management arrangements in December 2012, the report also details DUET's new
governance arrangements.

All DUET's financial reports and other investor reports can also be accessed online at
www.duet.net.au.

Your security holder communications — elect for electronic delivery

We encourage you to elect to receive DUET’s annual report and all other communications
from DUET electronically. To do so please visit www.investorcentre.com/au.

Once you have logged in (or registered if this will be your first visit to the site), please go to
‘Update my details’ and select ‘Communication options’. You will then be able to elect to
receive electronic communications, including electronic delivery of DUET’s reports, which will
benefit the environment and reduce costs to DUET’s securityholders.

We hope that you find the enclosed annual report informative.

Thank you for your continuing support of DUET.

David Bartholomew
Chief Executive Officer
DUET Group






CONTENTS KEY FACTS

NUMBER OF SECURITYHOLDERS TOTAL ASSETS (100% CONSOLIDATED BASIS)

18,435 $8 o1b

AVERAGE MARKET CAPITALISATION OVER FY2013

$2.5b
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DUET ABOUT

BUSINESSES DUET
DIVERSIFIED ACROSS ENERGY REGULATED AND CONTRACTED
SOURCE AND GEOGRAPHIC REGION REVENUE PROVIDING
PREDICTABLE CASH FLOW
EBITDA MIX AT 30 JUNE 2013'

@® Dampier Bunbury Pipeline (DBP)

@ United Energy (UE)
@® Multinet (MG)

REVENUE MIX FOR FY2013

United Energy

@ Regulated
@ Contracted
® Unregulated




HIGHLIGHTS

JULY

AUGUST

OCTOBER

DECEMBER

DUET announced

agreement with AMP Capital
and Macquarie Capital Group
(Macquarie) to internalise

the management of DUET
(the “Internalisation”).

UE raised $65 million
in medium term notes to

refinance existing maturities.

DBP raised $155 million in
seven-year bank debt financing
to refinance existing maturities.

NOVEMBER

Securityholders voted
overwhelmingly in favour of the
Internalisation.

DBP raised $300 million in
seven-year fixed-rate medium
term notes to refinance
existing maturities.

DUET reached financial close
on Internalisation. DUET Group
management became directly
employed by DIHL and the
Group acquired the responsible
entities which were stapled to
the previous stapled securities
to form a six-stapled structure.

DBP raised $170 million in
four-year bank term debt
financing to refinance existing
maturities.

DUET confirmed interim
distribution for six months
to 31 December 2012 of
8.25¢ per stapled security.

APRIL

MAY

MAY

JUNE

UE raised $400 million in
five-year bank term debt
financing to refinance
existing maturities.

DUET announced a proposed
simplification of the Group’s
structure (the “Simplification”).

The Simplification would reduce
the number of stapled entities
from six to four and create

a corporate arm (DIHL and
DUECo) controlling the Group’s
equity interests in its operating
businesses and a funding

arm (DFT and DFL) holding
intra-group debt investments.

As part of the Simplification,
the names of DMC2 and
DUET2 were changed to
DUET Finance Limited (DFL)
and DUET Finance Trust (DFT)
respectively.

UE raised $125 million in
five-year bank term debt
financing to refinance
existing maturities.

DUET confirmed final
distribution for the six months
to 30 June 2013 of 8.25¢ per
stapled security.
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CHAIRMAN’S

LETTER

CEQ’S
REPORT

Iam very pleased to present the annual
report for the financial year to 30 June
2013. You will recall that the proposal
to internalise management involved

the appointment of an independent
chairman. | was nominated for that role
by my fellow independent directors

and appointed when the internalisation
was approved by securityholders in
December 2012.

Having been a director of DUET’s boards
since February 2006, it has been very
satisfying to be able to contribute to the
transformation of our business to an
independent operating group.

That process of transformation began in
2011 when the Boards and management
embarked on a path to re-structure

the asset portfolio, simplify the capital
structure, and reform the governance
arrangements for the Group. DUET
now holds majority positions in three
significant Australian regulated energy
utility businesses, each of which has
now brought its key operating and
administrative functions in-house,
terminating the previous large scale
outsourced operating arrangements.

Through capital raisings and other capital
initiatives at the corporate and operating
levels the Group has simplified and de-
geared its capital structure.

The last year also involved significant
corporate structural change. Following
overwhelming securityholder approval
in December 2012, DUET ended its
external management arrangements
with AMP Capital Investors and
Macquarie Capital Group. This transition
to independence was completed

on 30 June and represents a very
significant milestone in DUET’s corporate
history. | am very pleased to report that
the transition to independence was
implemented smoothly and that during
the transition period we established
robust stand-alone systems and
operations and have enjoyed continuity
of the management team, with all key
executives, including our CEO, David
Bartholomew, and our CFO, Jason
Conroy, continuing in their roles, with all
management executives now employed
directly by the Group, increasing the

alignment between management and
securityholders.

The internalisation transaction was
accretive to securityholders, reducing
head office operating expenses and
improving the stability and predictability
of DUET’s operating cash flows
through the elimination of all future
base management fees and potential
performance fees to the external
managers.

Shortly after the end of the 2013 financial
year, securityholders also approved

the proposed simplification of the
Group’s corporate structure, which was
implemented on 1 August 2013.This will
reform the governance arrangements
for the Group, bringing all strategic

and operational decisions under the
direct control of the boards comprising
the Group’s corporate arm companies
(DUECo and DIHL), while group funding
arrangements will be under the control
of the board of our funding arm entities
(DFT and DFL).

Strong Securityholder Return

During this financial year, DUET’s security
price increased 9.2%, which when added
to the 16.5 cents per stapled security

in distributions declared during the year
resulted in a total shareholder return

of 18.1% for the 2013 financial year,
outperforming the S&P ASX 200 Utilities
Accumulation Index by nearly 3%.

FY2013 Financial Performance
Statutory revenues from ordinary
activities were $1,313.4 million, up 8%
on the previous financial year, while
statutory EBITDA was $736.3 million,
up 4%.

Net profit after income tax for the
financial year was $19.6 million, down
55%. However, this included $111.2
million of one-off expenses primarily
related to the management internalisation
completed in December 2012, and $49.1
million of mark-to-market derivatives
gains and of foreign exchange gains. The
net profit after income tax after excluding
these significant items was $81.7 million,
up 17% on the previous financial year.

FY2013 Distribution paid and FY2014
Distribution Guidance

DUET achieved its FY2013 distribution
guidance of 16.5 cents per stapled
security, which was again covered (on a
pro forma basis) by operating cashflows
from the Group’s businesses.

The Boards have provided guidance
of 17.0 cents per stapled security for
FY2014. Based on DUET’s security
price of $2.12 as at 5 September, this
represents a trading yield of 8%.

Outlook

With the strategic corporate initiatives
now completed, DUET’s board and
management will be focussing on further
growth opportunities at each of our
businesses as we look to increase the
Group’s earnings and, in turn, returns to
securityholders.

I would like to thank you for your
continued support of DUET and look
forward to meeting you at DUET's AGM
in November this year.

Doug Halley
Chairman

UET completed a number of

important strategic initiatives in the
2013 financial year and in the period
following year end.

The internalisation of management in
December 2012 ushered in a new era
for DUET. The management team is now
directly employed by DUET, improving
the governance arrangements and the
alignment between management and
securityholders. The transition to internal
management was executed without

any disruptions to our operations, with
our team relocating to new offices and
establishing stand-alone back office
systems and operations.

Business Highlights

Dampier Bunbury Pipeline

The Dampier Bunbury Pipeline (DBP)
result saw revenue slightly lower than the
previous year while EBITDA grew 1%,
despite volumes being 3% lower than
the previous year.

DBP’s tariff structure, being 80% ‘take-
or-pay’, significantly mitigates the impact
of volatility in overall throughput. The
lower volumes experienced in FY13
reflect a change in the way DBP’s
shippers, especially the electricity
generators, utilise the pipeline, but does
not reflect any underlying change in
overall demand for gas transportation
capacity. Gas-fired electricity generation
capacity is required to support the
growth in electricity generation from
wind and solar capacity. Generators

will continue to need gas-fired capacity
when solar and wind generation is not
available, resulting in greater volatility in
gas volumes, but no material reduction in
demand for pipeline capacity.

Pleasingly, DBP’s operational performance
continues to be very strong with delivery
performance exceeding targets and
operating margins remaining above 80%.

United Energy

United Energy (UE or United Energy) had
a very strong year. Revenues were up
6% due to a CPI + 4.3% uplift in tariffs
on 1 January 2013.

EBITDA was up 15%, as operating
margins recovered following the
completion of the transition to UE’s new
operating model. UE’s EBITDA margin

increased from 63% in FY12 to 68% in
FY13. Operating margins are expected
to increase further in coming years as
regulated tariffs are escalated by CPI +
8.1% in both CY14 and CY15.

We continued to invest to renew and
expand the UE network during the year,
with the regulated asset base growing by
9% in the period.

The smart meter roll-out program is
approaching completion. At 31 July
2013, the business had completed

69% of the roll out and practical project
completion is scheduled for the end of
2013. We are already seeing the benefit
of the introduction of the meters, with
lower costs to customers and more
granular network load data available

to refine the focus of our network
improvement capital expenditure
programs. The introduction of our web-
based portal, providing consumers with
detailed individual consumption data and
the introduction of time-of-use pricing in
September 2013, are expected to deliver
significant benefits for our customers.

Multinet Gas

Multinet Gas’ (MG or Multinet Gas)
revenues were up 2%, while EBITDA was
down 3%, as the business brought to
account $8.1 million of transition related
costs during the year.

With its previous large scale operations
outsource contract having come to an
end at 30 June 2013, MG has now
completed the insourcing of its key
engineering, asset management and
corporate support functions.

All of DUET’s businesses have now
internalised their core functions,
increasing the level of control over
operations and ultimately the cash flows
coming out of these businesses.

In March 2013, the regulator published

a decision setting MG’s tariff for the
2013-2017 period. MG appealed the
regulator’s Final Decision in relation to
the establishment of the businesses’
opening regulated asset base. The
regulator conceded the appeal point prior
to the dispute being heard by the appeal
body. As a result, MG revenue will be
adjusted to correct a decision that would
have reduced revenue by approximately

$45 million over the 2013-2017
regulatory period, with the actual annual
apportionment currently being discussed.

MG has decided to accelerate its rate

of capital expenditure on its 30-year
program to replace the cast iron pipes
remaining on its network and intends to
seek regulatory approval for additional
expenditure on this program in the
course of the current regulatory period.
This ability to seek approval for additional
capital expenditure intra regulatory period
was provided for in the regulator’s Final
Decision released in March 2013.

Growth Opportunities

DUET has been actively seeking new
organic growth opportunities. On

2 September 2013 we announced that DBP
Development Group, DUET’s 100% owned
subsidiary in WA, had reached agreement
with Chevron Australia, as operator of

the Wheatstone Project, to build, own

and operate a lateral pipeline connecting
the Wheatstone project to the Dampier

to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline. To fund
this accretive development opportunity,
DUET launched an underwritten $100
million placement by way of a variable price
book-build. The placement was strongly
supported by the Group’s institutional
investors, with the final book-build price
representing a 1% discount to the previous
close and in line with the five day volume
weighted average price.

Overall, the Group is in good shape to
take advantage of the opportunities that
lie ahead. We will continue to be focussed
on renewing and enhancing UE’s network
and accelerating MG’s pipeworks
replacement program to build the
regulated asset base of the Group. DBP
Development Group will also continue

to look for further growth opportunities,
leveraging the extensive engineering

and commercial experience of the DBP
management team, as a means to deploy
capital on accretive terms.

| would like to thank all securityholders
for their ongoing support of DUET.

>

David Bartholomew
Chief Executive Officer

6 DUET Group Annual Report 2013



DAMPIER

| |BUNBURY
PIPELINE

SNAPSHOT

Ownership Contribution to DUET

Regulatory

Interest proportionate EBITDA Revenue EBITDA reset date

804 47,

$455m

$369v Jan 2016

Business Description

The Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline (Pipeline) is Western
Australia’s principal gas transmission pipeline. It is the only pipeline
connecting the natural gas reserves of the Carnarvon basin on
Western Australia’s North West Shelf with industrial, commercial
and residential customers in Perth and the surrounding regions.
Natural gas supplies approximately 50% of total primary energy
consumption in Western Australia.

The group of companies that owns and operates the Pipeline trades
under the name of DBP Transmission (DBP).

Key Investment Attributes

Revenue Streams

Almost all of DBP’s revenue is derived from contracted

gas transportation tariffs, charged to wholesale customers for
shipping gas along the Pipeline. DBP has entered into standard
long-term transportation contracts with the major shippers using
the Pipeline — other than Alcoa. Under these contracts, 80% of the
tariff is paid on a capacity reservation (take-or-pay) basis, with the
remaining 20% depending on each shipper’s actual throughput.

Alcoa, as the foundation shipper, has an evergreen contract with tariff
agreements that differ from those of other shippers.

Other revenue includes ancillary services to shippers such as
park-and-loan and gas storage and customer initiated capital works.

Competitive Position

The Pipeline is an essential piece of infrastructure with no

direct competition from other pipelines for the main market it serves
nor is there a material risk of bypass by other pipelines — there are
substantial barriers to entry for a competing pipeline to be built.

It has an expected remaining useful operating life of nearly 50 years
and a strong track record of nearly 30 years of reliable operation.

DBP has long-term contracts in place for volume until at least
2019 with all of the shippers on the Pipeline, ensuring stable and
predictable revenues.

Change in Shipper’s Gas Usage

Currently, WA's south west electricity grid is experiencing an increase
in the level of base load electricity generated from renewable and
coal-fired sources. As a result, gas-fired generation is increasingly
being used for shoulder and peaking requirements, and as back-up
when renewable capacity is unable to be dispatched.

This has had a marked increase on daily throughput volatility

on the Pipeline and overall throughput for the year was down 3%.
However, DBP’s take-or-pay tariff structure mitigates the impact
on transportation revenues. In addition, electricity generators utilise
their full contractual capacity when high demand periods coincide

with coal or renewable generation outages and in periods of high
demand, especially on hot days when air-conditioning loads are high.

Pipeline Expansion

The $714 million Stage 5B expansion, finalised in 2011, increased
the firm full haul Pipeline capacity by around 110TJ/day to a total
of 845TJ/day of firm full haul capacity.

Consistent with its historical approach to growth opportunities, DBP
will only invest in expansion projects on the basis of firm, long-term
contractual commitments by customers. Forecast rates of growth
and investment in power generation in the south west of the State
suggest that the next pipeline expansion will be required towards
the end of this decade.

Key Events

Pipeline Operations

With the change in Shippers’ gas usage patterns, DBP continued
to review the operating configuration of the Pipeline with the intent
of enhancing its reliability and efficiency. The work has resulted in a
number of new operating protocols that have seen a reduction in
overall fuel usage, operating costs and has enhanced the ability of
the Pipeline to respond to changes in demand and supply.

Pigging exercise

DBP has now completed an extensive two year pigging program that
involved cleaning and inspecting the interior of the Pipeline as well

as all laterals that connect to the main Pipeline. The results obtained
from the pigging exercise indicate that the pipeline remains in a
sound condition.

WA Labour Market

The Western Australia energy and resources sector has a number of
large development projects still under construction. This has resulted
in continued pressure in the local labour market, with skills shortages
in specialised areas and ongoing rising salary expectations. DBP
implemented retention policies in 2011 to counteract this medium
term labour market pressure. The result has been a reduction in
DBP’s staff attrition rate and has resulted in the business retaining
key existing personnel as well as attracting high calibre employees to
cater for succession planning.

Regulation

The Western Australian gas regulatory regime requires that Access
Arrangement revisions are lodged with the Economic Regulatory
Authority (ERA) for its approval at least every five years.

DBP has entered into standard long-term transportation contracts
with the major shippers using the Pipeline — other than Alcoa. These
standard contracts in respect of volume remain in place until at least
2019. Those contracts currently have a tariff pricing structure that has
been bilaterally agreed with DBP’s shippers, that is independent of the
ERA’s approved regulatory tariff until the end of 2015.

Operational Overview

Year to Year to
30 June 2013 30 June 2012

Throughput (PJs)

Full haul 228 239
Part haul 44 41
Back haul 37 39
Total 309 319

Occupational health and safety
Lost time injuries 0 1

Environmental
Scope 1 CO.e emissions 258,501t

Contracted capacity One monthto ~ One month to

The regulated tariff that will apply from 2016 will be subject to a
regulatory decision in 2015. DBP is examining all aspects of its current
gas transportation service and will engage with its shippers to discuss
their future requirements with one possible result being the extension
of the current negotiated tariff arrangement.

Carbon Tax Liability

DBP’s standard shipper contracts allow for DBP to pass all carbon
related expenses onto its standard shippers. Should DBP’s tariff
revert to a regulated tariff in 2016, DBP will be able to recover
carbon related expenses through the regulated revenue allowance.

Currently DBP is incurring carbon related costs of approximately
$2.2 million per annum relating to volumes shipped by its foundation
shipper, Alcoa. From July 2014, DBP expects to be able to pass

on all carbon related costs on the Alcoa volumes.

FY2013 Financial Performance Summary

Year to Year to
$ million 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Transmission revenue 418 425
Total revenue 455 457
EBITDA 369 366
Regulated Asset Base 3,681.2 3,579.5

(average TJ/day) 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 Credit Ratings

Full haul 839 850

Part haul 278 278 Rating levels as at period end were:

Back haul 121 121 S&P BBB- (stable outlook)
Total 1,238 1,248 Moody’s Baa3 (stable outlook)

DBP

DEVELOPMENT
GROUP

In 2011, DUET created DBP Development Group (DDG'), currently a
100%-owned DUET subsidiary. The strategic focus of the new group
is to leverage the world-class pipeline engineering and operating
skills of DBP’s management team to provide opportunities to build
own and/or operate new pipelines and laterals.

On 2 September 2013, DDG reached agreement with Chevron
Australia to build, own and operate the Wheatstone Ashburton West
Pipeline for the Wheatstone Project in Western Australia. Wheatstone
is one of Australia’s largest resource projects, including both LNG
and domestic gas production capabilities.

1. DDG was previously named DBP Services Co.

The pipeline project, which is anticipated to cost $94.9 million and
to be completed by the end of calendar year 2014, will generate
$13 million of forecast cash available for distribution in CY2015.

DDG continues to assess additional accretive investment
opportunities.
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UNITED

SNAPSHOT

Ownership Contribution to DUET

Regulatory

Interest proportionate EBITDA Revenue EBITDA reset date

66+ 33%

$467v

$318wm

Jan 2016

Business Description
United Energy’s electricity distribution network covers 1,472km?
of south-east Melbourne and the Mornington Peninsula.

The distribution network transports electricity from the high voltage
transmission network to residential, commercial and industrial
electricity users.

United Energy’s distribution area is largely urban and, although
geographically small (about 1% of Victoria’s land), serves around
25% of Victoria’s population.

Key Investment Attributes

Revenue Streams

United Energy’s distribution business generates predictable, regulated
revenues. Approximately 91% of United Energy’s total revenue comes
from network tariffs, charged for the use of United Energy’s distribution
network and for the use of the transmission grid. The tariffs are levied on
electricity retailers, who pass these costs on to their customers. Growth
in network tariff revenue is driven by volume growth and regulated
network tariff charges. Other revenue comes from services which
United Energy provides to its customers, such as relocating assets at
the request of our customers, extending existing distribution networks,
providing public lighting to local council areas, and access charges for
the use of electricity distribution poles to telecommunication companies.

The regulatory price determinations, which regulate the majority of
these revenues, are undertaken by the Australian Energy Regulator
(AER) and apply for periods of five years.

Diverse Customer Base

Energy consumption in United Energy’s distribution area is evenly
spread across residential, commercial and industrial users, making
United Energy less vulnerable to variations in energy use in any one
of these markets.

Operating Initiatives

Regulation
United Energy’s current regulatory period covers 2011-2015.

In 2012, United Energy successfully appealed the AER’s 2011 final
pricing determination, resulting in United Energy being awarded
around $50 million in additional revenue, spread across the remaining
three years of the current regulatory period. As a result, United
Energy has the following regulator-approved annual tariff increases:

— 2013 CPIl+ 4.3%
— 2014 CPI+ 8.1%, and
— 2015 CPI+ 8.1%.

The next regulatory reset date for United Energy is 1 January 2016.

Distribution System Augmentation

To address the growth in peak demand in the region, United Energy
has embarked on a major program to enhance the capacity and
reliability of the distribution system. The project has identified and
replaced distribution transformers and substations that were nearing
their capacity limits as a result of the high penetration of air-conditioning
units throughout the network over recent years. The program ams

to enhance the reliability of supply to United Energy’s customers,
particularly during periods of very high demand on hot days.

This significant capital expenditure program saw United Energy’s
regulated asset base (RAB) increase by 9% during the 2013 financial
year, with the business on track to achieve a 6% compound annual
growth rate in its RAB over the current regulatory period. The growth
in the United Energy’s RAB and associated approved tariff increase,
will be a driver of Group revenue and earnings growth over the next
few years.

Smart Metering

— Advanced Meter Infrastructure (AMI) Program

United Energy is rolling out smart meters to all 650,000 customers
on its network.

The project involves replacing old-style meters with new smart
meters that are able to be read remotely and allow electricity usage
to be recorded in 30-minute intervals. The business has also had
to significantly upgrade its information systems to process the
increased amount of data that it is now receiving.

To date, all of the IT and communications infrastructure has been
successfully deployed, allowing for accurate and timely meter reading.
As at 31 July 2013 United Energy had completed approximately 69%
of the meter roll-out program. Practical completion' of the roll-out is
expected to occur by the end of calendar year 2013.

From 1 July 2013, United Energy introduced variable tariff pricing
arrangements, with peak and off-peak pricing now available.
Combined with an enhanced understanding of their energy
consumption provided by the smart meter technology, customers
will now be able to modify their energy usage patterns to manage
their energy charges.

Smart meters also provide valuable information regarding specific
network load on a more granular level, than has previously been
available. This will assist United Energy’s asset management team
to manage overall demand, allowing for more targeted approach
to capital expenditure investment and optimise the replacement
of transformers on the network.

y

Ultimately, smart meters will become a critical piece of infrastructure
supporting United Energy’s ‘smart network’ strategy, providing
automated outage detection and management, supporting home and
embedded electricity generation from solar and energy storage devices.

United Energy customers can access their energy usage via a
secure internet portal called “Easy Energy” accessible via either

PC or smartphone. The web-based portal allows customers to track
daily, weekly and seasonal electricity consumption. Photovoltaic
connected customers are able to view their savings and the system
also provides the necessary information to support consumers in
making decisions regarding their consumption and retailer offerings.

Operational Overview

Year to Year to
30 June 2013 30 June 2012

Network connections

7
\
|
A
- ’
i
\
b
=]

Small (residential and unmetered) 593,588 586,404
Medium sized business 55,651 54,600
Commercial and industrial 3,173 3,427
Total connections 652,412 644,431
Electricity load (GWh)

Small tariff 2,929 2,954
Medium tariff 1,443 1,485
Large tariff 3,589 3,695
Total electricity load 7,961 8,135
Distribution network statistics*

SAIFI (number of interruptions) 1.1 1.1
MAIFI (humber of interruptions) 1.3 1.1
SAIDI (minutes) 123 107

Occupational health and safety
Lost time injuries 3 3

United Energy is working with a number of service providers to
ramp up the rate of meter installation, with completion of the roll-out
targeted in the first half of calendar year 2014.

Bushfire Prevention

United Energy continues to work closely with the AER and Energy
Safe Victoria to implement recommendations that came out of

the 2009 Victorian Bushfire Royal Commission final report. The
business has adopted a number of initiatives designed to improve
the safety and reliability of its network and reduce the potential for
fire starts. Programs underway include steel conductor replacement,
fitting of vibration dampers, armor rods and spreaders as well

as expansion of the scope of vegetation clearance works in high
bushfire risk areas.

Carbon Tax Liability

United Energy’s scope 1 emissions are below the carbon pricing
scheme threshold, hence United Energy is exempt from the carbon
pricing scheme. United Energy anticipates that it will achieve

full recovery of any carbon scheme related costs and revenue
changes due to potential impact on customer usage, in future
regulatory decisions

FY2013 Financial Performance Summary

Year to Year to
$million 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Distribution revenue 335 317
Total revenue 467 441
EBITDA 318 276
Regulated Asset Base 1,999.0 1,841.9

Credit Ratings

Rating levels as at period end were:

‘ ‘ iy o . Environmental S&P BBB (stable outlook)
1. Practical completion where UE anticipates each customer in their network will have been — W ; Baa? I 100K
visited by an installer and will either have a new AMI meter installed or have a plan in Scope 1 COze emissions 4,206t oody’s aa? (stable outlook)
place to do so. * Does not include Excluded Events as defined by the AER.
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MULTINET

GAS

SNAPSHOT

Ownership Contribution to DUET

Regulatory

Interest proportionate EBITDA Revenue EBITDA reset date

1004 204

$198m

$129

Jan 2018

Business Description

Multinet Gas (MG) is a Victorian gas distribution company with
a network covering 1,860km? of the eastern and south-eastern
suburbs of Melbourne, the Yarra Ranges and South Gippsland.

Key Investment Attributes

Revenue Streams

Approximately 95% of MG’s total revenue comes from regulated
distribution tariffs, charged to customers for connection to, and use
of, MG'’s distribution system.

Growth in distribution revenue is driven by regulated tariff charges
and volume growth. MG’s top 250 gas users collectively account for
only around 1% of total distribution revenue. As a result, the potential
for a material negative impact on revenue from the loss of a major
user is low.

Other revenue comes from the provision of regulated services such
as meter reading, mains and services provision, and meter data
management.

The regulatory price determinations, which regulate the majority of
these revenues, are undertaken by the Australian Energy Regulator
(AER) and apply for periods of five years.

Operating Initiatives

Regulation
In March 2013, the AER delivered is Final Decision in relation to
Multinet Gas’ 2013-2017 Gas Access Arrangement Review.

MG subsequently lodged an appeal of the AER’s Final Decision with
the Australian Competition Tribunal in relation to the calculation of
MG’s 2013 opening regulated asset base (RAB). In early July, the
AER conceded the appeal application. MG is currently in discussions
with the AER as to how the approximate $45 million of additional
revenue will be allocated over the remaining four years of the
currently regulatory period.

The next regulatory reset date for MG is 1 January 2018.

Transition of Operating and Corporate Functions
As at 30 June 2013 the previous large scale outsourced contract
with Zinfra (formerly Jemena) came to an end.

MG has now transitioned to a new operating model, bringing critical
business management and corporate functions in house, and
splitting the distribution area into two regions with separate field
services contractors. Zinfra will continue to provide field services

in MG'’s northern region, while a new contractor, Comdain, will
service the southern region. The new outsourcing arrangements
include incentive and penalty arrangements under which the
service providers have incentives to improve efficiency and network
performance.

Similar to the insourcing initiative undertaken by UE in the middle
of 2011, the transition will provide MG with greater control over its
operations.

System Enhancement Works

MG is undertaking a number of significant capital works programs
designed to improve reliability and increase the capacity of the
network to provide the growing gas needs of its customers.

The business is undertaking a 30 year program to replace older
cast iron pipe across its network. As part of this program MG has
also implemented a number of specific projects focused on the
replacement of older pipes in suburbs that have suffered water
ingress in recent years.

In its recent regulatory reset, the AER approved 65% of MG'’s original
capital expenditure proposal. The regulatory arrangement allows

for MG to reapply for an additional capital expenditure allowance
within this current regulatory period, should it complete the majority
of its currently approved program early. MG proposes to accelerate
its pipeworks capex program, investing the full five year regulatory
allowance within the first three years of this regulatory period and
then seek regulatory approval for the portion of the disallowed
pipeworks replacement capex.

MG is also engaged in major enhancements to its information
technology infrastructure and systems to ensure that it is well placed
to achieve its reliability and efficiency goals.

Carbon Tax Liability
The regulatory framework allows MG to recover any increased costs
and revenue changes relating to any carbon tax charges.

[l o
MR

Operational Overview

Year to Year to
30 June 2013 30 June 2012

Network connections

Tariff V residential 664,008 659,896
Tariff V business 16,257 16,512
Tariff D 262 265
Total connections 680,527 676,673
Usage (TJ)

Tariff V 45,279 44,843
Tariff D 11,110 11,279
Total 56,389 56,112

Occupational health and safety

FY2013 Financial Performance Summary

Year to Year to
$million 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Distribution revenue 189 186
Total revenue 198 195
EBITDA 129 133

Credit Ratings

Lost time injuries 1 2 ) .
Rating levels as at period end were:
Environmental S&P BBB- (negative outlook)
Scope 1 CO,e emissions 271,522t Moody’s Baa3 (stable outlook)
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ENVIRONMENTAL &

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

DUET believes that many social, environmental and economic
benefits arise from responsible private sector development and
the operation of high-quality infrastructure. DUET is also aware
that with these benefits lies the potential for risk, including
environmental and social responsibility (ESR) risk.

DUET’s approach to ESR management is set out in its Board
policies. These policies form part of DUET’s overarching risk
management framework in accordance with Principle 7 of its
corporate governance statement.

It is DUET’s policy to ensure that it and each of its businesses
are in compliance with the relevant regulatory frameworks
and meet or exceed the minimum standards required of it.
DUET’s environmental and social responsibilities are managed
throughout the investment process as follows:

— Business selection — environmental and social responsibilities
are reviewed as part of the acquisition due diligence process

— Ongoing business management — regular business
board reporting enables compliance with environmental
requirements to be monitored, and environmental and social
responsibility issues to be identified

— Stakeholder reporting — policies, social and environmental
initiatives and compliance performance are reported
internally and, where appropriate, externally.

In this section we provide details of DUET’s environmental and
social responsibilities and initiatives undertaken during FY2013.
DUET’s governance responsibilities and policies are covered in
pages 17-27.

ESR-related regulatory requirements

DUET is not aware of any material breaches of relevant
environmental or social responsibility related regulatory standards
by its businesses during the year ended 30 June 2013.

ESR-related initiatives at DUET businesses during
FY2013

Environmental management system

All of DUET’s businesses are managed under an environmental
management system closely aligned to the International
Standard ISO 14001, either directly or through the various
operating contracts with their service providers.

Management incentives

Key performance indicators for Health, Safety and
Environmental performance have been set for DBP, United
Energy and Multinet Gas’ management teams. These KPI's
are integrated into calculation of the teams’ remuneration
packages.

National greenhouse and energy reporting

The Federal government has introduced the National
Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Scheme (NGERS),

a mandatory corporate reporting system for greenhouse gas
emissions and energy consumption and production. All of
DUET’s businesses have implemented measurement and
reporting systems and have submitted reports in compliance
with the NGERS requirements. Details of DUET’s business’
emissions (United Energy, Multinet Gas and DBP) are published
on the Clean Energy Regulator’s website.
http://www.cleanenergyregulator.gov.au/National-
Greenhouse-and-Energy-Reporting/Pages/default.aspx

Scope 1 emissions

Scope 1 emissions are the release of greenhouse gases into
the atmosphere as a direct result of an activity, or series of
activities (including ancillary activities) that constitute the facility.

Scope 1 emissions (tonnes CO,-¢)
2009 2010 2011 2012

DBP 371,996 355,676 264,234 258,501
Multinet Gas 292,777 274,966 302,080 271,522
United Energy 5,421 6,603 4,754 4,206

— Scope 1 emissions from DBP are primarily CO, emissions
resulting from fuel used in powering the pipeline gas
compressor stations.

— Scope 1 emissions from Multinet Gas are primarily due to
the escape of natural gas from the gas distribution system.
Multinet’s gas losses are typical of gas distribution systems.

— DBPis able to pass on the carbon tax liabilities under
its Standard Shipper Contracts and from 1 July 2014 is
expected to be able to pass on the carbon tax liabilities on
the Alcoa volumes.

— Multinet Gas is able to pass on its carbon tax liabilities via
the regulatory arrangements.

— United Energy is below the minimum threshold and is
therefore exempt from any carbon tax liability.

Scope 2 Emissions

Scope 2 emissions are the release of greenhouse gases into
the atmosphere as a direct result of one or more activities that
generate electricity, heating, cooling or steam that is consumed
by the facility but do not form part of the facility.

Scope 2 emissions (tonnes CO,-¢)
2009 2010 2011 2012
DBP 2,267 1,792 1,714 1,683

Multinet Gas 3,022 2,705 2,743 2,986

United Energy 634,533 603,150 640,637 550,254

— Carbon tax is not levied on Scope 2 emissions

— United Energy’s Scope 2 emissions are primarily the result of
electrical losses in the distribution system. The magnitude of
these losses is typical of electricity distribution systems.

— Under the regulatory regime in Australia, electricity losses in
the distribution system do comprise a cost to United Energy

Water Use

DBP, United Energy and Multinet Gas do not use water for any
industrial scale purposes. Water in the businesses is primarily
used for hygiene purposes at their offices and depots plus a
small amount for cleaning of vehicles and top-up cooling water
for remote electricity generation at DBP.

Water is sourced from town water supplies, bore water and
rainwater harvesting.

Although water use is relatively small, there have been a
number of initiatives put in place by the asset companies and
their contractors to further reduce water consumption and
waste. These include:

— Water recycling systems for truck washing in Victoria;
— Rainwater harvesting; and
— Waterless urinals

DBP, United Energy and Multinet Gas regularly review their
water usage, with the aim of further identifying water saving
initiatives.

Occupational health and safety

DUET and its businesses all enforce comprehensive
occupational health and safety policies with their workforce
and contractors.

Over recent years all of DUET’s businesses have undertaken
major audits of their safety systems and practices leading to the
design and implementation of new safety programs.

All of DUET’s businesses now embrace a vision of ‘zero harm’
in their OHS&E policies and practices.

Lost Time Injuries
2010 2011 2012 2013

DBP 2 2 1 0
Multinet Gas 2 0 2 1
United Energy 4 0 3 3

Human Capital Development

United Energy and Multinet Gas have recently undertaken
employee engagement surveys which have resulted in the
implementation of a number of programs to create a clear
and shared vision, recognise high performance and connect
employees to the shared vision of the companies

At DBP, in order to attract and retain its employees, one of the
key strategy priorities is to be an “employer of choice” in the
strong competitive WA labour market. DBP has implemented a
number of initiatives to support this including a commitment to
long term career options, apprenticeships, incentive plans, flexible
leave arrangements and sponsorships in various charity events.

Diversity

Each of DUET’s businesses have established diversity policies
and track performance against target, with regular reporting to
the DUET boards.
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STATEMENT

Diversity split

M F M F M F
% % % % % %
DUET Boards 87 13 87 13 70" 30
DUET
Management 62 38 58 42 55 45
DBP 79 21 8 22 78 22
United Energy/
Multinet Gas? 69 31 67 383 69 31

1. As at 1 August 2013
2. United Energy and Multinet Gas have a shared management team

DBP has identified cultural diversity as a key action area

and have implemented a new leave policy which includes a
provision for cultural leave whereby employees who require
leave for religious purposes can “swap” public holidays for DBP
fixed additional holidays for those days.

DBP

Contributing to state development and energy needs

Many major industrial companies rely on the Pipeline to

supply their energy needs, either directly or through electricity
generated by gas-fired power stations. These users are fuelling
the state’s economic growth, which without a reliable supply of
natural gas, would not be possible.

Remote Worker Safety System

Due to the long distances involved in the maintenance of

the Pipeline and the remote areas traversed by the pipeline,

DBP has implemented a remote worker system which tracks

a vehicle’s location and sends alarms when workers are in
distress. The system is aimed at improving vehicle related safety
and the safety of workers who work alone in remote areas.

New operational regime

DBP has developed and implemented new regimes to maintain
the Pipeline reliability while optimising the consumption of fuel
gas. These initiatives have resulted in reduced operating costs
and a decrease in carbon emissions whilst ensuring that the
Pipeline is able to meet all of its obligations to supply gas to its
customers.

United Energy

Smart meters

United Energy is rolling out its AMI project, which will see
approximately 650,000 homes and businesses in Melbourne
and the Mornington Peninsula receive a new smart meter to
help manage electricity consumption.

Customers will be connected to a ‘smart’ metering network
which will allow them to better monitor and manage their own
energy use more effectively and contribute to energy efficiency
outcomes.

Customers will also benefit from faster and more convenient
electricity connection services and the removal of manual and
estimated meter reading services, which will be replaced by
more timely, accurate and detailed automated meter readings,
improving customer service.

Multinet Gas

Pipeworks projects

Multinet Gas is implementing a number of capital works
programs which will reduce gas leakage, CO e emission and
improve the reliability of supply to customers. These include
replacement of older cast iron piping systems as well as the
design and construction of new high pressure pipelines.

Community Involvement

Waverly Adolescent Emergency Care (WEAC)

In recent years, United Energy and Multinet Gas have built

a relationship with a local charitable organisation, WEAC,
that provides support for families with teenagers in the
eastern suburbs of Melbourne, the distribution area for these
businesses.

Established in 1985, WEAC’s mission statement is to provide
best practice and quality service for youth and families
utilising a multi-disciplinary team approach in conjunction with
community resources consisting of volunteers, caregivers and
extended family networks.

WEAC also runs Tandana Place, a residential facility offering
drug and alcohol rehabilitation programs. Tandana Place caters
for young people aged 12-20 with mental health and drug/
alcohol issues, providing support to them under a 12-16 week
program. In the 12 months to 30 June 2013, nine Tandana
Place residents completed an average of 14 weeks in the
program. Many of these residents presented with complex legal
issues in conjunction with serious mental health concerns and
substance disorders.

In FY2013 the DUET Group contributed $150,000 in support
of the WEAC and Tandana facility.

As at 1 August 2013, DUET comprises three Australian public companies: — DUET Company Limited (DUECo), DUET Investment
Holdings Limited (DIHL) and DUET Finance Limited (DFL) (collectively the companies) and one Australian trust — DUET Finance
Trust (DFT or the Trust).

The securities of the Trust and companies are listed on the ASX (ASX: DUE) and must trade and otherwise be dealt with
together. There is a Stapling Deed in place between all four entities setting out co-operation arrangements for the operation
of this stapled structure.

Between 4 December 2012 and 31 July 2013 (being the majority of the FY2013 financial year), DUET was a six stapled structure
that comprised three Australian trusts — Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.1 (DUET1), Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.2
(DUET2) (now known as DUET Finance Trust) and Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.3 (DUET3) and three Australian public
companies - DUET Investment Holdings Limited (DIHL), DUET Management Company 1 Limited (RE1) and DUET Management
Company 2 Limited (RE2) (now known as DUET Finance Limited). Prior to 4 December 2012, DUET was a quadruple stapled
structure comprising DUET1, DUET2, DUET3 and DIHL with RE1 the responsible entity of DUET1 and RE2 the responsible entity
of DUET2 and DUET3.

These structures are represented diagrammatically below.
Management arrangements summary

DUET’s structure
The DUET Group’s corporate structure following the simplification completed on 1 August 2013 is shown below.

DUET Structure Post-Simplification

Corporate Arm

DIHL

20% 39% 100% 66%

Multinet Gas United Energy

Funding Arm

21% |
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Responsible Entity for
DFT

DFT

——  Controlling interests held by DUECo
Stapled Entities Minority equity interests held by DIHL and DFT
- Debt investments held by DFT
Structure is in summary form with interposed entities not shown
A. DUECo holds all of its investments through DUETT including a 65% controlling interest in DUET Dampier Bunbury Company Pty Ltd, which owns a 60% controlling interest in DBP.

The responsible entity for the Trust is DFL.

The Trust is an ASIC-registered managed investment scheme and its combined trustee/manager, DFL, is known as the responsible
entity. DFL's management role is defined by the Trust constitution, the Corporations Act and the general law.

DUECo, DIHL and DFL do not have a manager and are responsible for their own respective operations. DIHL is the employer of all
staff that provide services for the DUET Group under a Resources Agreement. This Resources Agreement requires DIHL to provide
resources (including staff, software, premises and equipment) to enable DFL to perform its necessary functions as responsible entity
for the Trust and to comply with ASIC Regulatory Guide 166 Licensing: Financial Requirements.
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The table below is a high level summary of the DUET Group management arrangements addressing the disclosure recommended

in Guidance Note 26 to the ASX Listing Rules and ASIC Regulatory Guide 231 Infrastructure entities: Improving disclosure for retail Key Term Description Source documents
investors (RG231). Fees The entity responsible for the management of the Trust is DFL. All fees are internal to the Trust constitution
It should be noted that entities responsible for the management arrangements are internal to the DUET Group and owned by DUET DUET Group as DFL is owned by DUET securityholders. Therefore management fees and clause 20
securityholders and not any third party. We recommend that you also read the Trust constitution and the full RG231 disclosure ?ﬂg\t’gg?o?:'d to DIHL under the Resources Agreement do not represent a net additional cost o roes
available on the DUET website (www.duet.net.au). ) Agreement
Management fee
Key Term Description SeTen Gl EEET Thg manggement fee is payable to DFL quarterly in an amount to reimburse the responsible
entity for its personal costs that are not otherwise payable as an expense of the trust up to a
Investment The principal investment policy is to seek to invest in and manage energy utility assets DUET 2004 PDS maximum of $500,000 per annum. This is an internal fee between DUET entities to fund certain
mandate in Australia and New Zealand, although DUET may invest in other OECD countries. — section 1.3 costs to be borne by the responsible entity.
The principal investment policy may be varied from time to time upon giving reasonable DUET Annual Resources Agreement
notice to security holders. Reports DIHL is entitled to fees for providing services and resources to DFL in its personal capacity
and its capacity as responsible entity for the Trust.
Key relationship ~ DIHL , , , Resources DIHL will allocate costs to DUECo, DFL and the Trust based on DIHL's assessment of each
and services Under the terms of the Resources Agreement, DIHL is to provide staff, premises, computer Agreement party’s use of resources.
systems and other equipment, software, know-how and other tangible and intangible property 1 .+ ~onstitution . B . o
used by DIHL staff to assist DFL to perform its necessary functions in its personal capacity and clause 12 DIHL, DUECo and DFL will agree additional reasonable fees for additional activities requested
as responsible entity of the Trust, including managerial, legal, compliance, accounting and tax . to be performed by DIHL.
administration, financial, public relations and communications. Corporations Act . e ) ) ) ) . o
) ) S601FB, s601FC Expenses The responsible entity is entitled to be reimbursed for expenses incurred in relation to the Trust constitution
Responsible entity proper performance of its duties. clause 20
DFL has all the powers of a natural person including contracting, borrowing and investment c )
and carries out all management functions for the Trust subject to outsourcing registry and orporations Act
custodial services as described above. S601GAR)
Financial Advisers or Underwriter Exclusivity No exclusivity applies. Resources
DUET has no preferred contractual arrangements with any financial advisers at the parent/fund Agreement
level. At the asset company level, AMP Capital may be appointed as financial adviser for debt
and debt advisory work. There are different expiry dates for these agreements depending on Discretions DUET Group Trust constitution
the nature of the services provided, ranging from 31 December 2013 to 31 December 2015. The board of the responsible entity of the Trust makes all significant investment/divestment clause 12
and operational decisions for the Trust and in its personal capacity. DIHL constitution
Term DUET Group Trust constitution —_— ) -
. . . ) . . . The board of DIHL and DUECo make all significant and operational decisions for DIHL and clause 11
No fixed term for the Trust or the companies. The term will continue until the responsible entity clause 21 . . .
. ) . ) ) " DUECo respectively. The Resources Agreement does not grant DIHL powers and discretions
is removed or retires and is not replaced, or security holders vote to wind up the stapled entities R . . Lo X - : ) o Resources
as provided for in the Trust constitution or by law, esources in relation to proposing investment/divestment decisions, but DIHL may be involved in providing Agreement
' Agreement additional services to DUET Group to facilitate significant acquisitions/divestments.

Resources Agreement

No fixed term and therefore no extension or renewal provisions apply. The performance of management generally is oversighted by the independent directors on the

responsible entity and company boards.

Termination Responsible Entity Trust constitution
) . . . . . Change of control DUET Group Resources
The Trust may terminate the appointment of the responsible entity, without cause, by security clause 13 . ) . . . . ) )
holder vote. . DUET co-invests from time to time with third parties. Co-investment arrangements include pre- ~ Agreement
Corporations Act emption and tag-along or drag-along rights in favour of each other. However there are no rights
The resolution must be passed by at least 50% of votes cast at meeting by security holders s601FL, s601FM, held by co-investors which are triggered on change of control of DUET.

entitled to vote. DFL and its associates may vote their DUET securities (if any) on the resolution.  s601FN, s601FF,

s253E, s915B Resources Agreement

ASIC or a court may replace the responsible entity where there are solvency issues or members No change of control provisions apply in respect of the Resources Agreement. The Resources

are likely to suffer a loss because the responsible entity has breached the Corporations Act. Trust constitution Agreement automatically terminates if DFL ceases to be the responsible entity for the Trust.
Pursuant to the Corporations Act the responsible entity of the trust can retire if it first convenes clause 20 Variation t A it d t ity hold oht . t of ch to fee struct ¢ Trust tituti
a unitholders meeting to explain its reason for retirement and to enable unitholders to vote on Resources ariation to ANy variations adverse 1o security NOIAers nghts or n respect of changes 1o Tee Structures to rust consttumon
) : . management increase fees would involve trust constitution amendments and therefore effectively require clause 23
resolution to choose a new responsible entity. Agreement : . .
arrangements approval by 75% by value of votes cast at meeting by security holders entitled to vote.

Corporations Act

Management fees accrued to the date of termination are payable. Note that any fees s601GC

are internal to the DUET Group and do not represent an additional expense to investors.
There are no other termination fees payable.

Key relationship  There are currently no significant infrastructure assets under development.

Resources Agreement - significant
The Resources Agreement automatically terminates upon a winding up of the Trust DFL infrastructure
ceases 1o be the responsible entity of the Trust. asset under

In addition, the Resources Agreement will terminate in certain other situations such as DIHL development

committing a material breach of the agreement or if DUECo or DFL fail to pay DIHL for
providing resources in accordance with the agreement.
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What you can find on our website:

— DUECo constitution

— DFT constitution

— DIHL constitution

— DFL constitution

— Full RG231 disclosure.

DUET ’s approach to corporate governance

The DUET boards are committed to DUET’s achievement of
superior and sustainable financial performance and long-term
prosperity, while meeting stakeholders’ expectations of sound
corporate governance practices. This statement outlines DUET’s
main corporate governance practices as at August 2013 after
the implementation of DUET’s corporate simplification on

1 August 2013. Note that this statement does not reflect the
practices in place during the whole of the financial year ending
30 June 2013 given the internalisation of DUET’s management
arrangements on 4 December 2012. The corporate governance
arrangements in place as at 30 June 2012 (and that applied up
until 3 December 2012) are set out in the corporate governance
statement included in the 2012 Annual Report.

The DUET boards determine the corporate governance
arrangements for DUET. As with all its business activities, DUET
is proactive in respect of corporate governance and puts in place
those arrangements which it considers are in the best interests
of DUET and its investors and consistent with its responsibilities
to other stakeholders. It actively reviews Australian and
international developments in corporate governance.

ASX Corporate Governance Principles

The ASX Corporate Governance Council (the Council) has
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations

(the Principles) which are designed to maximise corporate
performance and accountability in the interests of shareholders
and the broader economy. The Principles encompass matters
such as board composition, committees and compliance
procedures.

The Principles (being those under ASX’s 2nd edition of Corporate
Governance Principles and Recommendations dated August
2007) can be viewed at www.asx.com.au. The Principles are

not prescriptive, however ASX listed entities (including DUET)

are required to disclose the extent of their compliance with the
Principles, and to explain why they have not adopted a Principle
if they consider it inappropriate in their particular circumstances.

DUET’s corporate governance statement is in the form of a
report against the Principles. DUET’s corporate governance
policies largely conform to the Principles. Any deviation relates
mainly to DUET transitioning from being an externally managed
vehicle prior to 4 December 2012. We have noted the differences
in our reporting.

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for management

and oversight

Responsibility for corporate governance and the internal
working of each DUET entity rests with the board of DUECo,
DFL or DIHL, as the case may be. The board of each company
has adopted a formal charter of directors’ functions and
matters to be delegated to management, having regard to the
recommendations in the Principles. An outline of the boards’
responsibilities in each company’s charter is set out below:

— Setting objectives, goals and strategic direction for
management, with a view to maximising investor wealth

— Monitoring the implementation of DUET’s investment policy

— Approving and monitoring the progress of major capital
expenditure, capital management, acquisitions and
divestures

— Adopting an annual budget for the managed vehicle and
monitoring its financial performance

— Reviewing the performance of the CEO and CFO or their
equivalents and where appropriate replacing those officers

— Appointing and removing the company secretary

— Monitoring senior management’s performance,
implementation of strategy, and resources

— Reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk
management, compliance and codes of conduct

— Approving and monitoring financial and other reporting

— Setting the highest business standards and codes for ethical
behaviour and monitoring compliance with them.

In addition to the matters outlined above, formal delegations
provide for the DUET boards to make all decisions in respect
of investments and divestments, any further funding or security
required for existing investments, managed vehicle level capital
management and restructuring, approval of financial accounts,
appointment of auditors, budgets for the managed vehicle,
distributions, annual reports, significant ASX releases and any
significant changes to policies or debt facilities. The CEO and
CFO have delegated authority (through directorships on asset
boards) to make decisions in respect of managed vehicle

level day-to-day administration up to certain delegated levels
and day-to-day matters for asset administration including
appointment of advisers and approvals of asset business
plans, budgets, capital expenditure, refinancings, hedging

and valuations.

Full board meetings are held at least bi-monthly for DUECo and
DIHL and at least quarterly for DFL. Other meetings are called

as required. Directors are provided with board reports in advance
of board meetings, which contain sufficient information to enable
informed discussion of all agenda items.

Each independent/non-executive director of DUECo, DIHL

and DFL has received a letter of appointment which details the
key terms of their appointment. This letter includes all of the
recommended matters in the Principles. The CEO and CFO,
being DUET’s senior executives, have formalised job descriptions
and, letters of appointment. To ensure that the DUET senior
executives properly perform their duties, the following procedures
are in place:

— The performance of staff, including the CEO and CFO, is
assessed as part of DUET’s formal employee performance
appraisal process. Employees are assessed against set
behavioural and technical competencies. The assessment
criteria used in determining remuneration is outlined in the
2013 remuneration report. The relevant boards provide
annual feedback on the performance of the CEO and CFO
and the chairman of the DIHL board and remuneration
committee will conduct the annual performance review with
the CEO and CFO

— Aformal induction program to allow senior executives to
participate fully and actively in management decision-making

— Access by executives to continuing education to update and
enhance their skills and knowledge.

What you can find on our website:
A summary of the DUECo, DIHL and DFL board charters.

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value

1. Composition

Profiles of the directors can be found on the DUET website.
Directors with a range of experience, qualifications and
experience are appointed to the board to enable each of the
boards to effectively discharge their duties and to add value
to the board’s deliberations.

DUECo and DIHL board of directors
The DUECo and DIHL board of directors is comprised as follows:

Douglas Halley — Chairman Independent
Appointed 13 February 2006 — DIHL
Appointed 2 August 2013 — DUECo
Director and Chairman

Emma Stein — Director Independent

Appointed 12 July 2006 — DIHL

Appointed 2 August 2013 — DUECo (previously appointed

as a director of a DUET responsible entity from 16 June 2004)
Director

Ron Finlay — Director Independent
Appointed 4 August 2006 — DIHL
Appointed 2 April 2013 - DUECo
Director

Duncan Sutherland* — Director Independent

Appointed 2 August 2013 — DIHL (in accordance with
securityholder vote on 18 July 2013)

Appointed 2 August 2013 - DUECo (previously appointed

as a director of a DUET responsible entity from 16 June 2004)
Director
*Also serves on the board of a Macquarie owned manager of a number of unlisted

managed vehicles. Duncan has been deemed to be independent given the reasons
outlined below under the heading ‘Independence’.

Shirley In’t Veld — Director Independent

Appointed 2 August 2013 — DIHL (in accordance with
securityholder vote on 18 July 2013)

Appointed 2 April 2013 — DUECo

Director

John Roberts — Director Non-Executive

Appointed 29 June 2006 — DIHL (appointed by Macquarie
and AMP Capital)

Appointed 2 August 2013 — DUECo (appointed by Macquarie
and AMP Capital) (previously appointed as a director of a
responsible entity from 14 May 2004)

Director

DFL board of directors
The DFL board of directors is comprised as follows:

Eric Goodwin — Chairman Independent
Appointed 16 June 2004 (appointed chairman 2 August 2013)
Director and Chairman

Ron Finlay — Director Independent
Appointed 16 June 2004
Director

The Hon. Michael Lee - Director Independent

Appointed 2 August 2013 (in accordance with securityholder
vote on 18 July 2013) (previously appointed as a director of a
DUET responsible entity from 16 June 2004)

Director

Jane Harvey — Director Independent

Appointed 2 August 2013 (in accordance with securityholder
vote on 18 July 2013) (previously appointed as a director of
DUECo from 2 April 2013)

Director

2. Appointment to the boards

From 4 December 2012, securityholders are entitled to vote

on director appointments, re-elections and removals. The first
election of directors was held on 18 July 2013 as part of the
DUET Group structure simpilification. The Macquarie/AMP
Capital nominee director (John Roberts) will retire unless invited
by the Independent Directors to stand for re-election at the 2013
Annual General Meeting to be held on 22 November 2013.

All other directors who have not previously been re-elected by
DUET securityholders are also proposed to stand for re-election
at the 2013 Annual General Meeting.

Prior to 4 December 2012, ASX had granted listing rule

waivers in respect of the rights attaching to the A, B and C
special shares of DIHL (which have now been cancelled as

part of the internalisation of DUET’s management arrangements
on 4 December 2012) to facilitate Macquarie and AMP Capital
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appointed directors for DIHL in the same way as they were
appointed for the responsible entity of the trusts that were
part of the stapled group.

The DUET Boards consider the selection of appropriately
experienced independent directors as an important contribution
to DUET’s performance. From an investor protection viewpoint,
DUET has a majority of independent directors on all of the
DUET boards. Although initially appointed by Macquarie

and AMP Capital, these directors are reputable, appropriately
qualified and experienced business people who satisfy
objective independence criteria described further below.

Details of the appointment arrangements are set out below.

— The board is to comprise at least three directors and not
more than 10 directors
— The Constitution of DUECo, DIHL and DFL contain criteria
regarding the eligibility of directors to the effect that:
— The Chairperson of DIHL and DUECo will be the same
person and cannot be a director of DFL; and
— DFL can have one (but can have no more than one)
director who is also a director of DUECo and/or DIHL
— Independent directors are to comprise a majority of the
board
— The board is to comprise directors with an appropriate range
of qualifications and expertise
— o ensure that the board has the benefit of regular new
input and to avoid the potential for loss of objectivity over
time, independent directors will generally retire after 12
years. An independent director can continue to hold office
after a 12 year term provided their ongoing candidacy is
recommended by the Nomination Committee.

Independence

Independence of directors determined by objective criteria is
acknowledged as being desirable to protect investor interests
and to optimise the financial performance of DUET and returns
to investors.

In determining the status of a director, DUET applies the
standards of independence which are similar to but not the same
as the Principles. Full details of DUET’s independence criteria are
as follows:

An independent director is a director of the responsible entity
and/or special purpose vehicle who is not a member of
management (a non-executive director) and who meets the
following criteria:

— Must be appointed in a non executive capacity and therefore
must not be an employee of any DUET Group entity

— Is not a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Corporations Act) of DUET or an entity holding more than
5% of the voting securities of DUET

— Is not an officer on more than two subsidiary boards of,
or otherwise associated directly with, a securityholder
holding more than 5% of the voting securities of DUET and
must not be a director of the parent entity of any substantial

securityholder or an employee of any entity in a substantial
securityholder group

— s not and has not within the last three years been:
— Employed in an executive capacity by the responsible

entity and/or special purpose vehicle, or
— Adirector of any such entity after ceasing to hold
any such employment

— s not and has not within the last three years been a
principal, director or employee of a material professional
adviser or consultant to DUET. A director who is or has
within the last three years been a principal, director or
employee of a material professional adviser or consultant
must not participate in any consideration of the possible
appointment of the professional adviser or consultant and
will not participate in the provision of any service to DUET

— Is not a material supplier or customer of DUET, or an
officer of, or otherwise associated directly or indirectly
with, a material supplier or customer

— Has no other interest or relationship that could interfere
with the director’s ability to act in the best interests of DUET
and independently of management of DUET.

The boards believe that independence is evidenced by an ability
to constructively challenge and independently contribute to the
work of the board. The above criteria are satisfied if any interest
or relationship does not materially interfere with the exercise

of a director’s independent judgement. Materiality is assessed
having regard to each individual director’s circumstances, the
circumstances of the supplier, customer or advisor and any
other significant relationships with DUET.

The main areas of difference from the independence criteria set
out in the Principles is the ability of independent directors to serve
on up to two separate managed vehicle boards of a substantial
securityholder (eg Macquarie ) but not be on the parent entity
board or be an employee of the substantial securityholder group.
This is considered appropriate because the role on these boards
would be unlikely to encompass decisions of the substantial
securityholder surrounding their holdings in DUET and is not

as significant as to compromise independence.

If any independent director serves on up to two managed vehicle
boards of a substantial securityholder or has been determined

as independent despite not satisfying all of the criteria set out

in the DUET policy they will be noted as such in their description
in this statement. Reasons will be provided for any independence
determination.

Each year Independent directors are required to provide DUET
with written confirmation of their independence status and they
have each undertaken to inform DUET if they cease to satisfy the
DUET independence criteria at any time. The company secretary
also monitors compliance with the DUET independence criteria
and seeks information from the independent directors in this
regard if necessary and reports to the board.

Director selection and diversity

The following guidelines apply to director selection and nomination:

— Integrity

— Reputation and standing in the market

— Particular expertise (sector and functional) and the degree
to which they complement the skill set of the existing
board members

— Contribution to the diversity of the board in particular,
increasing the number of women on the boards and
representation from jurisdictions in which the asset
companies are situated as part of the board renewal
process.

In the case of prospective independent directors, actual (as
prescribed by the above DUET policy definition) and perceived
independence from DUET. Professional intermediaries and/

or industry contacts may be used to identify and/or assess
candidates. A board skills matrix has not been developed

but regard is had to diversity and the appropriate mix of
financial, professional and specific industry skills as part of the
appointment process.

Nomination committee

Each of DUECo, DIHL and DFL have appointed a Nomination
Committee which reviews board composition and succession
planning. Until 30 June 2013, the Nomination Committee
comprised the full board of each entity which comprised

a majority of independent directors. As at August 2013, the
composition of the Nomination Committees of each board
are set out below.

DUECo and DIHL DFL
Emma Stein (chair) Michael Lee (chair)

Doug Halley Eric Goodwin

John Roberts Jane Harvey

Shirley In’t Veld

3. Chairman

The chairman of the DUECo and DIHL board is Doug Halley,
an independent director. The chairman of the DFL board is Eric
Goodwin, an independent director.

In all cases, the chairman does not exercise the role of CEO.
That role is performed by David Bartholomew who was
appointed as CEQO in February 2011. The DUECo, DIHL and DFL
board charters provide that the independent directors of each
entity will separately meet at least once per year in the absence
of management and at other times as they determine.

4. Independent professional advice

The directors of DUECo, DIHL and DFL are entitled to obtain
independent professional advice at the cost of the relevant trust
or company subject to the estimated costs being first approved
by the chairman as reasonable.

5. Board performance

To ensure that the directors of DUECo, DIHL and DFL are
properly performing their duties, the following procedures are in
place:

— Aformal annual performance self-assessment of the boards,
the audit and risk committees and individual directors

— Aformal induction program for directors

— Access by directors to continuing education to update
and enhance their skills and knowledge.

The procedure for evaluation of the boards’ performance is:

— Directors are given the opportunity to discuss individual
performance and feedback on performance via questionnaire
and if necessary the chairman meets with each independent
director to discuss the effectiveness of the board and board
committees as a whole

— The board as a whole discusses and analyses board
and committee performance during the year, including
suggestions for change or improvement, based on the
questionnaire responses and the chairman’s feedback
from conducting separate meetings (if any) with the
independent directors

— If considered appropriate, the Board may appoint an adviser
to assist with the evaluation process.

An evaluation of board performance was undertaken during
the financial year ending 30 June 2013.

What you can find on our website:
A summary of the DUECo, DIHL and DFL Nomination
Committee Charters.

Principle 3: Promote ethical and responsible
decision-making

DUET is committed to being a good corporate citizen and has
a robust framework of policies to achieve this.

Managing conflicts
DUET has established protocols for identifying and managing
conflicts.

In the case of the DUET Boards:

— Board members declare their interests as required under
the Corporations Act, ASX Listing Rules and other general
law requirements
Board members with a material personal interest in a matter
are not present at a Board meeting during the consideration
of the matter and subsequent vote unless the Board
(excluding the relevant Board member) resolves otherwise

— Board members with a conflict not involving a material
personal interest may be required to absent themselves
from the relevant deliberations of the Board.

Personal conflicts that might arise generally for directors and
staff are covered by the Code of Conduct referred to below.
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Ethical conduct

DUET’s Code of Conduct covers DUET’s dealing with
external parties and how it operates internally. The Code sets
the standards for dealing ethically with employees, investors,
customers, regulatory bodies and the financial and wider

community, and the responsibility and accountability of individuals

for reporting and investigating reports of unethical behaviour.
The Code includes whistleblower, anti-corruption and dealing
with governments and anti-money laundering policies.

The Code is periodically reviewed and endorsed by the DUET
Boards. The Code is distributed to all directors and staff and
reinforced at induction and other training programs.

Staff and director trading

A policy on securities dealings is in place under which directors
and staff involved in the management of DUET are restricted in
their ability to deal in DUET stapled securities. Security trading
by DUET directors, officers and staff is permitted only during
four-week special trading windows following the release of
DUET’s half-yearly and yearly financial results, and following
the annual general meeting or lodgement with ASIC and ASX
of a disclosure document for a capital raising or a cleansing
statement for a rights issue.

When the trading window is not opened following results
announcements, pending disclosure of significant transactional
activity being undertaken by DUET, a special four-week trading
window may apply following an ASX release in respect of the
transaction.

Environmental and social responsibility management

DUET’s approach to environmental and social responsibility
management can be found on our website and is set out

on pages 14 to 16 of this report.

Diversity Policy

DUET respects and values diversity in its boards and workforce
at all levels and has established a diversity policy, a summary
of which can be found on our website.

DUET seeks to influence diversity in the group based on the
principles outlined in its diversity policy.

At the utility businesses it invests in, DUET seeks to influence
diversity through board representatives seeking to promote
the implementation of appropriate diversity policies in

these businesses to the extent that they are able under

the co ownership arrangements.

An annual review of diversity will be considered by the DUET
Nomination Committees and boards. This will monitor DUET’s
progress in influencing diversity at the board level, in its
management team and in the workforces of its utility businesses.

The achievement of gender diversity will be measured in the
terms of the advancement of women as follows:

— Increasing the number of women on the DUET boards over
time as part of the board renewal process. In this regard,

as part of DUET Group’s structure simplification, an additional
two women have been appointed to the DUET boards

— Increasing the number of women in senior management
roles within the group and generally in the workforce
of DUETs utility businesses over the next 5 years.

Currently there are three women on the DUET boards and one
woman (company secretary/general counsel role) in a three person
DUET senior management team. Overall there are approximately
45% women in the DUET management team, performing legal,
analyst, financial and support roles.

Diversity policies and initiatives are in place at Multinet, UED
and DBP and further detail is included in the environmental
and social responsibility section of the Annual Report.

What you can find on our website:

— A summary of the code of conduct

— A summary of the main provisions of the securities
(windows) trading policy

— A description of DUET’s environmental and social
responsibility management policy

— A summary of the diversity policy.

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

1. Audit and risk committees

Each of DUECo, DIHL and DFL has appointed an audit and

risk committee which complies with the requirements of the

Principles. They are currently comprised as follows:

Meetings Meetings
DUECo and DIHL attended' DFL? attended
Duncan Sutherland 3 Jane Harvey (chair)® -
(chair)
Emma Stein 3 Eric Goodwin 3
Ron Finlay 3 Michael Lee 3
Shirley In’t Veld?® - Ron Finlay 3

1. Applies to DIHL only as DUECo only became part of DUET Group on 1 August 2013.
DIHL and DUET Management Company 1 Limited (part of the stapled structure prior
to 1 August 2013) held 3 Audit and Risk Committee meetings during financial year
ended 30 June 2013.

2. DFL held 3 Audit and Risk Committee meetings during financial year ended 30 June 2013.

3. Shirley In't Veld and Jane Harvey were not eligible to attend any Audit and Risk Committee
meetings held during financial year ended 30 June 2013.

The qualifications of the members of each audit and risk committee
can be found on the DUET website and in the Annual Report.

2. Audit and risk committee charters

In establishing its audit and risk committee, each of DUECo,
DIHL and DFL has established a charter under which the
committee is to operate. The charter is materially the same
for each company.

The responsibilities of the audit and risk committee under each
charter in relation to financial reporting are to:

— Review and report to the board on the financial statements
and related notes, and on the external auditor’s audit of the
financial statements and the report thereon

— Recommend to the board the appointment and removal
of the external auditor, review the terms of its engagement
including arrangements for the rotation of external audit
partners, and the scope and quality of the audit

— Monitor auditor independence. The audit and risk committee

meets with the external auditor at least twice a year and
more frequently if required.

In addition, the DFL Audit and Risk Committee is responsible
for monitoring compliance with the Trust’s compliance plan.

Details of the risk monitoring duties of the audit and risk
committee are set out in the Principle 7 commentary.

3. Auditor independence

The audit and risk committees have adopted a policy which
includes the following to ensure the independence of the
external auditor:

— The external auditor must remain independent from DUET
at all times and must comply with APES 110: Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants pertaining to financial
independence, and business and employment relationships

— The external auditor must monitor its independence and
report to the board every six months that it has remained
independent

— Significant permissible non-audit assignments awarded
to the external auditor must be approved in advance by the
audit and risk committees (or their respective chairperson
between meetings)

— All non-audit assignments are to be reported to the audit
and risk committees every six months

— The DUET audit engagement partner and review partner
must be rotated every five years unless extended in
accordance with the Corporations Act.

The DUECo, DIHL and DFL boards and audit and risk
committees are of the view that, at the present time, Ernst

& Young is best placed to provide DUET’s audit services. Ernst
& Young is a top tier professional services firm and has provided

audit services to DUET since its establishment and is familiar with

its structure and businesses. Mr Kester Brown of Ernst & Young
has been DUET Group’s audit engagement partner since 2008.
In light of the internalisation of the DUET Group’s management
arrangements in December 2012 and the recent DUET Group
structure simplification, the DUET Group board’s each resolved
to extend Mr Brown'’s appointment as audit partner for a further
one year until completion of the audit for FY2014. The DUET
Group boards considered that extending Mr Brown’s audit term
would not give rise to any conflict of interest and would aid in
the handover of the audit to Mr Brown'’s replacement given that
Mr Brown retains specialist knowledge of the DUET Group and
its activities which should enhance the quality of the FY2013
and FY2014 audit.

The auditor is required to be independent from DUET. Ernst
& Young meets this requirement. The auditor attends DUET’s

annual general meetings and is available to answer security holder

questions on the conduct of the audit, and the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report.

What you can find on our website:

— The audit and risk committee charters for DUECo,
DIHL and DFL

— The auditor independence policy.

Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure

[t is DUET’s policy to provide timely, open and accurate
information to all stakeholders, including investors, regulators and
the wider investment community. Under the terms of the stapling
deed, DUECo, DIHL and DFL are obliged to exchange relevant
information and coordinate ASX releases and financial reporting.

DUET has an external communications policy which includes
policies and procedures in relation to disclosure and compliance
with the disclosure requirements in the ASX Listing Rules.

The procedures include dealing with potentially price-sensitive
information which includes referral to the CEO and company
secretary/general counsel and sometimes the DUET boards for
a determination as to disclosure required. The ASX liaison person
is the company secretary.

What you can find on our website:
— External communications policy summary.

Principle 6: Respect the rights of shareholders

DUET has developed a security holder communications policy.
The cornerstone of this policy is the delivery of timely and
relevant information as described below.

Investors are provided with an annual report and financial
statements either by accessing DUET’s website or in hard copy,
if specifically requested, which keep them informed of DUET’s
performance and operations. Investors are notified in writing
when this material becomes available and are provided with
details of how to access it.

DUET’s policy is to lodge market-sensitive information with the
ASX and place it on the DUET website, including annual and
interim result announcements and analyst presentations, as
soon as practically possible. DUET’s website (www.duet.net.au)
contains recent announcements, presentations, past and current
reports and distributions to security holders, security price data
and answers to frequently asked questions. Investors may also
register here to receive email copies of DUET’s significant ASX
announcements.

Domestic investor roadshows are held regularly throughout
Australia. International roadshows are also held for institutional
investors. Where they contain new information, analyst and
roadshow presentations are released to the ASX and included
on the DUET website.

In addition to the statutory reporting, DUET also produces a
Management Information Report (MIR) which includes a detailed
asset information pack (DAIP) which is updated semi-annually.
The MIR and DAIP aim to provide transparency regarding the
operating performance of DUET Group’s businesses. The MIR
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is released to the ASX at the same time as the statutory
accounts and consists of detailed business descriptions and
corresponding financial outputs and key operating statistics.

Meetings of the four DUET entities are convened at least once
a year, usually in November. DUECo, DIHL and DFL are required
to hold an annual general meeting (AGM) each year.

In the case of the Trust, which is not required under the
Corporations Act to hold an AGM, this is usually an informal
annual meeting held at the same time as the DFL AGM unless
there is formal Trust business to be considered. Presentations
by the chairman and CEQ at the AGM are webcast.

For formal meetings, an explanatory memorandum on the
resolutions is included with the notice of meeting.

Enquire of management and the external auditor about

significant risks or exposures and assess the steps

management has taken to minimise such risk to DUET

Consider and review with the external auditor:

— The adequacy of DUET’s internal controls including
computerised information system controls and security

— Any related significant findings and recommendations
of the external auditor on the matter of internal controls
together with management’s responses thereto

Monitor and review (at least annually) the effectiveness

of DUET’s operational risk management framework and

compliance with key risk management policies

Review the scope of any internal audit to be conducted

and the independence of internal audit team.

— A description of DUET’s risk management policies and
framework

— A description of DUET’s environmental and social
responsibility management policy

— Adescription of DUET’s work health and safety risk
management policy

— The compliance plan for the Trust.

Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and responsibly

Below is a brief description of remuneration arrangements in
relation to DUET staff and also the fees paid to DUET external
directors. Full details and a discussion of DUET remuneration
arrangements, alignment of interest staff incentives are set out
in the annual Remuneration Report.

1. Staff remuneration

None of the DUECo, DIHL or DFL directors are entitled to DUET
options or securities or to retirement benefits as part of their
remuneration package.

3. Remuneration committee

Each of DUECo, DIHL and DFL have appointed a Remuneration
Committee which complies with the requirements of the
Principles.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
financial year ending 30 June 2013 were:

DIHL DMC1' DFL
Emma Stein (chair) Emma Stein (chair)  Eric Goodwin (chair)
Doug Halley Doug Halley Doug Halley

John Roberts? John Roberts? Scott Davies?

DUET staff also oversee DUET’s risk management framework by
monitoring the Trust compliance plan and ensuring that there is
an underlying compliance framework including detailed policies
and procedures, staff training and supervision and appropriate
compliance reporting.

Unless specifically stated in the notice of meeting, all holders
of fully paid securities are eligible to vote on all resolutions.

Prior to 4 December 2012, staff were employed by entities

in the Macquarie or AMP Capital groups and made available

to DUET under formal resourcing arrangements. Further details
on this structure were set out in the DUET 2012 Annual Report.
As part of the internalisation of the management of DUET on

4 December 2012, certain personnel were transferred to DIHL
(being one of the DUET Group stapled entities). DUET staff,
including the CEO and CFO, are now employed by DIHL and

Ron Finlay Michael Lee Ron Finlay
Duncan Sutherland

In the event that security holders cannot attend formal
meetings they are able to lodge a proxy in accordance with
the Corporations Act. Proxy forms can be mailed, lodged by
facsimile or captured via the registry provider’s online proxy
lodgement portal.

1. DUET Management Company 1 Limited was part of the stapled structure prior to

1 August 2013.
. . . . 2. John Roberts and Scott Davies were not members of the Remuneration Committee
Until April 2013, DFL engaged a compliance committee until 4 December 2012,

comprised as follows: : .
The members of the Remuneration Committees as at August

What you can find on our website: — Ray Kellerman, Chairman, External made available to the other DUET entities under an internal 2013 are:
— External communications policy summary — Fiona Dixon, External Resources Agreement
— The latest annual report and full financial statements — David Bartholomew, DUET. ' DUECo and DIHL DFL
—  Histori i DUET’s remuneration system has been designed to balance
Historical Management Information Reports (MIR) The external compliance committee members must satisfy the y 9 Shirley In’t Veld (chair) Michael Lee (chair)

— Contact details for DUET’s registry provider. risk and return that aligns the interests of the management

Brinciole 7: Recoanise and manace risk independence criteria set out in s601JB(2) of the Corporations Act. team and DUET securityholders. Al staff are entitled to short Doug Halley Eric Goodwin
e J J od 1 Given that the DFL board is comprised of a majority of term incentives of up to specified percentages of their base John Roberts Jane Harvey
Each of DUECo, DIHL and DFL have formalised risk Emma Stein

independent directors and in light of the recent internalisation
of DUET Group’s management arrangements, in April 2013 the
Audit and Risk Committee took on the role of overseeing the
Trust’s compliance plan and quarterly reporting.

remuneration package, subject to the achievement of certain
qualitative and quantitative targets. The CEO and CFO will also
be eligible to participate in a long term incentive scheme with
performance based hurdles based on a total securityholder
return basis over three years to align their interests with
securityholders. The long term incentives will be notionally
invested in DUET securities so that the amount varies as if they
were actually invested in the securities although any payment
remains subject to satisfaction of the performance hurdles over
the three year period.

management policies. Compliance with these policies is

monitored by their respective audit and risk committees. The qualifications of the members of each Remuneration

Committee can be found on the DUET website and in the

Risks are managed through the risk management framework
9 9 9 Annual Report.

in place and include: During the financial year ending 30 June 2013, DUET was

subject to periodic review conducted by Macquarie’s internal
audit division. For the financial year ending 30 June 2014, DUET
has engaged Deloitte to conduct periodic internal audits.

The Remuneration Committees have responsibility for providing
advice and recommendations to the Board on independent
director remuneration and review policies. Senior executive
remuneration is considered by the DIHL Remuneration
Committee (which is the employing entity in the DUET Group).
The DIHL Remuneration Committee also provides advice and
recommendations to the Board on:

— Investment risk

— Regulatory and reporting risks

— Financial risks (such as liquidity, interest rate, currency,
investment, credit)

— Employment risks

— Legalrisks (such as contract enforceability, covenants,
litigation)

— Compliance risks

Each of DUET’s businesses maintains its own risk management
framework and supporting infrastructure to manage its own
risk. DUETs ability to control or influence this framework and
infrastructure differs based on DUET’s level of ownership and
control. It is DUET’s policy to confirm that each business has

This overall approach to remuneration is considered appropriate
as the incentive schemes reward performance, and performance-

based remuneration is aligned with securityholders’ interests. — The company’s overall remuneration policy

— Operational risks (such as people, processes, infrastructure, . . . . L o ) ) — Incentive, retention and termination policies
) . an appropriate risk management framework in place to assist DUET holds its investments in its businesses through equity .
technology, systems, outsourcing and geographic coverage) : . L . . . ) ) ) — Superannuation arrangements
. o the business to effectively manage its risks. During the year interests in special purpose project vehicles. Most of these . ;
—  Environmental and social risks management has reported to the audit and risk committees as hicles have thei n internal management paid for at th —  Recruitment, succession and development programs
— Occupational health and safety risks 9 P venicles have their own internal management paict for at the — Performance review procedures.

to the effectiveness of DUET’s management of its material risks.

In addition, the DFL and DIHL boards have received assurance
from the CEO and CFO that their declaration under s295A of

the Corporations Act 2001 is founded on a sound system of risk
management and internal control and that the system is operating
in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks.

business level. Where DUET staff are required to serve as
directors on the boards of these vehicles, or are seconded
to them from time to time, any fees paid in respect of these
arrangements are paid to DUET.

— Project risks

— Business performance risks
— Reputation risks

— Strategic risks.

What you can find on our website:
— The DUET annual Remuneration Report.
— A summary of the DUECo, DIHL and DFL Remuneration

. . Committee Charters.
2. Director remuneration

Since December 2012, all director fees are borne by DUET
securityholders.

As part of its risk monitoring duties each audit and risk

committee is required to: What you can find on our website:
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DISCLAIMER

DUET Group comprises DUET Company Limited (DUECo),
DUET Investment Holdings Limited (DIHL) and DUET
Finance Limited AFSL 269287 (DFL) in its personal capacity
and as responsible entity of DUET Finance Trust ARSN

109 363 135 (DFT).

Stapling

In accordance with its requirements in respect of stapled
securities, the ASX reserves the right (but without limiting its
absolute discretion) to remove DUECo, DIHL, DFL and DFT,

or all four, from the official list of the ASX if, while the stapling
arrangements apply, the securities in DUECo, DIHL, DFL or
DFT cease to be stapled together or one equity securities are
issued by DUECo, DIHL, DFL or DFT to equivalent securities in
the other entities.

Advice warning

The information in this annual report is given in good faith
and derived from sources believed to be accurate at this
date but no warranty of accuracy or reliability is given and no
responsibility arising in any other way including by reason of
negligence for errors or omissions is accepted by DUECo,
DIHL or DFL or their respective officers.

This report is not an offer or invitation for subscription or
purchase of or a recommendation of securities. This report is
general advice and does not take into account the investment
objectives, financial situation and particular needs of the
investor. Before making an investment in DUET, the investor
or prospective investor should consider whether such an
investment is appropriate to their particular investment

needs, objectives and financial circumstances and consult an
investment adviser if necessary.

US Restrictions

Each holder of DUET securities that is in the United States
ora U.S. Person is required to be a Qualified Institutional
Buyer (QIB) (as defined in Rule 144A of the US Securities Act
of 1933) or Qualified Purchaser (QP) (as defined in Section
2(a)(51) of the US Investment Company Act of 1940) and the
rules thereunder at the time of the acquisition of any stapled
securities of the DUET Group, and is required to make the
representations in the Subscription Agreement as of the time it
acquired the applicable stapled securities.

The DUET stapled securities can only be resold or transferred
in a regular brokered transaction on the ASX in accordance
with Rule 903 or 904 of Regulation S of the US Securities Act,

where neither it nor any person acting on its behalf knows, or
has reason to know, that the sale has been pre-arranged with,
or the purchaser is, in the United States or a U.S. Person (eg
no pre-arranged trades (“special crossing”) with U.S. Persons
or other off-market transactions).

To the maximum extent permitted by law, each member of the
DUET Group reserves the right to (i) request any person that
they deem to be in the United States or a U.S. Person, who
was not at the time of acquisition of the stapled securities a
QIB/QP, to sell its stapled securities, (i) refuse to record any
subsequent sale or transfer of stapled securities to a person
in the United States or a U.S. Person, and (i) take such other
action as they deem necessary or appropriate to enable
each member of the DUET Group to maintain the exception
from registration under Section 3(c)(7) of the US Investment
Company Act.

28  DUET Group Annual Report 2013

Financial report

The DUET consolidated financial report has been prepared to
enable DFL as responsible entity, and DUECO and DIHL, to
comply with their obligations under the Corporations Act and
to ensure compliance with the ASX Listing Rules and satisfy
the requirements of the Australian accounting standards in
relation to stapled structures. The responsibility for preparation
of the concise financial report and any financial information
contained in this annual report rests solely with the directors of
DUECO, DIHL and DFL.

Complaints handling

A formal complaint handling procedure is in place for DUET.
DFL is a member of the Financial Ombudsman Service.
Complaints should in the first instance be directed to DFL. If
you have any enquiries or complaints, please contact:

Investor Relations Manager, DUET
Level 15

55 Hunter Street

Sydney NSW 2000

or

GPO Box 5282
Sydney NSW 2001

Telephone
Within Australia: 1800 005 049
Outside Australia: (612) 8224 2701

Facsimile: (612) 8224 2799

DUET’s ongoing commitment to your privacy

We understand the importance you place on your privacy and
are committed to protecting and maintaining the confidentiality
of the personal information you provide to us.

DUET has adopted a privacy policy. For further information,
visit the DUET website at www.duet.net.au or contact DUET
Investor Relations on 1800 005 049 or from outside Australia
on (612) 8224 2701.
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DUET Entities

DUET Company Limited
(ABN 93 163 100 061) (DUECO0)

DUET Investment Holdings Limited
(ABN 22 120 456 573) (DIHL)

DUET Finance Limited
(ABN 15 108 014 062) (AFSL 269287) (DFL)

in its personal capacity and
as responsible entity of
DUET Finance Trust (ARSN 109 363 135)

Level 15
55 Hunter Street
Sydney NSW 2000

or

GPO Box 5282
Sydney NSW 2001

Telephone
(612) 8224 2701 or
1800 005 049

Facsimile
(612) 8224 2799

Website
www.duet.net.au

Registry

Computershare Investor Services
Pty Limited

GPO Box 2975

Melbourne VIC 3001

or

Level 4
60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Telephone
(613) 9415 4189 or
1800 009 874

Facsimile
(613) 9473 2500
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At 30 June 2013 the DUET Group comprised DUET Management Company 1 Limited (ABN 99 108 013 672) (DMC1) (AFSL 269286)

in its personal capacity and as a Responsible Entity for Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.1 (DUETT) (ARSN 109 363 037)

(ABN 83 495 791 796), DUET Finance Limited (DFL) (previously DUET Management Company 2 Limited (DMC2)) (ABN 15 108 014 062)
(AFSL 269287) in its personal capacity and as Responsible Entity for DUET Finance Trust (DFT) (previously Diversified Utility and Energy Trust
No.2 (DUET2)) (ARSN 109 363 135) (ABN 85 482 841 876) and Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No. 3 (DUET3) (ARSN 124 997 986)
(ABN 42 998 980 995) and DUET Investment Holdings Limited (DIHL) (ABN 22 120 456 573) and its controlled entities. In combination
DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DMC1, DFL and DIHL referred to as “DUET” or “DUET Group”. DUET may refer to any entity of the DUET Group or all
of them or any combination thereof.

This report is not an offer or invitation for subscription or purchase of or a recommendation of securities. It does not take into account

the investment objectives, financial situation and particular needs of the investor. Before making an investment in DUET, the investor or
prospective investor should consider whether such an investment is appropriate to their particular investment needs, objectives and financial
circumstances and consult an investment adviser if necessary.
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Explanation of the Financial Report

As at 30 June 2013, the DUET Group comprised DUET Management Company 1 Limited (RE1 or
DMC1) (previously AMPCI Macquarie Infrastructure Management No.1 Limited) in its personal
capacity and as responsible entity of Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.1 (DUET1), DUET
Finance Limited (RE2 or DFL) (previously DUET Management Company 2 Limited (DMC2) and
AMPCI Macquarie Infrastructure Management No.2 Limited) in its personal capacity and as
responsible entity of DUET Finance Trust (DFT) (previously Diversified Utility and Energy Trust
No.2 (DUET2)) and Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.3 (DUET3) and DUET Investment
Holdings Limited (DIHL) and their subsidiaries (together DUET).

A summarised structure of DUET and its investments at 30 June 2013 is illustrated below.

Responsible Entity for
DUET1

30%

20%

DFL

Debtinvestments held by DUET1, DFT and DUET3

Responsible Entity for
DFT and DUET3

Stapled Entities

On 1 August 2013, the DUET Group structure simplification was implemented. Refer to ‘Significant
Changes in State of Affairs” on page 10.

33%

Minority equityinterests held by DUET1, DFT and DIHL
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DUET consolidates its interest in United Energy Distribution Holdings Limited and its controlled
entities (UEDH or United Energy), Multinet Group Holdings Limited and its controlled entities (MGH
or Multinet Gas), the Dampier Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline Trust and its controlled entities (DBP
or Dampier Bunbury Pipeline) and Dampier Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline Services Co Nominees
Pty Limited and its controlled entities (DBP Services Co). Accordingly the results, assets and
liabilities of these entities are consolidated into the DUET Group Financial Report.

In accordance with AASB127 Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements, DUET1 has been
identified as the parent of the consolidated Group consisting of DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DIHL,
DMC1, DFL and their subsidiaries.

Financial Statements for DFT, DUET3, DIHL and its subsidiaries, DMC1 and DFL for the year
ended 30 June 2013 have also been presented in this report jointly, as permitted by ASIC class
order 05/642 and 06/441.

In the Financial Report for DUET Group, the column presented first serves as a summary of the
financial performance and financial position of DUET Group as a whole, while the other columns of
the Financial Report provide the individual entity Financial Reports of DFT, DUET3, DIHL Group,
DMC1 and DFL.

Directors’ Reports — DUET1, DFT, DUETS3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL

DUET Management Company 1 Limited (DMC1 or RE1) acts as responsible entity for Diversified
Utility and Energy Trust No.1 (DUET1).

DUET Finance Limited (DFL) (previously DUET Management Company 2 Limited (DMC2 or RE2))
acts as responsible entity for DUET Finance Trust (DFT) (previously Diversified Utility and Energy
Trust No.2 (DUET2)) and Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.3 (DUET3).

The directors of DMC1 submit the following report for DMC1 and DUETL1 for the year ended 30
June 2013.

The directors of DFL submit the following report for DFL, DFT and DUETS3 for the year ended 30
June 2013.

The directors of DIHL submit the following report for DIHL for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Principal Activities and review of operations

DUET Group owns controlling interests in energy utility assets in Australia with strong competitive
positions and predictable cash flows.

The 2013 financial year culminated in completion of the internalisation of DUET’s management
team and the group structure simplification project which was approved by stapled securityholders
in July 2013.

With the completion of these projects together with the de-gearing and portfolio restructure
completed in 2011 and 2012, the DUET Group now presents a simpler investment proposition to
investors.

Consistent with DUET's focus on delivering stable and predictable returns to its stapled
securityholders, DUET’s boards have provided 2014 financial year distribution guidance of 17
cents per stapled security.

In terms of the Group’s statutory results, EBITDA of $736.3 million was up 4%. After backing out
interest income earned in the period, net interest expense was down 6%. The net result after tax
was a profit of $19.6 million, down 55%. It is important to note that this result included $111.2
million of one-off costs primarily associated with the internalisation of management successfully
completed in December 2012 and our corporate simplification initiative. The net result before
significant items, which included those one-off costs, was $81.7 million, up 17% on the prior period.

Directors Names (and period of service)
The following persons held office as directors of DMC1 during the year:

- Douglas Halley (appointed Chairman 4 December 2012)
- The Hon. Michael Lee

- Emma Stein

- John Roberts

- Shemara Wikramanayake (alternate for John Roberts)

- Philip Garling (resigned 4 December 2012)
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Directors Names (and period of service) (continued)

The following persons held office as directors of DFL during the year:

- Douglas Halley (appointed Chairman 4 December 2012)

- Ron Finlay

- Eric Goodwin

- Duncan Sutherland

- Scott Davies (appointed 4 December 2012)

- Michael Bessell (alternate for Scott Davies — appointed 7 December 2012)
- John Roberts (resigned 4 December 2012)

- Philip Garling (resigned 4 December 2012)

The following persons held office as directors of DIHL during the year:

- Douglas Halley (appointed Chairman 4 December 2012)
- Ron Finlay

- Emma Stein

- John Roberts

- Shemara Wikramanayake (alternate for John Roberts)

- Philip Garling (resigned 4 December 2012)

Following the DUET Group structure simplification, DUET Company Limited (DUECo0) became part
of the DUET stapled group. Refer to ‘Significant Changes in State of Affairs” on page 10.

From 2 August 2013, the following persons held office as directors of DIHL and DUECo to the date
of this report:

- Douglas Halley (Chairman)

- Ron Finlay

- Emma Stein

- Duncan Sutherland

- Shirley In't Veld

- John Roberts

- Shemara Wikramanayake (alternate for John Roberts)

From 2 August 2013, the following persons held office as directors of DFL to the date of this report:

- Eric Goodwin (Chairman)
- Ron Finlay

- Michael Lee

- Jane Harvey

Distributions and Dividends

The distribution for the year ended 30 June 2013 was 16.500 cents per stapled security (2012:
16.000 cents per stapled security).

An interim distribution for the year ended 30 June 2013 of 8.250 cents per stapled security was
paid on 12 February 2013 (2012: 8.000 cents per stapled security). This consisted of 3.388 cents
per unit from DUET1 (2012: 3.881 cents per unit), 3.481 cents per unit from DFT (2012: 4.119
cents per unit) and 1.381 cents per unit from DUET3 (2012: nil cents per unit).

A final distribution of 8.250 cents per stapled security was paid on 13 August 2013 (2012: 8.000
cents per stapled security). This consisted of 3.487 cents per unit from DUET1 (2012: 2.685 cents
per unit), 4.176 cents per unit from DFT (2012: 3.812 cents per unit) and 0.587 cents per unit from
DUET3 (2012: 1.503 cents per unit).
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Review and Results of Operations

The performances of the DUET Group and entities comprising the group for the year ended 30

June 2013 was as follows:

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Review and Results of Operations (continued)

The DUET Group profit for the year to 30 June 2013 of $19.6 million (2012: profit of $44.0 million)
includes significant expenses related to the internalisation of DUET management which was
approved by securityholders at a general meeting on 23 November 2012, and additional significant
items as listed below.

The exclusion of the significant items results in a profit of $81.7 million for the year to 30 June 2013
(2012: profit of $69.6 million).

DUET Group DUET Group

1Jul 12 1Jul11

-30Jun 13 - 30 Jun 12

Significant (losses)/gains $°000 $'000
Expenses relating to internalisation and group structure simplification (111,243) -
Mark to market on derivatives/unrealised foreign exchange gains/(losses) 49,104 (17,640)
Accounting profit on sale of WAGN - 44,424
Accounting profit on sale of Duquesne, excluding transfer of reserves - 2,380
Transfer from reserves on sale of Duquesne - (38,122)
Performance fee - (16,636)
Total significant gains/(losses) (62,139) (25,594)

DUET Group DFT DUET3 DIHL Group DMC1 DFL
1Jul 12 1Jul 12 1Jul 12 1Jul 12 1Jul 12 1Jul 12
-30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Revenue and other
income 1,313,386 77,416 19,852 7,320 2,852 3,611
Profit/(loss) for the year 19,593 39,708 6,658 (29,977) 510 674
Profit/(loss) attributable
to securityholders 19,593 39,708 6,658 (29,977) 510 674
Earnings used in
calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per
stapled
security/unit/share (10,774) 39,708 6,658 (29,977) 510 674
Basic earnings/(loss) per
stapled
security/unit/share® (0.94)c 3.47¢c 0.58¢c (2.62)c - -
Diluted earnings/(loss)
per stapled
security/unit/share™ (0.94)c 3.47¢c 0.58¢ (2.62)c - -
Basic loss per stapled
security/unit/share
based on consolidated
profit for the year 1.71¢c nla n/a nla nla nla
DUET Group DFT DUET3 DIHL Group DMC1 DFL
1Jul 11 1Jul11 1Jul 11 1Jul11 1Jul11 1Jul 11
-30Jun12 -30Junl2 -30Junl2 -30Junl2 -30Junl2 -30Jdunl2
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Revenue and other income 1,222,080 71,401 22,896 633 15,302 20,347
Profit/(loss) for the year 43,997 (8,882) 20,617 (41,618) (294) (344)
Profit/(loss) attributable to
securityholders 47,549 (8,882) 20,617 (41,618) (294) (344)
Earnings used in calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per
stapled security/unit/share® 77,432 (8,882) 20,617 (41,618) (294) (344)
Basic earnings per stapled
security/unit/share®” 7.23c (0.83)c 1.93c (3.89)c (0.02)c (0.02)c
Diluted earnings/(loss) per
stapled security/unit/share®™ 7.23c (0.83)c 1.93c (3.89)c (0.02)c (0.02)c
Basic earnings per stapled
security/unit/share based on
consolidated profit for the year 4.11c n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

“DUET earnings per share include earnings of DUET1 only and has been calculated in accordance with AASB 133
Earnings per Share. DUET1 was identified as parent of DUET on transition to AIFRS.

Dampier Bunbury Pipeline

During the year under review, DBP transmitted 309 PJ (2012: 319 PJ) of gas.

DBP Services Co

DBP Services Co owns two transmission pipelines, a gas plant, a gas reservoir and LPG storage
facilities, all located south of Onslow in Western Australia.

United Energy

During the year under review, United Energy distributed 7,961 GWh (2012: 8,135 GWh) of
electricity.

Multinet
During the year under review, Multinet distributed 56.4 PJ (2012: 56.1 PJ) of gas.

Key risks and uncertainties
The DUET Group has a structured and proactive approach to understanding and managing risk.

The key focus of the risk management approach is to ensure alignment of strategy, processes,
people, technology and knowledge, and evaluate and manage the uncertainties and opportunities
faced by the DUET Group.

Set out below are summaries of the key risks of which we are aware which may materially impact
the execution and achievement of the business strategies and prospects for the DUET Group in
future financial years. These key risks should not be taken to be a complete or exhaustive list of
the risks and uncertainties associated with the DUET Group. Many of the risks are outside the
control of the Directors. There can be no guarantee that DUET Group will achieve its stated
objectives, that it will meet trading performance or financial results guidance that it may provide to
the market, or that any forward looking statements contained in this report will be realised or
otherwise eventuate.
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Key risks and uncertainties (continued)
Workplace Health and Safety Risk

Failure to implement effective workplace health and safety (WHS) and public safety procedures at
DUET Group’s asset companies give risk to WHS and/or public safety risks which in turn may
create reputational or regulatory risk.

DUET Group manages these risks by developing appropriate WHS policies, training and reporting
in accordance with the required legislation. Furthermore, the asset companies employ WHS
expertise to ensure dedicated resources are available to manage these risks. Senior management
and internal audit regularly visit the asset companies to further monitor WHS and public safety
initiatives.

Regulatory risk

The DUET Group operates in regulated industries and carries out its business activities under
various permits, licences, approvals and authorities from regulatory bodies. Regulatory bodies are
responsible for setting tariffs, which directly impact a significant proportion of the DUET Group’s
revenue and therefore any adverse change to regulatory tariffs would impact the DUET Group’s
profitability. In addition, if any permits, licences, approvals or authorities are revoked, or if the
DUET Group breaches its permitted operating conditions, this would adversely impact the DUET
Group’s operations and profitability.

DUET Group’s operating businesses must satisfy a prudency test for certain expenditure to be
recovered through the regulatory revenue mechanism. There is a risk that despite expenditure
being incurred by DUET’s operating businesses, the recovery of this expenditure is disallowed by
the relevant regulatory body.

The regulatory compliance and network performance risks of DUET Group are actively managed
drawing on the Group’s highly experienced in-house regulatory experts and engineers. Regulatory
risk is also mitigated by the use of industry experts when the Group prepares for regulatory price
reviews. Other measures employed include the use of KPI monitoring of network performance,
equipment condition monitoring and the implementation of annual asset management plans.

Interest rate risk

There is a risk that changes in the DUET Group’s credit ratings, prevailing market interest rates
and the strength of capital markets will influence the DUET Group’s interest costs and its ability to
refinance debt respectively.

The DUET Group has a structured and proactive approach to understanding and managing interest
rate risk. The Group focuses on maintaining and monitoring base interest rate hedging
commitments and diversified funding sources with reputable finance institutions both locally and
globally.

Tax

The risk that changes in tax law (including goods and services taxes and stamp duties), or changes
in the way tax laws are interpreted in the various jurisdictions in which the DUET Group operates,
may impact the tax liabilities of the DUET Group and the assets in which it holds an interest.

DUET Group seeks to manage this risk by monitoring changes in legislation, utilising external tax
and legal advisors. The Group also employs a team of highly experienced qualified accounting and
tax experts within each asset company which regularly monitors the taxation legislation relevant to
the company’s operations.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Key risks and uncertainties (continued)
Climate

Changes in weather patterns as a result of climate change could have an adverse effect on the
DUET Group’s operating businesses increasing both capital and operating costs. Volumes carried
on the networks may vary due to weather conditions (as well as due to other factors such as
changes in industrial use, seasonality, general economic conditions, use of competing sources of

energy).

DUET Group undertakes significant capital expenditure on its assets to minimise the impact of
climate-related factors.

General economic conditions

The DUET Group‘'s operating and financial performance is influenced by a variety of general
economic and business conditions, including interest rates, exchange rates, commaodity prices,
ability to access funding, oversupply and demand conditions, government fiscal, monetary and
regulatory policies, changes in gross domestic product and economic growth, employment levels
and consumer spending, consumer and investment sentiment and property market volatility.
Prolonged deterioration in these conditions, including an increase in interest rates, an increase in
the cost of capital or a decrease in consumer demand, could have a materially adverse impact on
the DUET Group’s operating and financial performance.

To the extent possible, DUET Group manages these risks by incorporating a consideration of
general economic conditions into its regulatory submissions and financial plans.
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Significant Changes in State of Affairs

Internalisation of Management

On 31 July 2012, DUET announced that it had reached agreement with AMP Capital and
Macquarie Capital Group (Macquarie) to internalise the management of DUET (the Internalisation
Proposal).

Securityholders voted in favour of the Internalisation Proposal at the securityholder meeting held on
23 November 2012. The internalisation was implemented on 4 December 2012.

The DUET Group’s management is now directly employed by DIHL.

As part of the internalisation, the DUET Group acquired the responsible entities, RE1 and RE2
from AMP Capital and Macquarie and stapled to the previous stapled securities to form a six-
stapled structure.

Total consideration of $86.0 million (excl. GST) was paid to AMP Capital and Macquarie. Of the
total consideration, $82.0 million was applied by AMP Capital and Macquarie to subscribe for
41,578,144 stapled securities in the DUET Group at $1.972 per stapled security. A share sale cash
payment of $4.0 million was also paid, being a payment equivalent to the management fee for the
period 1 October 2012 to 4 December 2012.

Refer to the DUET Group Notices of Meeting and Explanatory Memorandum dated 10 October
2012 for further information which is available on the DUET Group website.

DUET Group Simplification Proposal

On 31 May 2013, DUET announced the conclusion of the review announced on 31 July 2012 with
a proposed simplification of the Group’s structure (the Simplification Proposal).

Securityholders voted in favour of the Simplification Proposal at the securityholder meeting held on
18 July 2013. The Simplification Proposal was implemented on 1 August 2013.

The Proposal has reduced the number of stapled entities from six to four and created a corporate
arm (DIHL and DUECo0) controlling the Group’s equity interests in its operating businesses and a
funding arm (DFT and DFL) holding intra-group debt investments.

On 1 August 2013, securityholders have exchanged all of their units in DUET3 for additional units
in DFT, and all of their units in DUET1 and shares in DMC1 for shares in DUET Company Limited
(DUECo0). DUECoO is an Australian public company which was incorporated on 2 April 2013 and on
1 August 2013, became part of the DUET stapled group.

As part of this transaction, the names of DMC2 and DUET2 were changed to DUET Finance
Limited (DFL) and DUET Finance Trust (DFT) respectively.

Refer to the DUET Group Notices of Meeting and Meeting Booklet dated 31 May 2013 for further
information which is available on the DUET Group website.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs (continued)
Asset acquisition and divestment

On 26 September 2012, DUET Group acquired the remaining 20% minority interest in the issued
capital of DBP Services Co, bringing the DUET Group’s aggregated ownership in DBP Services Co
to 100%. DUET Group then capitalised DBP Services Co with an equity subscription of $1.2 million
to fund certain asset purchases and provide working capital.

United Energy issued $65 million Medium Term notes

On 21 August 2012, United Energy announced that it had issued $65 million via its medium term
note program with a maturity of April 2017. The amount raised was applied to refinance a portion of
a $260 million short term debt facility, drawn to $92 million which matures in April 2014, and for
general corporate purposes.

United Energy $400 million Bank Debt Facility

On 11 April 2013, United Energy announced a contract close of a $400 million five-year bank debt
facility primarily established to refinance part of their 2014 calendar year term debt maturities.
United Energy $125 million Bank Debt Facility

On 1 May 2013, United Energy announced a financial close of a $125 million five-year bank debt
facility with Westpac Banking Corporation which will be applied to refinance part of their 2014
calendar year term debt maturities.

DBP $155 million Bank Debt Facility

On 2 October 2012, DBP reached contract close of a $155 million, seven-year bank debt facility.
The amount raised was applied to repay part of DBP’s $325 million floating rate notes which were
due to mature in April 2013.

DBP $300 million Medium Term notes

On 2 November 2012, DBP priced a $300 million issue of fixed rate seven-year medium term
notes. The funds raised were applied to refinance the remaining $170 million of bonds maturing in
April 2013 and other higher priced debt facilities.

DBP $170 million Bank Debt Facility

On 17 December 2012, DBP reached contract close of a $170 million, four-year bank debt facility.
The amount raised was applied to repay DBP’s remaining maturing term debt in 2013 and other
debt facilities.
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Significant Changes in State of Affairs (continued)

DUET Group cancelled its $200 million Undrawn Corporate Debt Facility

On 19 December 2012, DUET Group cancelled its undrawn $200 million revolving corporate debt
facility due to mature In June 2014.

Multinet Gas appeals AER’s Access Arrangements

On 21 May 2013, Multinet Gas lodged an appeal with the Australian Competition Tribunal in
relation to the Australian Energy Regulator's (AER) financial decision of Multinet's 2013-2017 Gas
Access Arrangement Review. On 1 July 2013, Multinet Gas confirmed that the AER had conceded
Multinet’'s application to appeal the AER’s calculation of Multinet's opening regulated asset base
(RAB) for the 2013-2017 regulatory period.

Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Indemnification and Insurance of Officers and Auditors

During the year, DMC1, DFL and DIHL paid a premium to insure their respective officers. As long
as these officers act in accordance with the Constitution and the law, they will remain indemnified
out of the assets of the DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DMC1, DFL and DIHL against any losses incurred
while acting on behalf of the Trusts, DIHL, DMC1, DFL and DUET Group. The auditors of DUET
Group are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Trusts, DIHL, DMC1, DFL or DUET
Group. Disclosure of further details is prohibited by a confidentially clause in the policy.

Fees Paid to RE1 and RE2 and their Associates

Fees paid to RE1 and RE2 and their associates out of DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DIHL and DUET
Group’s property prior to the management internalisation date of 4 December 2012, are disclosed
in Note 30 to the Financial Statements.

Interests in DUET Group Securities Issued During the Financial Year

The movement during the year in securities on issue of DUET Group is set out below:

DUET Group Simplification Proposal

DUET Group DFT DUET3 DIHL Group DMCA DFL

On 31 May 2013, DUET announced the conclusion of the review announced on 31 July 2012 with 1Jul 12 1Jul12 1Jul12 1Jdul12 1dul12 1Jul 12
. e . , . e . -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13 -30Jun13

a proposed simplification of the Group’s structure (the Simplification Proposal). ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Securityholders voted in favour of the Simplification Proposal at the securityholder meeting held on Securities on issue at

18 July 2013. The Simplification Proposal was implemented on 1 August 2013. the beginning of the year 1,109,831 1,109,831 1,109,831 1,109,831 - -
Securities issued during

The Proposal has reduced the number of stapled entities from six to four and created a corporate the year 59,483 59,483 59,483 59,483 1,169,314 1,169,314
arm (DIHL and DUECo) controlling the Group’s equity interests in its operating businesses and a Securities on issue at
funding arm (DFT and DFL) holding intra-group debt investments. the end of the year 1,169,314 1,169,314 1,169,314 1,169,314 1,169,314 1,169,314
On 1 August 2013, securityholders have exchanged all of their units in DUET3 for additional units
in DFT, and all of their units in DUET1 and shares in DMC1 for shares in DUET Company Limited DUET Group DFT DUET3 DIHL Group DMC1 DFL
(DUECo0). DUECo is an Australian public company which was incorporated on 2 April 2013 and on 1Jul1l 1Julll 1Jul1l 1Julll 1Julll 1Julll
1 August 2013, became part of the DUET stapled group. -30 J“f‘oéé - 30 Juf'ocl)g - 30 J“f‘oég -30 J”f'oég - 30 Juf'oég - 30 J“f'ocl)g
As part of this transaction, the names of DMC2 and DUET2 were changed to DUET Finance Securities on issue at the
Limited (DFL) and DUET Finance Trust (DFT) respectively. beginning of the year 909,693 909,693 909,693 909,693 14,465 14,465
Securities issued during the
Refer to the DUET Group Notices of Meeting and Meeting Booklet dated 31 May 2013 for further year 200,138 200,138 200,138 200,138
information which is available on the DUET Group website. Securities on issue at the end of
the year 1,109,831 1,109,831 1,109,831 1,109,831 14,465 14,465

Final distribution paid

A final distribution of 8.250 cents per stapled security was paid by DUET on 13 August 2013 (2012:
8.00 cents). This consists of a distribution of 3.487 cents per unit from DUET1 (2012: 2.685 cents),
4,176 cents per unit from DFT (2012: 3.812 cents) and 0.587 cents per unit from DUET3 (2012:
1.503 cents).

DUET Group securities issued under DRP

Security holders participating in DUET’s Distribution and Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP)
reinvested $40,973,392 of the distribution paid on 13 August 2013 in 19,336,999 DUET Group
securities at a price of $2.117722.
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Carrying Value of Assets Additional Specific Disclosures
DUET Group DFT DUET3 DIML Group DMC1 DFL Information on Directors at 30 June 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Carrying Value of assets at 30 Experience and Directorships

June 13 8,505,444 1,019,135 270,542 197,036 6,129 6,122 Douglas Halley

Carrying Value of assets at 30 BCom (UNSW), MBA (UNSW), FAICD

June 12 8,118,659 863,627 285,897 205,693 25,956 29,167 Independent Non-Executive Chairman and Director (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL)
The value of DUET Group, DFT, DUET3, DIHL Group, DMC1 and DFL assets is derived using the Doug held senior financial and general management positions for over 30 years in Australia, UK
basis set out in Note 1 to the Financial Statements. and the Netherlands in both banking and commercial sectors. His executive expertise covers

Directors’ Holdings of Stapled Securities general management, treasury, finance,. b.L.lsiness de\./elopment, investor relations, restructuring,
corporate strategy and large scale acquisitions and divestments.
The aggregate number of DUET Group stapled securities held directly, indirectly or beneficially by

. . . . His executive appointments included Group Treasurer, Philips Electrical Australia; Director,
directors at the date of this Financial Report are: i P P

Treasury, Hill Samuel Australia (now Macquarie); Director, Treasury, Rothschild Australia; GM,

stapl(la)dUsE;:S:i(t)i:Z stapli:gglcﬁrri(t)ile‘g Finance & Corporate Development, Goodman Fielder Group; Finance Director, John Fairfax
2013 2012 Holdings; CFO, IBM Global Services Australia; and CFO then CEO for Asia Pacific, Thomson
Director Corporation (now Thomson Reuters). He has prior listed company board experience with John
John Roberts 5,422,901 5,422,901 Fairfax Holdings, Television and Media Services, Corum Group and Mikoh Corporation.
The Hon Michael Lee 19,178 17,979 Other current directorships are: chairman, Foyson Resources Limited; director, Print & Digital
Emma Stein 50,506 50,506 Publishing Pty Limited (‘Time Out' magazine); and chairman, Advisory Board of Australian
Douglas Halley 134,000 134,000 Enterprise Holdings Pty Limited.
Ron Finlay 20,237 20,237
Eric Goodwin 57,607 54,005 Ron Finlay
LLB (Sydney)
Duncan Sutherland 150,000 150,000
Shemara Wikramanayake * 1,837,864 1,837,864 Independent Non-Executive Director (DIHL and DFL)
* As announced to the ASX on 2 August 2013, the initial Directors’ Interest Notice on 25 Ron is a lawyer and chief executive of Finlay Consulting, with over 37 years experience in property,
November 2010 contained an error and should have been recorded as 1,837,864, not 1,842,987. construction development and infrastructure projects, including as project manager or facilitator of

major infrastructure projects in Australia and overseas for both public and private sector
organisations (such as the Commonwealth Government Solar Flagships Program).

Other current directorships are: Macquarie Generation, NSW's largest generator; Chairman of
AquaSure Group, the SPV for the Victorian Desalination Project PPP; independent chairman on a
number of government and private sector Project Control Groups and Dispute Resolution Boards
for major projects (such as Brisbane's New Parallel Runway Project and the Brisbane Legacy Way
Project).
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Duncan Sutherland
BA (Yale), MBA (Wayne State)

Independent Non-Executive Director (DFL)

Duncan has broad experience in the mining, metals and auto industries, where his focus areas
included acquisitions and divestment, business analysis and corporate planning. Duncan joined
CRA Limited in 1980, and was most recently responsible for acquisitions and divestments and
corporate strategy. After CRA merged with RTZ in 1995 to form Rio Tinto, Duncan was appointed
managing director, Energy Developments, responsible for business development and the
management of acquisitions and divestments in the energy sector.

During his career, Duncan has also worked overseas in the USA, Europe, Brazil and Argentina.

Other current directorships are: director of a Macquarie-owned manager of a number of unlisted
managed vehicles and a director of Haileybury College, Melbourne.

Emma Stein
BSc (Hons) Physics (Manch), MBA (Manch)

Independent Non-Executive Director (DMC1 and DFL)

Emma'’s operational utilities experience includes energy retailing and asset management,
international business operations, strategy development and implementation, acquisition
integration and divestment.

Before leaving the UK in 2003, Emma was the UK managing director for French utility Gaz de
France's energy retailing operations. She was also a non-executive director for Cofathec Heatsave
Limited and an executive UK board director for Gaz de France Energy.

Other current directorships are: Clough Limited; Programmed Maintenance Group; Alumina
Limited; and Transpacific Industries Limited.

Emma is also a member of University of Western Sydney's Board of Trustees and a NSW
Ambassador for the Guides.

Formerly, Emma was a non-executive director of ARC Energy and of Merlin Petroleum Limited
(Australian oil and gas exploration and production companies) and Transfield Services
Infrastructure Fund.

Michael Lee
BSc (UNSW), BEng (Hons) (UNSW), FIE (Aust)

Independent Non-Executive Director (DMC1)

Michael is an electrical engineer. He served in the Australian Parliament for 17 years, and was
Minister for Resources, Tourism, Communications and The Arts in the Keating Government. He is
currently president of the NSW Branch of the Australian Labor Party.

Other current directorships are: Sydney Airport; Chairman, Communications Alliance Limited, and
Superpartners Limited.

Former roles include chairman of NSW TAFE Commission Board and the Central Coast Campuses
Board; a director of Essential Energy (formerly Country Energy); a councillor of the City of Sydney;
and a member of the NSW Architects Registration Board.

Eric Goodwin
BEng (UNSW), MIE (Aust)

Independent Non-Executive Director (DFL)

Eric joined the Lend Lease Group in 1963 as a cadet engineer. During his 43 year career with
Lend Lease he held a number of senior executive and subsidiary board positions in their Australian
operations. Eric has extensive experience in design, construction and project management,
general management and investment and funds management. Eric managed the MLC property
portfolio during the 1980s and was the founding fund manager of Australian Prime Property Fund.

Other current directorships are: Macquarie Global Property Fund Advisors; the GPT Group; and
Eureka Funds Management Limited. Eric is also the chair of Jarjum College Council.

John Roberts
LLB (Canterbury)

Non-Executive Director (DMC1 and DIHL)

John joined Macquarie in 1991 and is based in Sydney, Australia. He is the AMPCI/Macquarie
representative on the DMC1 and DIHL boards.

Until 30 June 2013, John was executive chairman of the Macquarie Funds Group, which has over
US$400 billion of capital under management and includes the activity of the Macquarie
Infrastructure and Real Assets division (MIRA). John now acts as a consultant to Macquarie and
serves on the Boards and/or Investment Committees of a number of MIRA-managed funds to
provide oversight and strategic direction to individual fund management executive teams.

Previous roles within Macquarie include Head of Europe; Joint Head of Macquarie Capital
Advisors; and Global Head of Macquarie Capital Funds.

Other directorships are: Sydney Airport Holdings Limited, Macquarie Atlas Roads Limited and
Chairman of the NYSE listed Macquarie Infrastructure Company.

His former directorships include Macquarie International Infrastructure Fund Limited and Macquarie
Infrastructure Company Inc.

Shemara

Wikramanayake LLB, BCom (UNSW)

Alternate to John .

Roberts Alternate Director to John Roberts

Shemara is an Executive Director of Macquarie and Head of the Macquarie Funds Group, which
offers a diverse range of products, including infrastructure and real asset management, securities
investment management and fund and equity based structured products.

Before becoming Head of Macquarie Funds Group, Shemara spent 20 years in the Macquarie
Capital division. During this period, Shemara held roles as Head of Macquarie Infrastructure and
Real Assets, North America; Head of Prudential, Sydney; and established and led the corporate
advisory businesses in New Zealand, Hong Kong and Malaysia.

Before joining Macquarie in 1987, Shemara worked as a corporate lawyer at Blake Dawson
Waldron in Sydney.

Shemara holds no other listed entity directorships.
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Company Secretary

At 30 June 2013, the Company Secretary of DIHL, DMC1 and DFL was Ms Leanne Pickering.
From 1 August 2013, she is the Company Secretary of DUECo, DFL and DIHL. Ms Pickering was
appointed Company Secretary in 2006. She has been the legal manager of DUET since 2006 and

is a practising solicitor.

Meetings of DIHL, DMC1 and DFL’s Directors

The number of meetings each member of the DIHL, DMC1 and DFL board of directors and each
member of the audit and risk committee was eligible to attend and actually attended during the year
ended 30 June 2013 is summarised as follows:

DIHL
Meetings of Directors Meetings of Audit and Risk Committee
Meetings eligible to Meetings eligible to
Meetings attended attend” Meetings attended attend
Director
Douglas Halley** 12 12 3 3
John Roberts - -
Phil Garling 5 5 - _
Ron Finlay*" 12 12 3 3
Emma Stein** 10 11

* Members of the Audit and Risk Committee
~ Includes Board sub-committee and independent board committee meetings where only some directors were required to

attend.
DMC1
Meetings of Directors Meetings of Audit and Risk Committee
Meetings eligible to Meetings eligible to
Meetings attended attend” Meetings attended attend
Director
Douglas Halley* 12 12 3 3
John Roberts 8 9 - R
Phil Garling - -
Michael Lee*” 11 11
Emma Stein** 10 11

* Members of the Audit and Risk Committee
" Includes Board sub-committee and independent board committee meetings where only some directors were required to

attend.
DFL
Meetings of Directors Meetings of Audit and Risk Committee
Meetings eligible to Meetings eligible to
Meetings attended attend” Meetings attended attend
Director
Douglas Halley** 2 2
John Roberts - -
Phil Garling - -
Ron Finlay*” 12 12 3 3
Eric Goodwin*" 11 11 3 3
Duncan Sutherland** 11 11 3 3

* Members of the Audit and Risk Committee
" Includes Board sub-committee and independent board committee meetings where only some directors were required to

attend.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited)
1. Remuneration Principles
DUET Group’s remuneration philosophy is designed to:
» attract, motivate and retain high performing Executive and board members;

» directly align the interests of Executive employees with those of DUET Group
securityholders in such a way that their variable remuneration is linked to both the success
and any downturn in the DUET Group’s performance; and

» comply with appropriate governance standards and legal requirements.

In summary, DUET Group’s Executive remuneration strategy is intended to directly align with
securityholders’ interests. See section 4 and 6 for further details.

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors (NEDs) is to provide remuneration that is
sufficient to attract and retain Directors with the experience, knowledge, skills and judgement to
govern DUET Group’s operations, funding and employees. See section 5 for further details.

2. Introduction

The directors of the DUET Group present the Remuneration Report for DUET Investment Holdings
Limited (DIHL), DUET Management Company 1 Limited (DMC1) and DUET Finance Limited
(previously known as DUET Management Company 2 Limited) (DFL).

This Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2013 outlines the remuneration
arrangements of DIHL, DMC1 and DFL in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001 (the Act) and its regulations. This information has been audited as required by section
308(3C) of the Act.

For the purposes of this Report, the term “Executive” includes the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The DUET Group terminated its external management
arrangements with AMP Capital and Macquarie Capital Group on 4 December 2012 and at this
time the Executives became directly employed by DIHL. DIHL is the employer entity within the
DUET Group and makes staff available to the other entities in the DUET Group under the
Resources Agreement. DIHL has undertaken a detailed review of the Group’s Executive
remuneration policy to ensure consistency with market practice.

As detailed in the directors’ report, DUET Group completed its group structure simplification on 1
August 2013. This Remuneration Report is as at 30 June 2013, although any relevant changes
arising since the restructure and the date of this Report are mentioned as necessary.

This Remuneration Report details the remuneration arrangements for key management personnel
(KMP) who are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the major activities of DIHL, DMC1 and DFL. KMPs have been identified as the
Executives of DIHL and the Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) of DIHL, DMC1 and DFL. The NEDs
of each entity comprising the DUET Group meet the definition of KMP as they have this authority in
relation to the activities of these entities.
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DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)

Non-Executive Directors during the financial year ended 30 June 2013

Douglas Halley

Chairman — appointed Chairman 4 December 2012

Ron Finlay

Independent Director

Eric Goodwin

Independent Director

Duncan Sutherland

Independent Director

Michael Lee

Independent Director

DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)
3. Nomination and Remuneration Committees

The Nomination and Remuneration Committees were established by the Board of Directors of each
entity comprising the DUET Group in accordance with the requirements of ASX Listing Rule 12.8
and for the purpose of (among other things) discharging the responsibilities and making
recommendations to the DIHL Board relating to the compensation of DIHL's key management
personnel. In so doing, it seeks independent input and advice on market practice, trends and
overall remuneration structure.

The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees during the financial year were:

Emma Stein

Independent Director

Scott Davies*

Director — appointed 4 December 2012, resigned 30 June 2013

Philip Garling* Director — resigned 4 December 2012

Michael Bessell* Alternate director — appointed 7 December 2012, resigned 30 June
2013

John Roberts* Director — appointed May 2004 and due to retire at the November

2013 AGM and may be invited to seek re-election at the November
2013 AGM in accordance with the December 2012 internalisation
arrangements with Macquarie and AMP Capital.

DIHL DMC1 DFL
Emma Stein (chair) Emma Stein (chair) Eric Goodwin (chair)
Doug Halley Doug Halley Doug Halley
John Roberts John Roberts Scott Davies
Ron Finlay Michael Lee Ron Finlay
Duncan Sutherland

Following the DUET Group simplification implemented on 1 August 2013, the members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are as follows:

Shemara Wikramanayake | Alternate director- appointed November 2010 and due to retire at the
November 2013 AGM

* Prior to 4 December 2012, these directors were appointed by the managers (being AMP Capital and Macquarie Capital Group) and did not receive fees

from DUET.

At the 18 July 2013 Scheme and General Meetings, Shirley In't Veld was appointed as an
independent director of DIHL with effect from 2 August 2013 and Jane Harvey was appointed as an
independent director of DFL with effect from 2 August 2013.

DUECo and DIHL DFL

Shirley In’t Veld (chair Remuneration Committee) Michael Lee (chair)
Doug Halley Eric Goodwin

John Roberts Jane Harvey
Emma Stein (chair Nomination Committee)

Executives
David Bartholomew Chief Executive Officer
Jason Conroy Chief Financial Officer

Except as noted, all of the above NEDs and Executives have held their current positions for the
whole of the financial year and since the end of the financial year, up to the date of this Report. All
remuneration disclosed in Section 6.1 with respect to Executives reflects the period from 4
December 2012 to 30 June 2013 (i.e. for 7 months), being the period of employment by DIHL
following internalisation of the previous management arrangements.

Specifically, the DIHL Board approves the remuneration arrangements of the CEO and CFO and all
awards made under the long-term incentive (LTI) plan, following recommendations from the DIHL
Remuneration Committee. The DIHL Board also approves, having regard to the recommendations
made by the Remuneration Committee, the level of the Group short-term incentives (STIs) and the
individual STI awards to the CEO and CFO.

The Remuneration Committees of each of the DUET Group entities also have responsibility for
recommending the remuneration of each Company's directors in their role as a director and
chairman or member of any committee or subcommittee of the Board, as the case may be.

The Nomination Committees provide advice and recommendations to each Board on the criteria for
selection, performance review and nominations for appointment of directors (either between AGMs
or to stand for election).

As part of the DUET Group simplification implemented on 1 August 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees have undertaken a detailed review of NED remuneration, skills required
and selection processes to ensure consistency with market practice. See section 5 for further
details.
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DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committees meet regularly throughout the year. The CEO
attends certain Remuneration Committee meetings by invitation, where management input is
required. The CEO is not present during any discussions relating to his own remuneration
arrangements.

The charters for the Nomination and Remuneration Committees are available on the DUET Group
website (www.duet.net.au).

4. Executive Remuneration Arrangements and link to DUET’s performance

The link between remuneration arrangements and DUET Group’s performance is provided by:

The DUET Group Executive Remuneration structure includes:

a material portion of Executive remuneration varying with short term and long term
performance;
applying financial and non-financial measures to assess performance; and

ensuring that these performance measures focus management on strategic business
objectives that are aimed at creating securityholder value over the short and long term.

DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)

Remuneration Vehicle Purpose Link to performance
component

Long Term Cash based Any LTI grants are at risk and 100% is subject to vesting based on

Incentive (LTI) “phantom” security | are intended to align Executive | satisfaction of the following performance

plan plan reward with longer term measures (each of equal weight) tested

securityholder value creation. against certain hurdles three years from the

grant date:

» the 3 year average DUET Total
Securityholder Return (TSR)* based on
the DUET Accumulation Index (DAI)
relative to the S&P/ASX200 Industrials
Accumulation Index (IAl) (see note 1
below)

» the 3 year average DUET TSR based
on the DUET Accumulation Index (DAI)
relative to the ASX Utilities
Accumulation Index (UAI) (see note 1
below); and

» cumulative achievement of growth in
distributions relative to business plan
projections

Remuneration Vehicle Purpose Link to performance
component

Fixed Comprises base To provide competitive fixed DUET Group and individual performance

Remuneration salary, remuneration set with are considered during remuneration
superannuation reference to role, market and reviews with key performance measures set
contributions and experience. at the beginning of each financial year.
other benefits

Short Term Paid partly in cash » Rewards Executives for 50% based on hurdles for the following

Incentive (STI)
plan (including
retention)

on grant and partly
retained and vests
in cash over three
years from the
second anniversary
of grant

their contribution to
achievement of Group
outcomes, as well as
individual key performance
measures.

» The retained component is
aimed at assisting the
retention of high
performing individuals.

financial outcomes for the relevant financial
year:

» Group Proportionate Earnings Before
Interest, Tax, Depreciation,
Amortisation and Finance costs
(EBITDAF) relative to budget

» cash cover of distribution on a cents
per stapled security basis relative to
budget

» actual corporate costs relative to
budget

50% based on qualitative measures and
individual performance objectives including
development of Group strategy and
Business Plan, special projects (such as
the recent internalisation and group
structure simplification), operating company
initiatives, stakeholder and investor
relations, leadership and people
management.

* TSR represents an investor’s return, calculated as the percentage difference between the initial amount invested in
stapled securities and the final value of those stapled securities at the end of the relevant period, assuming distributions
were reinvested, or such other method of calculation as determined by the Board.

Note 1: Each hurdle applies to a third of the relevant LTI allocation. 50% of notional securities for that hurdle vest at the 51
percentile, up to 100% at the 75th percentile (pro rata vesting in between)

4.1 Fixed remuneration

The Group aims to reward Executives with a level and mix of remuneration appropriate to their
positions, responsibilities and performances within the Group and aligned with market practice.

4.2 Performance Based remuneration

DIHL's performance based remuneration includes the STI plan and LTI plan (as further detailed in
sections 4.2.1 and 4.2.2). The key philosophy underlying these plans is to align the interests of
Executives with those of DUET Group securityholders in such a way that variable remuneration is
directly linked to both the success and any downturn in the DUET Group performance.
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DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has focussed on ensuring that the performance targets and
therefore the quantum of short and long term incentives are demanding of performance that is
sufficiently challenging to ensure the Executives continue to strive for outstanding sustainable
DUET Group performance. Whilst a material proportion of the Executive’s variable remuneration is
linked to financial outcomes that in turn relate to securityholder distribution levels and security price
performance, DUET Group also rewards (through the Executive’s individual non-financial
performance measures) management disciplines and projects that improve DUET Group's growth
prospects and/or reduce uncertainty.

The arrangements for discretionary STIs and LTIs are also intended to assist in the retention of
high performing Executives through to the dates that DIHL determines that a STI or LTI allocation
becomes payable.

The Remuneration Committee may recommend, and the DIHL Board may, at its discretion, amend
the terms of the STI and/or LTI at any time for future allocations. The DIHL Board intends to
consider the appropriate thresholds for the STl and LTI annually to ensure that the Performance
Measures remain an appropriately challenging target.

4.2.1 Short Term Incentive (STI) plan

Eligibility

All Executives are eligible to participate in the STl scheme, however, STI allocations are at the
discretion of DIHL and while an Executive may receive an STI allocation in one year, they will not

necessarily receive an STI allocation in a subsequent year, and there is no guarantee of an STI
allocation in any particular year.

Any STI allocation is not earned or vested unless the Executive is employed and not subject to a
notice of termination or resignation on the relevant crystallisation or vesting dates, as applicable.
Therefore, an Executive has no legal right or entittement (whether contractual, equitable or
otherwise) to any STI payment until the relevant crystallisation or vesting dates, as applicable.

Retention policy

In order to assist in retaining its high performance Executives and to align Executive interests and
securityholder interests, DIHL may retain a portion of allocated STI which will vest on each of the
second, third and fourth years following the original STI allocation except in the case of termination
by DIHL with noticel where STI retentions will become payable.

Performance Measures

The STI is variable and is typically determined with reference to the annual performance of the
DUET Group and each Executive’s relative contribution to the business and their performance
against a mix of quantitative and qualitative performance objectives and key performance
measures which as at the date of this report are as described in the table at the commencement of
section 4 (STI Performance Measures).

! Termination with notice: employment may be terminated by giving 3 months’ notice or payment in lieu of notice (see
section 6).
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The STI Performance Measures are discussed with each Executive and determined by the DIHL
Remuneration Committee for each Executive on an annual basis. Assessments of performance will
take into account these STI Performance Measures and other factors which may include: risk
management; governance and compliance; long-term sustainability; progress against the business
plan of key strategic objectives; desire for retention in a particular case; people leadership and
adherence to DUET Group’s goals, values and policies.

To determine if the quantitative STI Performance Measures are satisfied, the Board has regard to
the audited financial statements. The qualitative STl Performance Measures are assessed by the
DIHL Remuneration Committee as part of the annual performance review of each Executive.

4.2.2 Long Term Incentive plan

Eligibility

All Executives are eligible to participate in the LTI plan at the invitation of the DIHL Board and
Remuneration Committee at its absolute discretion. LTI allocations are at the discretion of DIHL
and while an Executive may receive an LTI allocation in one year, they will not necessarily receive

an LTI allocation in a subsequent year, and there is no guarantee of an LTI allocation in any
particular year.

Allocation and Vesting

The first LTI allocation was made on the date of implementation of the internalisation of
management of the DUET Group on 4 December 2012 (the “2012 LTI Allocation”). The first vesting
date for the 2012 LTI Allocation will be 1 July 2015 subject to satisfaction of the Performance
Measures. It is expected that any future allocations will vest 3 years after the date of grant subject
to the satisfaction of the LTI Performance Measures as shown in the table at the commencement of
section 4.

Notional securities
Any LTI allocation is paid as “notional securities”. That is:

= The cash value of the allocation is converted to a number of notional DUET Group stapled
securities based on the 20 day volume weighted average price (VWAP) after the full year
financial results. Note that these notional securities are not actual DUET Group securities
and do not carry any voting entitlements.

= Any distributions that would have been paid on the allocated number of notional securities
will be reinvested at the price of DUET Group securities on the relevant ex-distribution
date.

= The vesting amount of the allocation and reinvested distributions will be the value of the
notional stapled securities based on the 20 day VWAP prior to but not including the
relevant vesting date.

Adjustments will be made to the allocated number of notional securities for corporate actions as
applicable in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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The vesting of all LTI allocations is subject to the achievement of the LTI Performance Measures
(as determined at the time of allocation). Therefore, an Executive has no legal right or entitlement
(whether contractual, equitable or otherwise) to any LTI allocation until the relevant vesting dates.

Performance Measures

As at the date of this report, LTIs comprise three elements (each of equal weight) with hurdles for
each as set out in the table at the commencement of section 4.

The LTI Performance Measures were selected by the Board in order to clearly align the Executives’
long term remuneration with the interests of securityholders by providing an incentive to achieve
first or second quartile TSR performance relative to market (represented by the 1Al) and relative to
peers (represented by the UAI), and to ensure that the Executives remain accountable to achieve
the medium term DUET Group business plan targets for distributions to securityholders.

The LTI Performance Measures may also be tested in circumstances where a third party submits a
privatisation proposal that would result in DUET Group securities ceasing to be quoted on the ASX.
Any LTI allocations will vest at the date of a DUET Group ASX announcement that such a proposal
has become unconditional or an earlier date determined by the Board.

4.3 Summary Executive Remuneration Structure

The Executive remuneration structure applicable per annum from 4 December 2012 to 30 June
2013 is as follows:

DUET Group (DIHL, DMC1 and DFL) Remuneration Report (audited) (continued)
5. Non-Executive Directors Remuneration Arrangements

Each of the DUET Group boards seeks to attract and retain a high calibre of directors who are
equipped with diverse skills and contributions.

The NED fees have undergone various changes during the last financial year as a consequence of
the internalisation of management on 4 December 2012 with further changes occurring on 1
August 2013 as a consequence of the DUET Group structure simplification. In all cases, NED fees
are fixed and are not linked to the financial performance of DUET Group in order for NEDs to
maintain their independence in line with market practice. The changes to the NED fee structure
were considered by each Board and its Remuneration Committee utilising external market data and
positioned at the market median of comparable board fees across various ASX peer groups (eg
ASX100 and ASX 200 groupings), and taking into account entity size, market capitalisation,
number of meetings, board and committee workload and different workloads between board and
committee chairs and members.

5.1 NED fees from 1 July 2012 to 3 December 2012

From 1 July 2012 to the date of internalisation, being 4 December 2012, the Independent Directors
(as listed in section 2 of this report) were entitled to be paid directors’ fees at a rate of $110,000 per
annum. However prior to internalisation only the DIHL director fees were borne by DUET Group.
No director of DMC1 or DFL was remunerated by DUET Group prior to 4 December 2012. Instead,
those director fees were ultimately borne by the previous managers (being AMP Capital and
Macquarie Capital Group).

5.2 NED fees from 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013

NED fees payable (per annum) from 4 December 2012 were paid at the following annual rate on a
pro-rata basis:

KMP Position Fixed | STl opportunity | LTI opportunity Total

Remuneration (% of Fixed (% of Fixed performance

$ | Remuneration) | Remuneration) based pay (%

of Fixed

Remuneration)

David CEO 800,000 66% 75% 141%
Bartholomew

Jason Conroy CFO 600,000 42% 42% 84%

Except for the payment of statutory superannuation entitlements and any termination benefit
described in section 7, Executives do not receive any other post-employment benefits.

Role Annual fee* $
Chair 240,000
NEDs** 110,000
Additional Committee Chair Fee 12,000
Committee Member Fees*** 10,000

* Fees are inclusive of superannuation.

** The two directors appointed by Macquarie Capital Group Limited and AMP Capital Investors Limited (being John Roberts
and Scott Davies respectively) shared the fees equally.

*** The Chairman of the Board did not receive committee member fees.
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In the event that a director was also a director of another DUET Group entity, the director fee is As the DFL board meets independently of the DIHL and DUECo boards and will have different
shared equally between the entities. business to consider regarding the funding aspects of the DUET Group, the total amount of DFL
director fees will be borne by DFL. The fee for Mr Ron Finlay differs from that of other non-
The DIHL constitution provides that directors are entitled to remuneration in aggregate not executive directors as he sits on each of the Boards of DIHL, DUECo and DFL. This is considered
exceeding $650,000 per annum. The DMC1 fee cap is $750,000 p.a. and the DFL fee cap is appropriate as, although there will be separate meetings of the Boards, there will be some overlap
$650,000 p.a. DUET Company Limited (DUECo0) being the new entity that formed part of the in issues considered by the boards of Directors (such as consolidated financial accounts) and
DUET Group as at 1 August 2013, has a director fee cap of $650,000 p.a. The maximum amount therefore it is appropriate for him to receive a lower fee than other directors who serve on the
of director fees that DIHL, DFL and DUECo may pay in aggregate is $1,950,000 p.a. None of the Boards of fewer Group entities.
NEDs is entitled to I_DUET Group options or securities, retirement benefits or STI or LTI incentives In 2012 a separate external Compliance Committee constituted with members who were not DUET
as part of remuneration packages.

Group directors, existed in addition to the Audit and Risk Committee. Fees for the Compliance

5.3 NED fees from 1 August 2013 Committee were $5,000 per external member per annum. On 1 January 2013, the Compliance

As noted in the Meeting Booklet for the DUET Group structure simplification implemented on 1 Committee’s roles and responsibilities were assumed by the Audit and Risk Committee. There was
August 2013, the NED fees payable from 1 August 2013 were amended to include payment for no adjustment to committee fees upon this transfer of responsibilities.
Committee membership and also to distinguish between the business aspects of each board in the Except for the payment of statutory superannuation entittements, NEDs do not receive any other
DUET Group. The NED fees payable from 1 August 2013 are as follows: post-employment benefits.
[Corporate Arm — DIHL and DUECO 6. Details of KMP Remuneration for year ended 30 June 2013
o . . - R 6.1 Statutory Remuneration of KMP
MName or NED Chair member Chair member Total . . i . i i
Doug Halley (Chair) $230,000 $5000  $235.000 Non-executive directors (inclusive of special service fees for the December 2012
John Roberts $110,000 $5000  $115,000 internalisation)
Emma Stein $110,000 $7500  $10,000 $127,500 Fy2013
Duncan Sutherland $110000  $15,000 $125,000 DMCL DFL DIHL TOTAL
Shirley In't Veld $110,000 $7500  $10,000 $127,500 Nam e D"eF‘:;’Sr Superannuation D'“*F‘;‘;’S’ Superannuation D”eF‘:;’sr Superannuation
Ron Finlay $80,000 $7.500 $87,500
Grand Total $817,500 $ $ $ $ S 5 S
Doug Halley (Chair) 114,610 4,874 41,465 4,884 114,610 4874 285317
7 The abbreviations used in the remuneration tables are: Non-Executive Director (MED), Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC) and f
Mominations Committee and Remuneration Committze (N&RC). Emma Stein 12,764 5,712 2,764 5,712 156,952
Ron Finlay 87,764 5,712 87,764 5,712 186,952
Giver.1 that 'the DIHL and DUECQ boards have the same directors, it is expected that bogrd John Roberts 14,555 1,310 14555 1.310 31,730
meetings will be held at the same time and therefore the above costs are the aggregate fees which Vichaol Loo P 12385 150000
will be shared equally between DIHL and DUECo. - - -
Eric Goodw in 145,527 11,425 156,952
Funding Arm — DMC22 Duncan Sutherland 136,250 13,750 150,000
Aggregate Scott Davies 34,804 0 34,804
Board total for
Chair ARRC ARRC ME&RC MERC DIHL/DUECo TOTAL 363,825 481,581 307,301 1,152,707
Name or NED Chair mamber Chair member Total  and DMC2
Eric Goodwin I[Chail’}l $125.000 $7500 $5,000 $137.500 Notes: * From 1 July 2012 to 3 December 2012 only the DIHL NED fees were borne by DUET Group, the Macquarie and AMP Capital nominee
Ron Finl $BDrDUD $7I5'DD : $67’500 $155 000 directors (being John Roberts and Phil Garling (who resigned on 4 December 2012) were remunerated by the Macquarie Group and AMP
Mich liy $85r000 $?'500 $10.000 $102’500 . Capital Group respectively and did not receive NED fees from DUET and. the DMC1 and DFL NED fees were ultimately borne by the
N © a: - $85..DUD $15.000 . - $5.000 $1D5’UUD managers (being AMP Capital and Macquarie Capital Group). However the amounts in the table above include all amounts paid (either by
Gme d &-arﬁ.ff:]f ! ! ! $412’500 the managers or DUET to the NEDs from 1 July 2012 until 30 June 2013 including the NED special services fees of $330,000 in aggregate
ran [s) ¥

paid in December 2012 as part of the internalisation of DUET Group management as disclosed in section 6.1 of the Explanatory
Memorandum dated 10 October 2012.

* From 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013, John Roberts and Scott Davies became entitled to be paid NED fees from DIHL, DMC1 and DFL
respectively as shown in the table above. Scott Davies’ director fee was GST inclusive and was paid directly to AMP Capital Investors and

therefore no superannuation was paid,
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6.2 Actual Remuneration received by Group Executives — FY2013

Actual remuneration is provided in addition to the statutory reporting of remuneration (refer section
6.1 Statutory Remuneration of KMP) to increase transparency about what the Executive actually
received during the financial year. These tables do not include any retained STI or LTI allocations
as they are still subject to conditions relating to service and performance (in the case of the LTI).

Received in Salary Retention | STl paid $ Non- | Superannuation LTI paid Total $
FY2013' $ Payment? monetary® $ $

$ $
David 454,046 250,000 239,600 4,688 9,544 - 957,878
Bartholomew
Jason 338,148 200,000 126,900 1,511 9,544 - 676,103
Conroy

1 All remuneration disclosed with respect to Executives reflects the period from 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013, being the period of employment by

DIHL following internalisation of the previous management arrangements.

2 The retention payments to the Executives were paid in January 2013 and are one off payments which are to be repaid by them if they resign from their

employment or are terminated without notice prior to 4 December 2013.

3 Non-monetary benefits include salary continuance insurance and professional membership fees paid by DIHL on behalf of the Executive.

6.3 Performance related remuneration of Group Executives

STI

The following table shows the STIs that were earned during the financial year.

FY2012
DMC1 DFL DIHL TOTAL
Name Director Superannuation Director Superannuation Director Superannuation
Fees Fees Fees
$ $ $ $ 9| $ $
Doug Halley (Chair) 44,725 4,025 44,725 4,025 97,500
Emma Stein 44,725 4,025 44,725 4,025 97,500
Ron Finlay 44,725 4,025 44,725 4,025 97,500
Michael Lee 89,450 8,050 97,500
Eric Goodw in 89,450 8,050 97,500
Duncan Sutherland 89,450 8,050 97,500
TOTAL 195,000 243,750 146,250 585,000
Notes: *In FY2012 only the DIHL NED fees were borne by DUET Group. Instead those NED fees for DMC1 and DFL were ultimately borne by the
managers (being AMP Capital and Macquarie Capital Group). However the amounts in the table above include all amounts paid (including
by the managers) to the NEDs.
*In FY2012 the AMP Capital and Macquarie Capital Group executives appointed to the board (i.e. Phil Garling and John Roberts) did not
receive director fees.
Executives
FY2013" Salary and fees Retention STl awarded Non- Superannuation Total
$ Payment’ $| monetary® $ $
$ $
Executives
David 454,046 250,000 308,000 4,688 9,544 | 1,026,278
Bartholomew
Jason 338,148 200,000 147,000 1,511 9,544 696,203
Conroy

1 All remuneration disclosed with respect to Executives reflects the period from 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013, being the period of employment by

DIHL following internalisation of the previous management arrangements.

2 The retention payments to the Executives were paid in January 2013 and are one off payments which are to be repaid by them if they resign from their

employment or are terminated without notice prior to 4 December 2013.

3 Non-monetary benefits include salary continuance insurance and professional membership fees paid by DIHL on behalf of the Executive.

Executives STl awarded in | STl paid $ STl retained($) | STl achieved (% of | STI forfeited (% of
cash ($) opportunity)* opportunity)

David Bartholomew 308,000 239,600 68,400 100% -%

Jason Conroy 147,000 126,900 20,100 100% -%

All remuneration disclosed with respect to Executives reflects the period from 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013, being the period of employment by

DIHL following internalisation of the previous management arrangements.

* The STI % achieved is 100% of the pro-rata STI opportunity (i.e. 58.3%) for the 7 month period from 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013.

Vesting of the retained component of the STls granted for FY2013 is as follows:

Executives

Award date

STl deferred ($)

Vesting dates*

David Bartholomew

30 June 2013

68,400

Equal proportions
23 August 2015
23 August 2016
23 August 2017

Jason Conroy

30 June 2013

20,100

Equal proportions
23 August 2015
23 August 2016
23 August 2017

* If the employment of the Executive is terminated without notice or the Executive resigns, all unvested STIs will be forfeited. If the employment of the

Executive is terminated with notice all unvested STls will be payable on the date of termination.
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LTI

The following table sets out the number of notional securities that have been allocated to Group

Executives but have not yet vested or been paid and the years in which they may vest.

Executive Date of award Cash amount | Notional reference Opening | Vesting date*
of Award $ securities (No) VWAP

David 4 December 343,800 160,763 2.13855 1 July 2015
Bartholomew 2012

1 July 2013 600,000 (see note 1) (See note 1) 1 July 2016
Jason 4 December 144,396 67,521 2.13855 1 July 2015
Conroy 2012

1 July 2013 252,000 (see note 1) (See note 1) 1 July 2016

Note 1: The VWAP will be determined post the announcement of the FY2013 DUET Group results in accordance with the LTI terms.

* The actual cash amount to be paid on the vesting date may be nil if none of the performance hurdles are met. However, the actual cash amount paid
at vesting may be higher or lower than the cash amounts listed above depending on the VWAP at the vesting date, the amount of DUET distributions
notionally reinvested over the vesting period and also if the performance measures are only partially met.

* If the employment of the Executive is terminated without notice or the Executive resigns, all unvested LTIs will be forfeited.

7. Executive Employment Termination Provisions

Each of the Executives is and has been employed on a permanent basis by DIHL from 4 December
2012. The following termination provisions and benefits apply to each of the Executives.

Termination notice period

DIHL or the Executive must give 3 month’s notice of termination. Alternatively, DIHL may make a
payment in lieu of notice.

Termination without notice

DIHL may terminate the Executive’s employment immediately in certain events including if the
Executive engages in any misconduct, dishonesty which may injure the reputation of DUET Group,
inappropriate workplace behaviour or for any other reason justifying termination without notice. In
the event of termination without notice there is no termination payment payable to the Executive
except for their accrued salary, superannuation and statutory entitlements.
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Termination with notice

Where DIHL terminates the Executives employment with notice, the Executive will receive a
payment of up to 12 months’ salary including any payment in lieu of notice. The Executive will be
paid any unvested STI allocations and be entitled to retain any unvested LTI allocations subject to
the same performance measures and vesting dates as if the Executive’'s employment continued.

If the Executive resigns, DIHL must pay any accrued salary, superannuation and statutory
entitlements and all unvested STI and LTI allocations will be forfeited.

Non-competition

DIHL may determine that on termination of employment a six month non-compete and non-
solicitation period applies in return for a restraint payment to the Executive equivalent to six
month’s Base Salary (less applicable deductions) paid on the standard monthly pay cycle.

Redundancy

In the event of redundancy, the Executive will also be entitled to a redundancy payment of up to 12
months salary in line with DIHL'’s redundancy policy.

In addition to the above, where considered appropriate, on termination the Board is also entitled at
its absolute discretion subject to the Corporations Act to make further ex-gratia payments to
Executives.

8. History of DUET Group performance

The table below summarises DUET Group’s key financial performance indicators over the last five
financial years.

Performance Measure FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013
Security Price’ ($) 1.53 1.60 1.69 1.84 2.01
Market Capitalisation2 ($m) 1,296.0 1,392.9 1,537.4 2,042.1 2,350.3
Distributions Paid® (cpss) 24.125 20.0 20.0 16.0 16.5
EBITDA" ($m) 667 734 764 731 800

~Sapled SecurTy price at CloSe O BUSIess on 30 June 6ach year.

2. Market capitalisation at close of business on 30 June each year.

3. Distribution declared by the Boards in cents per stapled security (cpss) for the financial year.

4. EBITDA as reported in DUET’s Management Information Report is before financial instrument adjustments (EBITDAF), the measure for the calculation
of Executive STI awards.
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The graph below shows the relative performance of the DUET Accumulation Index (DAI) against
the S&P ASX200 Industrials Index (IAl) and the S&P ASX 200 Utilities Index (UAI) (being two of
the LTI Performance Measures) for the period 4 December 2012 to 30 June 2013.
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The vesting of LTI awards is calculated on the 3™ anniversary of their initial award date on the
basis detailed in section 4.2.2. The graph above is illustrative only and indicates how the DAI
performed against the 1Al and UAI benchmarks during the period to 30 June 2013.

Non-Audit Services

DUET may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties
where the auditor’'s expertise and experience with the company and/or DUET Group are important.

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor (Ernst & Young) for audit and non-audit
services provided during the year are set out in Note 4 of the Financial Report.

The board of directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received
from the audit and risk committee, is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is
compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations
Act 2001. The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor, as set
out in Note 4 of the Financial Report, did not compromise the auditor independence requirements
of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

- all non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit and risk committee to ensure they do
not impact the impartiality and objectivity of the auditor; and

- none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set
out in Professional Statement APES110, including reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work,
acting in a management or a decision-making capacity for the company, acting as advocate for
the company or jointly sharing economic risk and rewards.

Environmental Regulations

DUET Group, DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL were not subject to any environmental
regulations. The operations of the underlying assets in which the DUET Group, DFT, DUETS3,
DIHL, DMC1 and DFL invested are subject to environmental regulations particular to the states in
which they are located.

Dampier Bunbury Pipeline

Both the DBP Licence and DBP Access Licence place requirements on DBP as operator of the
DBNGP. Environmental obligations are identified and managed through DBP’s Environmental
Management Plan, which sets out procedures for necessary restoration work associated with
operations and construction.

Under the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting (NGER) Act 2007, corporations that meet or
exceed thresholds are required to report greenhouse gas emissions and energy usage by 31
October each year. DBP exceeds these thresholds and has lodged its current year's NGER
reporting with the Clean Energy Regulator for the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012.

From 1 July 2012, the carbon pricing mechanism (introduced by the Clean Energy (CE) Act 2011)
applies to certain greenhouse gas emissions, with liable entities being required to surrender carbon
permits for each tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent emitted for each eligible financial year. This
legislation also introduces additional annual reporting and compliance requirements for DBP.

The directors are not aware of any material breaches to the environmental regulations discussed
above.
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United Energy

United Energy is subject to significant environmental regulation under the Environmental Protection
Act (EPA) 1970 (Vic). United Energy adheres to environmental management principles using
compliance with ISO 14001 for proactive planning, sustainable development and self assessment
for continuous improvement. United Energy did not receive any notices from the Environmental
Protection Agency for violation of the Act during the year.

United Energy exceeds the thresholds under the NGER Act 2007, and has lodged its reporting with
the Clean Energy Regulator for the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012.

The directors are not aware of any material breaches to the environmental regulations discussed
above.

Multinet

Multinet is subject to significant environmental regulation under the Environmental Protection Act
1970 (Vic). Multinet adheres to environmental management principles using compliance with 1SO
14001 for proactive planning, sustainable development and self assessment for continuous
improvement. Multinet did not receive any notices from the Environmental Protection Agency for
violation of the Act from 2004 to the date of signing this report.

Multinet exceeds the thresholds under the NGER Act 2007, and has lodged its reporting with the
Clean Energy Regulator for the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012.

The Clean Energy Act 2011 also applies to Multinet.

The directors are not aware of any material breaches to the environmental regulations discussed
above.

Application of Class Order

The Financial Reports for DUET Group, DFT, DUET3, DIHL Group, DMC1 and DFL for the year
ended 30 June 2013 are jointly presented in one report, as permitted by ASIC Class Orders
05/642 and 06/441.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

A copy of the Auditor's Independence Declaration as required under section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 39.

Rounding of Amounts in the Directors’ Report and the Financial Report

DUET Group, DFT, DUET3, DIHL Group, DMC1 and DFL are of a kind referred to in Class Order
98/0100, issued by ASIC, relating to the 'rounding off' of amounts in the directors' report and
Financial Report. Amounts in the directors' report and Financial Report have been rounded off in
accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the
nearest dollar.

Share options for DUET Group
No options over the stapled securities of DUET Group existed at 30 June 2013 (2012: nil).
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Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of DUET
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors of DUET Management Company 1 Limited. Management Company 1 Limited, DUET Finance Limited and DUET
Investment Holdings Limited

A
Il 1, In relation to our audit of the financial report of DUET Group, Diversified Utility and Energy Trust
No.1, DUET Finance Trust, Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.3, DUET Investment Holdings
Limited, DUET Management Company 1 Limited and DUET Finance Limited for the year ended
s";.i . 30 June 2013, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct.
Douglas Halley Emma Stein
Director Director /‘gf J
DUET Management Company 1 Limited DUET Management Company 1 Limited lf UUU
Sydney Sydney
15 August 2013 15 August 2013
Ernst & Young
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors of DUET Finance Limited. /

Kester Brown
Partner

oo Q.dcﬁﬁz_ﬁ

Melbourne
15 August 2013

Eric Goodwin Ron Finlay

Director Director

DUET Finance Limited DUET Finance Limited
Sydney Sydney

15 August 2013 15 August 2013

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors of DUET Investment Holdings Limited.

W

Y'Y

Douglas Halley Emma Stein

Director Director

DUET Investment Holdings Limited DUET Investment Holdings Limited
Sydney Sydney

15 August 2013 15 August 2013

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

1iahilit/ limitad hyv o erhama annravad tindar Dy Qtandarde |
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DUET Group DUET Group
1Jul 12 1Jul11
-30Jun13 -30Jun 12
Note $°000 $'000
Revenue 1,264,261 1,220,141
Other Income 49,125 1,939
Total Revenue and other income 2 1,313,386 1,222,080
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates accounted for using the equity
method - 6,754
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of associates - 8,668
Expenses relating to internalisation and group structure simplification (111,243) -
Operating expenses (439,709) (428,251)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 (253,940) (233,925)
Finance costs 2 (439,903) (465,909)
Other expenses 2 (18,737) (63,089)
Total expenses 2 (1,152,289) (1,191,174)
Profit before income tax expense 49,854 46,328
Income tax benefit/(expense) 3 (30,261) (2,331)
Profit for the year 19,593 43,997
(Loss)/profit is attributable to:
DUET1 unitholders® (10,774) 77,432
DFT /DUETS3 unitholders and DIHL/DMC1/DFL shareholders as non-
controlling interests 16,590 (29,883)
Stapled Securityholders 5,816 47,549
Other non-controlling interests 13,777 (3,552)
Basic earnings/(loss) per stapled security/share/unit'®) 27 (0.94) 7.23
Diluted earnings/(loss) per stapled security/share/unit™ 27 (0.94) 7.23

The above Income Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

@WDUET earnings per share include earnings of DUET1 only and has been calculated in accordance with AASB 133 Earnings per Share.

DUET1 was identified as parent of DUET on transition to AIFRS.
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2:5 g g - = Statements of Comprehensive Income
% o DUET Group DUET Group
1Jul12 1Jul11
MmHNO ' ~| ~ ' ™ 22} -30Jun13 -30Jun 12
Ho—8 2l g : H $°000 $'000
s c ¢ | ©
2 > 3% M Profit after income tax expense for the year 19,593 43,997
o
® Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
n E S § ' § § ' E.'.? E.'.? . Changes in fair value of cashflow hedges, net of tax:
Ds5ca Q| o o 4] . .
2 3 ©| < = = £ Gain/(loss) taken to equity 110,928 (174,559)
o c
® =) Transferred to Income Statement (96,076) 53,687
% Changes in share of associates other reserves, net of tax - 4,793
7y®g ' L ' L g— Reclassification of associate reserves on disposal - 26,818
a E S g @ @ § Reclassification of associates foreign currency translation reserve on disposal (including movement to
- ; g date of disposal) - 12,567
) E Movement in defined benefit reserve 1,120 (1,319)
See § ' g E ! ' ! E Gain/(loss) on dilution of minority interest 3,459 (1,250)
g é S& 2 Changes in share of associates foreign currency translation reserve - -
= o
A Q % Total other comprehensive income 19,431 (79,083)
! 9]
o
%—g "‘E’ § ! E ’E ! g g ; Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 39,024 (35,266)
6 3 3 g} g’_,- N N o Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year is attributable to:
273 AARE 2 DUET1 unitholders 6,534 39,787
= ' o i . )
o 2 DFT /DUETS3 unitholders and DIHL, DMC1 and DFL shareholders as non-controlling interests 21,958 (38,613)
<
E No § ' § § ! ﬁ% g% @ Stapled Securityholders 28,492 1,174
g 3 § e ©| © e e E Other non-controlling interests 10,532 (36,440)
m A S % Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 39,024 (35,266)
' n The above Statements of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
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DUET Group
30 Jun 12
$'000

DUET Group
30Jun 13
$°000

Balance Sheets (continued)

Equity attributable to DUET1 unitholders

Contributed equity

Equity
Reserves

650,331
(173,366)

(204,763)

688,011
(151,470)

(300,132)

23
24
25

272,202

236,409

Retained profits/accumulated (losses)

Unitholders interest

1,662,004 1,580,504
(410,305) (354,356)

23
24
25

Equity attributable to DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL Securityholders (as non-

controlling interest)
Contributed equity

Reserves

(121,489)
1,104,659

(155,597)
1,096,102

Retained profits/accumulated (losses)

189,538 191,837

22

DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL securityholders interest

Other non-controlling interest
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SE Statements of Cash Flow
§ DUET Group DUET Group
& 1Jul 12 1Jul11
a 0)8 ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' -30Jun13 -30Jun 12
£:58 Note $°000 $000
O n& - -
g Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers (including GST) 1,316,584 1,266,902
@ Payments to suppliers and employees (including GST) (535,305) (452,627)
§ Payments relating to internalisation and group simplification project (23,394) -
‘?é g% ! oo o oo UL =) Income tax received/(paid) (62) (401)
835 = Interest received from associates - 6,950
=) 8 1<) © . .
8§ g_ Other interest received 7,202 12,609
_un; = g Management and performance fee paid (29,924) (20,079)
E g Indirect tax net (paid) /received (38,613) (49,906)
ool Lo o v A ﬁ Net cash flows from operating activities 28 696,488 763,448
s 9 =
2% 2 : T
@ s Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
2 § Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (339,799) (313,077)
%’ -% Payments for purchase of software (52,654) (71,560)
T g Proceeds from sale of investment, net of costs 1,088 499,094
%@ § o ' § o ' g HEE Payments for purchase of investments - (155,500)
To| < < <. :';- :';- 2 Proceeds from sale of non-current assets - 143
< < . . . A
g - - Al g Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities (391,365) (40,900)
z 3
= 5 Cash flows from financing activities
8 2 Proceeds from issue of stapled securities, net of transaction costs - 266,362
L% Proceeds from securities issued to non-controlling interests 32,570 32,010
= Proceeds from borrowings lent by non-controlling interests - 6,395
2 Proceeds from borrowing from external parties 2,241,222 1,053,423
2 Repayment of borrowings from external parties (1,792,500) (1,746,501)
g Finance costs paid (447,507) (463,619)
5 Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (33,040) (27,317)
o %) Distributions paid to DUET securityholders (147,159) (145,675)
. é Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (146,414) (1,024,922)
m go} . . 2
g g g g Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 158,709 (302,374)
I I I c % % 0 Cash assets at the beginning of the period 243,595 543,482
o™ = < < 8 Restricted cash (152) -
m 5 g ‘:i,_ ‘§_ g Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 29 2,487
N o = 3] = o £ Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 402,181 243,595
(%]
Ll b § ; § g The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.
I = 'S 2 s S & 2B G @
= g 5. §8 s> § 8
] S = 5§ s = 5
< =y = 25 £7% 25 £ g
. o %] o w c 2 S w c &
Q 38 o8 38 o g
=} o 35 &% 35 3 2
Qg s 3§ ¥y iI i g
N I3 e o S N Q o S N
= = B : §ss S22 s 5 e
“— S > > 9 g5 5 > 2 9 =3 S 3
s O S 293 S§3 283 ¢ g2
<n= @ 5 28 5% [285 33Es?
= 5 < = S < g = =
<< e @ L 25 w2 © L2 wnaogad
2 D 2 s S s 2 w28 S 05 2
Z"” £ s £8f5 €353 £§E5 §£533
= G g $28 §28 S8 §2:£8
[ ] - g 523 SE8 B 2% SE 223
T = S ¢ ° f5° f8c f5e faESe
L.
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FINANGCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements
are stated to assist in a general understanding of these general purpose Financial Reports.

These general purpose Financial Reports have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, the Corporations Act 2001 and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board.

The Financial Reports were authorised for issue by the Directors on 15 August 2013. The Responsible
Entities and Directors of DIHL have the power to amend and reissue these Financial Reports.

@

(b)

Basis of preparation of Financial Reports

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Compliance with IFRS

The Financial Reports comply with Australian Accounting Standards and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Historical cost convention

These Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value.

Stapled Security

At 30 June 2013, the units of DUET1, DFT, DUET3 and the ordinary shares in DIHL, DMC1 and DFL
were combined and issued as stapled securities in DUET Group. The individual securities could not be
traded separately and could only be traded as stapled securities.

This Financial Report consists of the consolidated Financial Statements of DUET1, which comprises
DUETZ, DFT, DUETS3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL and the entities they control, together acting as DUET.

As permitted by ASIC Class order 06/441, these Financial Reports consist of the consolidated
Financial Statements of DUETL1 and its controlled entities (collectively referred to as “DUET” or “DUET
Group”), and the Financial Statements of DFT, DUET3 and DIHL and its subsidiaries, DMC1 and DFL.

Consolidated accounts

The Group is required to prepare its consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the revised
AASB 127 Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements. Under the standard DFT is presented as
a non-controlling interest, together with DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL. This standard requires “non-
controlling interests” to be presented in the consolidated Balance Sheet within equity but separately
from the equity owners of the parent. In addition, profit or loss and total comprehensive income has
been apportioned to reflect the amount attributable to the owners of the parent and to the non-
controlling interests.

FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1

(©)

(d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of the entities, which
DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL collectively hold a majority interest in, and control, at 30
June 2013, including those deemed to be controlled by DUET1 by identifying it as the parent of DUET
on transition to AIFRS, and the results of those controlled entities for the period then ended. The
effects of all transactions between entities in DUET Group are eliminated in full. Non-controlling
interests in the results and equity are shown separately in the Income Statement and the Balance
Sheet respectively. Non-controlling interests are those interests in partly owned subsidiaries which are
not held directly or indirectly by DUET1, DFT, DUETS3, DIHL, DMC1 or DFL. Non-controlling interests
also represent the interests of DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL.

Where control of an entity is obtained during a financial period, its results are included in the Income

Statement from the date on which control commences. Where control of an entity ceases during a
financial period, its results are included for that part of the period during which control existed.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner that is consistent with internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Boards
of DMC1, DFL and DIHL.

For the year ended 30 June 2013 the segments are based on the core assets of DUET’s investment
portfolio being Dampier Bunbury Pipeline, DBP Services Co., United Energy and Multinet Gas.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Revenue recognition (f)  Net current asset deficiency
Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: DUET1, DFT and DIHL Group have net current asset deficiencies of $216.5 million, $205.3 million and
Electricity distribution revenue $110.4 million respectively.
Electricity distribution revenue earned from the use of the distribution network is recognised when Notwithstanding these net current asset deficiencies, the Financial Reports have been prepared on a
electricity and related services are provided. Accrued electricity distribution revenue is determined going concern basis as DUET1, DFT and DIHL Group continue to generate positive cash flows and
having regard to the period since a customer's last billing date and the customer's previous have sufficient appropriate debt and equity capital in place to enable operations to continue as a going
consumption patterns. Electricity distribution revenue includes the cost of transmission services concern.
charged by the transmission companies, which is passed onto the customers. The net current asset deficiencies are primarily due to the classification of intercompany loans payable
Gas distribution revenue as current liabilities (as they are repayable on demand) whereas intercompany loans receivable are
o o : . classified as non-current receivables.
Gas distribution revenue earned from the use of the distribution network is recognised when gas and
related services are provided. Accrued gas distribution revenue is determined having regard to the Given the following, and based on current expectations, the Directors consider that DUET1, DFT and
period since a customer's last billing date and the customer's previous consumption patterns. DIHL Group will have sufficient cash available to meet their liabilities as they fall due:
Gas transportation revenue _
. . . . . — The related party loans are not expected to be called upon in the next twelve months; and
Gas transportation revenue is brought to account when gas is transported for a shipper in accordance .
. . — Any material call for repayment of the related party loans would be met by the funds on-lent to the
with the terms and conditions of the haulage contract. . S .
asset companies or through the realisation of investments.
Customer contributions
Non-refundable contributions and in-kind assets received from customers towards the cost of
extending or modifying the electricity or gas distribution networks, whether on existing or new assets,
are recognised as revenue and an asset respectively once control is gained of the contribution, or
asset.
Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Interest income is brought to account on an
accruals basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend and distribution revenue
Dividend and trust distributions from entities that are not associates are recognised as income on the
date the right to receive the payment is established.
Metering and other operating revenue
Metering and other operating revenue is recognised as it is earned, when the goods or services are
provided, as applicable.
60 DUET Group Annual Report 2013 61
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(@)

(h)

0]

)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable or receivable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the Financial Statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to
apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are
enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. The relevant tax rates are applied to the
cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary
differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in controlled entities and associates where the parent entity is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax has not been brought to account in respect of DUET1, DFT, DUET3 and DUET 2008
Funding Sub Trust as, pursuant to the Income Tax Assessment Act, the Trusts are not liable for
income tax provided that their taxable income (including any assessable realised capital gains) is fully
distributed to their unitholders each year.

Certain DUET3 unitholders did bear US withholding tax on US sourced interest income prior to the
disposal of the investment in Duguesne Holdings LLC.

Some subsidiaries of the Group have implemented the tax consolidation legislation. DUET Group is
not a tax consolidated Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in bank accounts, deposits at call with financial
institutions and other highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity (less than 90 days) that
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. A provision
for impaired receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be able
to collect all amounts due to the original terms of the receivables. Financial difficulties of the debtor
and default payments are considered objective evidence of impairment. Bad debts are written off
when identified.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is measured at average cost.
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V)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Non-financial assets, other than goodwill that may have suffered an impairment, are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Investments

(i) Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
entity's share of the post-acquisition profits and losses of associates is recognised in the Income
Statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements in retained earnings and reserves are adjusted
against the cost of the investment. Dividends receivable from associates reduce the carrying amount
of the investment. When the share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, further losses are not recognised unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of an associate.

Associates are those entities over which the entity exercises significant influence, but not control.

(i)  Other financial assets — Investments in unlisted securities
Investments in unlisted securities are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value.

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising marketable equity securities, are non derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in non current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of
the reporting date. Available-for-sale values are calculated using a discounted free cash flow
methodology.

Gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are recognised as other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in the Income Statement.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or Group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the security is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit and
loss is removed from equity and recognised in the Income Statement. Impairment losses recognised in
the Income Statement on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the Income Statement.
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Property, plant and equipment (n) Intangible assets (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment The useful lives of these intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Where
charge. The cost of plant and equipment constructed by DUET Group includes the cost of materials amortisation is charged on assets with finite lives, this expense is taken to the Income Statement
and direct labour and a proportion of fixed and variable overheads. through the depreciation and amortisation expense line item. Intangible assets, excluding
. development costs, created within the business are not capitalised and expenditure is charged against
Depreciation profits in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant No amortisation is provided for distribution licences, since in the opinion of the Directors, the life of the
andfeﬂglpment (ex:j:ludmg Iand)l ovt;ar |.tsfexp(ﬁcted usefqlhhfe to DIUET Group. Estlfmates_ of remaining licence is of such duration, and the residual value would be such that the amortisation charge, if any,
useful lives are made on a regular basis for all assets, with annual reassessments for major items. would not be material.
The expected useful lives are as follows: Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists, and in the case of
indefinite lived intangibles annually, either individually or at the cash generating unit level. Useful lives
Category Useful life are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective
Buildings 6 to 40 years basis.
Plant and equipment 1 to 60 years A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:
Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 15 years Licences Software Development Project Intellectual Property
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 1to 12 years Costs
Where items of plant and equipment have separately identifiable components which are subject to Useful lives Indefinite Finite Finite Finite
regular replacement, those components are assigned useful lives distinct from the item of plant and _ S _ _
equipm ent to which they relate. Method used :\lec\)/ta ?ue;)dremated or 3-5 Years Straight line |55n; 7 Years Straight ﬁ:eyears Straight
Majpr spares purchaseq specifically for particular plant are capitalised and depreciated on the same Acquired Acquired Acquired Internally generated Acquired
basis as the plant to which they relate.
Assets in the course of construction are not subject to depreciation until they are put into use. Impairment test/ Annually and where an  Amortisation method Amortisation method Amortisation
Recoverable indicator of impairment ~ reviewed at each reviewed at each method reviewed at
Impairment amount Testing exists financial year-end; and financial year-end; and each financial year-
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in Reviewed annually for Reviewed annually for end; and
i indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and indicator of indicator of Reviewed annually
circumstances "j] Ica ying - y : y ) impairment. impairment. for indicator of
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating impairment.
units are written down to their recoverable amount. (Refer to Note 1(1)).
Asset sales (0) Loans and receivables
The net proceeds on disposal of assets are brought to account at the date when control passes to the Loans .and receivables (current and non cu.rrent) are non derivative financial as;ets with fp(gq or
purchaser, usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed. determ_mable pay_/ments that are not quoted in an active markt_at. Loans anq receivables _are_lnmally
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
(n) Intangible assets method.
(i)  Goodwill (p) Payables
Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value of These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
identifiable net assets acquired at the time of acquisition of a business or securities in a controlled the financial period which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured.
entity. Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is thereafter carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
(ii) Identifiable Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and from a business
combination are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the
cost model is applied to the class of intangible assets.
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(s)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax ("GST"),
except where the amount of GST is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (“ATO”). In
these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as a part
of the expenses.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the Balance
Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST components of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which were recovered from or paid to the
ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

Customer deposits

Customer deposits are recognised as current liabilities and represent either refundable payments that
are received in advance as finance on capital projects or advances from customers held as security
over future electricity and gas usage and deposits.

Employee benefits

Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating
sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are
recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

Retirement benefit obligations

DUET Group primarily contributes to superannuation funds in respect of its permanent employees and
direct-hired casual employees. DUET Group and any employee contributions are based on various
percentages of their gross salaries.

Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(using a discount rate based on government bonds, as explained in Note 21), less unrecognised past
service costs and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled. Plan
assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies.
Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the Group.
Fair value is based on the market price information and, in the case of quoted securities, it is the
published bid price. The value of any defined benefit asset recognised is restricted to the sum of any
unrecognised past service costs and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Income Statement net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Interest bearing liabilities

Bank loans, guaranteed notes and redeemable preference shares are recognised at cost, being fair
value of the consideration received net of transaction costs associated with the borrowing. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue
costs, and any discount premium on settlement. DUET Group enters into derivatives on interest
bearing liabilities. The accounting policies are as described in Note 1(x).

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
new cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Income Statement as other
income or other expenses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
any qualifying assets are required to be capitalised. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

Distributions and dividends

A provision is made by DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DIHL Group, DMC1 and DFL for the amount of any
distribution payable under the Constitution or declared by the Responsible Entities (RE1 and RE2) or
the boards of DIHL, DMC1 and DFL, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at
reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments

DUET Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and
interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and investment activities. DUET Group does not
speculatively trade in derivative financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivative financial instruments are restated at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps is the estimated amount that DUET
Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking into account current
interest and foreign exchange rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The
fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the reporting date, being the
present value of the quoted forward price.

) Fair value hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment (or an identified portion of such assets, liability or firm
commitment), any gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the Income Statement. The
hedged item also is restated at fair value in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain or loss
being recognised in the Income Statement. The ineffective portion of the hedge is within other income
or other expense. The effective portion is within the same category of the fair value of the hedged
item.

(i) Cash flow hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a
recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecasted transaction, the effective part of any gain
or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in equity. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement within other income or
other expense.

When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non financial asset or non
financial liability, the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the
initial cost or other carrying amount of the non financial asset or liability. If a hedge of a forecast
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gains and losses that were recognised directly in equity are reclassified into profit or loss in
the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(i.e. when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered above, the associated cumulative gain or loss is
removed from equity and recognised in the Income Statement in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes
designation of the hedge relationship, but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the
above policy when the transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take
place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised immediately in the
Income Statement.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiiment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

(i) Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as
an expense in the profit or loss.

Capitalised lease assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and
the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease incentives are recognised as a liability
when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments between rental expense and
reduction of the liability.

(i) Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is DUET Group’s
presentation currency. The Financial Statements of the individual entities are also in Australian dollars
which is the individual entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially translated into Australian currency at the rate of exchange at
the date of the transaction. At reporting date, amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies
are translated to Australian dollars at rates of exchange current at that date. Resulting exchange
differences are recognised in determining the profit or loss for the year.

Translation

The results and financial position of DUET Group entities that have a functional currency different from

the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each Balance Sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that Balance Sheet;

— income and expenses for each Income Statement are translated at exchange rates at the dates of
transactions or at an average rate as appropriate; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities are taken to
securityholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is disposed of, a proportionate share of such
exchange differences are recognised in the Income Statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Earnings per stapled security

(i) Basic earnings per security

Basic earnings per stapled security are determined by dividing the profit attributable to security holders
by the weighted average number of ordinary securities on issue during the year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per security

Diluted earnings per stapled security adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earning per
security to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary securities and the weighted average number of securities assumed to
have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary securities.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination shall be measured at fair value, which shall be calculated as the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred to the former owners of the acquiree, the liabilities
incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the equity issued by the acquirer, and
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's

previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit and loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be a financial asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with AASB 139 either in
profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity,
it shall not be remeasured.

Standards and interpretations

(i)  Changes in accounting policy and disclosures.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as
follows:

The Group has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB
interpretations as of 1 July 2012:

— AASB 119 Employee Benefits amendments effective 1 January 2013, early adopted by the Group
on 1 July 2011; and

— AASB 2011-9 amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Presentation of Other
Comprehensive Income effective 1 July 2012

early adoption of the amended AASB 119 Employee Benefits did not have a significant impact on the

Defined Benefit Plan as this is the first year it has been recognised. Refer to note 21 for further details.

The

adoption of these new standards did not have a significant impact on the financial statements or

performance of the Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Standards and Interpretation (continued)

(i)  Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 or later periods but which
have not yet been adopted. The significant ones and an assessment of the impact of these are as
follows:

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2013. It establishes a new control model that applies to all entities. The new control
method broadens the situations when an entity is considered to be controlled by another entity and
includes new guidance for applying the model to specific situations, including when acting as a
manager may give control, the impact of potential voting rights and when holding less than a majority
rights may gave control. While the Groups do not expect the new standard to affect any of the
amounts recognised in the Financial Statements, it is anticipated that the Groups will be required to
increase disclosures. The Groups are continuing to finalise their assessment of the impact from this
new standard.

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2013 and includes all disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structures entities. New disclosures have been introduced about the
judgements made by management to determine whether control exists, and to require summarised
information about joint arrangements, associates and structured entities and subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests. While the Groups do not expect the new standard to affect any of the amounts
recognised in the Financial Statements, it is anticipated that the Groups will be required to increase
disclosures.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2013. It establishes a single source of guidance for determining the fair value of assets and
liabilities. AASB 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather, it provides
guidance on how to determine fair value when fair value is required or permitted. Application of this
definition may result in different fair values being determined for the relevant assets. AASB 13 also
expands the disclosure requirements for all assets or liabilities carried at fair value. This includes
information about the assumptions made and the qualitative impact of those assumptions on the fair
value determined.

While the Groups do not expect the new standard to affect any of the amounts recognised in the
Financial Statements, it is anticipated that the Groups will be required to increase its disclosures of its
financial liabilities measured at fair value.
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 2 Profit for the Year
DUET Group DUET Group
(cc) Standards and Interpretation (continued) 301J~lul 13 301 Jul 1%
- un -30Jun 1
AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosures — Offsetting : = $000 $000
Financial Assets and Liabilities O evenue
Sales revenue
AASB 2012-2 is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013. It principally Distribution revenue 656,518 611,465
amends AASB 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures to require disclosure of the effect or potential Metering revenue 93,054 93,279
effect of netting arrangements. This includes rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised Transportation revenue 418,109 424,832
financial assets and liabilities on the entity’s financial position, when the offsetting criteria of AASB132 New connections revenue 2,181 25579
are not all met Other sales revenue 4,413 24,819
’ 1,174,275 1,156,974
AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Offsetting Financial Assets R .
T evenue from investments
and Liabilities Interest revenue . 5,539
AASB 2012-3 is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. It adds - 5,539
application guidance to AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation to address inconsistencies oth
identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, including clarifying the meaning of miefersrf;':\?e“neue 6.343 12741
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be Customer contributions 45.927 43339
considered equivalent to net settlement. The Groups do not intend to adopt the new standard before Miscellaneous revenue 37:716 1,548
its operative date 89,986 57,628
AASB 9 Financial Instruments Total revenue 1,264,261 1,220,141
AASB 9 Financial Instruments is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July . other i
2015, with early adoption permitted. A related omnibus standard AASB 2009-11: “Amendments to f\l"lt Fair vaﬁ;";;??sn derivative contracts and loans 48.091 )
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9” makes a number of amendments to other Net Foreign exchange gains 1:034 1,039
accounting standards as a result of AASB 9 and must be adopted at the same time. Total other income 49,125 1.939
AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. For financial Total dother
assets, there are only two models, amortised cost and fair value. To be classified and measured at otalrevenue and otherincome 1,313,386 1,222,080
amortised cost, the asset must satisfy the business model test and have contractual cash flow
characteristics. All other instruments are to be classified and measured at fair value. (i) Share of net profit/(loss) of associates accounted for
The accounting for financial liabilities will continue to be performed under AASB 139 until further ;i'”g thf equity ’t“e_thOd before i ' boE
amendments are made by the International Accounting Standards Board. We are currently assessing Share °f assoc!ate income before d!Sposal _WSGN - 6,001
the impact of these standards are or associate iIncome beftore disposal - - 753
' - 6,754
Apart from these standards, we have considered other accounting standards that will be applicable in (iv) Net gains/(losses) on disposal of associates
future periods, however they have been considered insignificant to DUET. Transfer from reserves to income statement on disposal of associates i (38.122)
] ] Net gain/(loss) on disposal of associate — WAGN, net of transaction costs - 44,416
(dd) Comparative figures Net gain/(loss) on disposal of associate — DQE, net of transaction costs
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in the before transfer of reserves - 2,374
presentation in the current period. ) 8,668
(ee) Rounding of amounts
DUET Group, DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL are of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100,
issued by ASIC, relating to the ‘rounding off’ of amounts in the Directors’ report and Financial Report.
Amounts in the Directors’ report and Financial Report have been rounded off in accordance with that
Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.
(ff)  Contributed equity
Stapled securities are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
stapled securities are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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FINANGCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

3 Income Tax

DUET Group DUET Group
1Jul 12 1Jdul11
-30Jun13 -30Jun 12
$°000 $'000
a) Tax reconciliation
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 49,852 46,328
Tax expense/(benefit) at 30% 14,956 13,898
Share of net losses/(profits) of associates - (2,026)
Unused tax losses and offsets not recognised as DTA 9,041 14,337
Foreign withholding tax paid - 401
Under/(over) provision from prior year (874) (1,414)
Tax effect of operating results of Australian Trusts 10,248 (22,754)
Non deductible expenses 748 490
Tax losses not previously recognised, recouped during the year (3,836) (601)
Research and development ) -
Sundry items (21) -
Total income tax (credit)/expense 30,261 2,331
b) Income tax (credit)/expense
Income tax expense comprises:
- Current tax 715 (13,529)
- Deferred tax 29,525 12,220
- Under/(over) provision from prior year 21 3,640
Total income tax (credit)/expense 30,261 2,331
Income tax expenses attributable to:
- Profit from continuing operations 30,261 2,331
Aggregate income tax expense 30,261 2,331
Deferred income tax (revenue) expense included in income tax expense
comprises:
- Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 8,088 34,380
- Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax liabilities 21,437 (22,160)
29,525 12,220
c) Amounts recognised directly in equity
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not
recognised in net profit or loss but directly debited or credited to equity:
Net deferred tax — (credited)/debited directly to equity on revaluation of cash
flow hedges (5,909) (62,940)
(5,909) (62,940)
d) Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 677,439 689,690
Potential tax benefit @ 30% 203,232 206,907
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DFL
1Jul 11
-30 Jun
12
$000
(417)
(125)
52

(73)

DMC1
1Jul 11
-30 Jun
12
$000
(346)
(104)
52

(52)

DIHL
Group
1Jul11
-30Jun
12
$'000
(41,618)
(12,485)

DUET3
1Jul 11
-30 Jun
12
$000
21,018
6,305
(6,305)
401

DFT
1Jul11
-30 Jun
12
$000
(8,882)
(2,665)
2,665

DFL
1Jul12
-30Jun

13
$°000

993

298

21

319

DMC1
1Jul 12
-30Jun

13
$°000
228
21
249

DIHL Group
1Jul 12
-30Jun13
$°000
(29,924)
(8,977)

771

8,280

(21)

53

DUET3
1Jul 12
-30Jun

13
$°000
6,658
1,997

(1,997)

DFT
1Jul12
-30Jun13
$°000
39,708
11,912
2,902
(14,814)

Tax reconciliation
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense

Income Tax (continued)
Tax expense/(benefit) at 30%
Unused tax losses and offsets not recognised as DTA

Foreign withholding tax paid
Tax losses not previously recognised, recouped during

Tax effect of operating results of Australian Trusts
the year

Share of net losses/(profits) of associates
Under/(over) provision from prior year
Non deductible expenses

Total income tax (credit)/expense

Research and development

Sundry items

a)

(e0]
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FINANGCIAL REPORT FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

7 Receivables 7 Receivables (continued)
DUET Group DUET Group
30Jun13 30 Jun 12
$000 $000 Redeemable Preference Shares
Current The redeemable preference shares issued by United Energy are deferred cumulative preference shares that
Trade receivables 69,641 79,647 i i
Provision for impairment of receivables (2,154) (15.006) are rede_emablg on the d?.te 20 yegrs from the dates of |s_sue, .b_emg 23 July 2003 and 20 January_2009.
GST receivable 797 1,758 Interest is receivable semi-annually in arrears. If there are insufficient funds for the coupons to be paid, the
Interest receivable deferred dividends will accumulate and compound at the coupon rates of 13.5% and 11.75% per annum.
- Associated entity - -
- Other parties 7,160 1,584 Credit Risk
Distributions receivable - -
Other debtors 4,208 - There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to current and non current receivables as the Group has a
79,652 67,983 number of customers throughout Australia who in turn have a large number of retail customers. Refer to note

Non-current 32 for more information on the risk management policy of the Group Receivables.

Redeemable preference shares — associated entity - -
Subordinated loans — associated entity - -
Shareholder loans — associated entities - -
Other receivables 21,049 21,507
Other receivables related parties - -

21,049 21,507

Impairment Analysis

Trade Receivables

DUET Group DUET Group
30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12
$°000 $000
Not yet due 67,487 64,641
Past due but not impaired - -
Provision for impairment loss"” 2,154 15,006
69,641 79,647

W At 30 June 12, provision for impairment loss includes $12.9 million due to a dispute between DBP and a Shipper.

Other balances within receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that
these other balances will be received when due. DUET1, DFT, DUET3, DIHL, DMC1 and DFL do not hold any
trade receivables at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.

Provision for impairment of receivables

Movements in the provision of impairment of receivables are as follows:

DUET Group DUET Group

30Jun 13 30 Jun 12

$°000 $'000

Opening balance at 1 July 15,006 2,227
Additions to provision during the year 4,224 12,854
Receivables written off during the year (17,076) (75)
2,154 15,006

84  DUET Group Annual Report 2013 85
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o 10 Derivative Financial Instruments
% ™ DUET Group DUET Group
30Jun 13 30 Jun 12
N I . $'000 $000
E \; .8 Current assets
8 EXG Interest rate swap contracts - 783
= Cross currency swaps 1,461 -
Forward exchange contracts 1,164 116
o i Total current derivative financial instrument assets 2,625 899
£
e 5o Non current assets
= Interest rate swap contracts 15,494 1,021
Cross currency swaps 31,453 346
Total non current derivative financial instrument assets 46,947 1,367
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o 2 Current liabilities
g Interest rate swap contracts 86,071 91,638
® CPl index hedge contracts 21,975 15,904
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5 ®g '3l v Forward exchange contracts - 15
E g g ™| ™ Revenue swaps - 57
g Total current derivative financial instrument liabilities 108,926 116,258
(3]
Non current liabilities
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Current assets

Interest rate swap contracts
CPI index hedge contracts
Cross currency swaps
Revenue swaps

Forward exchange contracts

Total current derivative financial instrument assets

Non current assets

Forward exchange contracts

Revenue swaps

CPI index hedge contracts

Interest rate swap contracts

Cross currency swaps

Total non current derivative financial instrument assets

Current liabilities

Interest rate swap contracts
CPI index hedge contracts

Cross currency swaps

Forward exchange contracts

Revenue swaps

Total current derivative financial instrument liabilities

Non current liabilities

Interest rate swap contracts
Forward exchange contracts
CPl index hedge contracts

Cross currency swaps

Total non current derivative financial instrument

liabilities
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10

Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Instruments used by the Group

DUET Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge
exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates in accordance with the Group's financial risk
management policies (refer to Note 32).

0]

(i)

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges

Bank loans and guarantee notes of the Group currently bear an average variable interest rate of
3.05% (2012: 4.11%). Accordingly, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under
which it has the right to receive interest at variable rates and is obliged to pay interest at fixed rates.
Swaps in place cover approximately 100% (2012: 100%) of the loan principal outstanding and are
timed to expire as the loan repayments are due or to coincide with the next prevailing regulatory reset.
The recognised fair value of interest rate swaps on the Balance Sheet as a net liability at 30 June
2013 was $202.3 million (2012: net liability of $281.0 million was recognised), of which $37.9 million
(2012: $101.2 million) was the before tax amount recognised in the hedging reserve.

The notional principal amounts and period of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts are as follows:

Weighted Weighted

average fixed average fixed

30Jun 13 interest rates 30 Jun 12 interest rates

$'000 2013 $'000 2012

Less than 1 year 725,000 6.45% 1,095,000 7.01%
1-2years 526,000 6.99% 1,150,000 5.84%
2 -3 years 4,249,000 6.17% 725,000 6.93%
3 -4 years 820,000 5.57% 3,645,000 6.68%
4 -5 years 1,360,000 3.30% 820,000 5.57%
Over 5 years 480,000 3.86% - -
8,160,000 5.39% 7,435,000 6.50%

The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt. The
contracts are settled on a net basis.

The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the
hedging reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and reclassified into profit or loss when the
hedge interest expense is recognised. The ineffective portion is recognised in the Income Statement
immediately. In the year ended 30 June 2013 a debit of $11.4 million (2012: a debit of $1.7 million)
was transferred to the profit or loss.

Interest rate swap contracts — fair value hedges

Bank loans and guarantee notes of the Group currently bear an average variable interest rate of
3.01% (2012: not applicable).

The recognised fair value of interest rate swaps on the Balance Sheet at 30 June 2013 was $14.0
(2012: $nil. was recognised).
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10 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued) 10 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Interest rate swap contracts — fair value hedges (continued) :'r:le notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the cross currency swap contracts are as
ollows:
Weighted Weighted
. - . . . fixed fixed
The notional principal amounts and period of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts are as follows: 30 Jun 13 ?,;erzgf r;xtzs 30 Jun 12 ?Xf;;i? r;ees
Weighted Weighted $'000 2013 $000 2012
average fixed average fixed Less than 1 year - - - -
30Jun 13 interest rates 30 Jun 12 interest rates 1-2years 154,083 3.91% R R
$000 2013 $000 2012 2-3years 1,018,097 5.00% 154,083 3.91%
Less than 1 year 50,000 7.17% - - 3 -4 years _ _ 1,018,097 5.00%
1-2years - - 4-5years 803,434 5.01% - -
2 -3 years 695,000 5.08% Over 5 years - - 803,434 5.01%
3-4years - - 1,975,614 4.64% 1,975,614 4.92%
4 -5 years - -
Over 5 years - - The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt. The
745,000 6.12% Cross currency contracts are settled on a gross basis while the CPI indexed interest rate swaps are

i Int  rat iracts - held for tradi settled on a net basis.

iii) Interest rate swap contracts — held for tradin . . . L . .

(i) ) P ] g. ] ) . The fair value gain or loss from remeasuring hedging instruments designated in cash flow hedge
The below interest rate swaps are undesignated in hedge relationships and are therefore classified as relationships is deferred in equity in the hedging reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and
held for trading. The aim is that the swaps will be designated into hedging relationships when the debt reclassified into profit or loss when the hedge interest expense is recognised. The ineffective portion is
is drawn down. recognised in the Income Statement immediately. In the year ended 30 June 2013 a loss of $20.4
The recognised fair value of interest rate swaps on the Balance Sheet as a net liability at 30 June million (2012: loss of $13.9 million) was transferred to the profit or loss.

2013 was $nil (2012: $1.1 million), of which a loss of $nil (2012: loss of $8.3 million) was recognised in Fair value Hedges
the Income Statement. - . . . .
i o ] ) ] As part of the joint hedge relationships a portion of the cross currency swaps have been designated
The notional principal amounts and period of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts are as follows: into fair value hedge relationships to protect fair value movements in the USD denominated fixed rate
loans.
avegeégf?:zg aver‘g’eégf?)tzg During the period a gain of $3.2 million (2012: gain of $26.2 million) was recorded in the income
30 Jun 13 intereit rates 30 Jun 12 imeregst rates statement on the hedging instruments designated in a fair value relationship. A corresponding loss of
$'000 2013 $'000 2012 $3.3 million (2012: loss of $25.9 million) was recorded in the income statement on the fair adjustment
Iiesz ‘h:” 1 year - - 44,500 7.38% of the USD denominated interest bearing liabilities.
—cyears - - - -
;*iyeafs - - (v) CPlIndex hedge contracts — cash flow hedges
— 4 years - - . . . . .
4 —5years ) ) United Energy has entered into indexed CPI (Consumer Price Index) swaps together with cross
Over 5 years - - - - currency interest swaps that effectively hedge interest rate and CPI risk.
- - 44,500 7.38% The recognised fair value of CPI hedge contracts on the Balance Sheet at 30 June 2013 as a net
(v) Cross currency and interest rate swap contracts - cash flow and fair value hedges liability was $6_4._7 million (2012: a net liability of $§7.9 mllllon was recognised), which $2.8 million
] ) ) (2012: $13.9 million) was the after tax amount recognised in the hedge reserve.
A portion of the guaranteed notes of the Group are denominated in US dollars (USD) and currently
bear interest at an average fixed rate of 4.55% (2012: 4.72%). It is Group policy to protect the loans
from exposure to increasing interest rates and fluctuating foreign exchange rates.
Cross Currency Swaps and interest rate swaps have been designated in hedge relationships to
manage the Group’s exposure to these risks. The cross currency swaps in place cover approximately
100% of the loan principal outstanding and are timed to expire as the loan repayments are due.
The recognised fair value of cross currency and interest rate swaps designated in cash flow hedges
under this hedging relationship on the Balance Sheet at 30 June 2013 as a net liability was $23.7
million (2012: $103.8 million) of which $66.5 million (2012: $16.2 million) was the before tax amount
recognised in the hedge reserve.
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10 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued) 10 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

At 30 June 2012 and 2011, the notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the CPI hedge

contracts are as follows: (vii) Foreign exchange forward contracts

Weigfhteg Weigfhteg UEDH purchases interval meters as part of its smart meter rollout program. The purchases are in

average tixe average ftixe . . .. . . .

30 Jun13 interest rates 30 Jun 12 interest rates USD. The foreign egchang-e risk arising from the purchases is hedged using foreign exchange
$'000 2013" $000 2012% contracts. The recognised fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts on the Balance Sheet at 30

Less than 1 year -

June 2013 as a net asset was $1.2 million (2012: an asset of $nil million was recognised), of which

;:ggzzg 2200 00(; 51550 $0.5 million (2012: $nil million) was recognised in profit or loss and $0.7 million (2012: $nil million) was
3-4years B L 2 200,000 5 150 recognised in the hedging reserve.
4 -5 years - - - DUET Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts at balance date. Details of

Over 5 years - -

2,200,000 5.15% 2,200,000 5.15%

outstanding amounts are:

@ Fixed interest rate is escalated each year due to CP!I. Buy USD Average Exchange Rate
L . L . . 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 12
The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt. The Maturity US$'000 US$'000 usD USsD
contracts are settled on a net basis. Less than 1 year 14,862 45,966 1.0097
The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in the 1-2years - 14,683 0.9811
hedging reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and reclassified into profit or loss when the 2-3years - - -
hedge interest expense is recognised. The ineffective portion is recognised in the Income Statement 3-4years - - -
immediately. In the year ended 30 June 2013 a gain of $6.6 million (2012: a gain of $nil million) was 4 -5 years - - -
transferred to the Income Statement. Over 5 years - - -
(vi) Revenue CPI swap contracts — cash flow hedge
. . R Sell USD Average Exchange Rate
The recognised fair value of the revenue swap on the Balance Sheet at 30 June 2013 as a net liability 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 13 30 Jui 12 9 30 Jun 12
was $r_1i| (2_012: a liability of $0.1 million), of which $nil (2012: a loss of $0.3 million) has been Maturity US$000 US$000 USD USD
recognised in profit or loss. Less than 1 year _ i _
The notional principal amounts and period of expiry of the revenue swap contract is as follows: 1-2years - - -
Weighted Weighted 2 —3years _ ) )
average fixed average fixed 3 -4 years - - -
30 Jun 13 interest rates 30 Jun 12 interest rates 4-5years i
$'000 2013 $'000 2012 - -
Less than 1 year - - 20,000 4.43% Over 5 years - - -
1-2years - - - -
2 — 3 years - - -
3 -4 years - - -
4 — 5 years - - -
Over 5 years - - - R
- - 20,000 4.43%
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12 Property, Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment in the course of construction — at cost

Land & Buildings — at cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Plant and equipment — at cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Office equipment and software — at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Fixtures and fittings — at cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total property, plant & equipment — at cost
Less: Total accumulated depreciation

Freehold Land — at cost
Motor vehicles — at cost
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FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 @
aN O T T R T |
> O
9 cQ
13 Deferred Tax Assets ERG
DUET Group DUET Group T =
30Jun13 30 Jun 12 a
$°000 $'000
The balance comprises temporary difference attributable to: Py8 N B Y
Amounts recognised in profit or loss ":')J S 5;
Doubtful debts 497 4.349 °g
Meter replacement 2,309 3,773
Accident compensation 35 35 - o Y T A
Other employee entitlements 5,229 4,613 a Z' .8
Property, plant & equipment 330 4,628 5%
Intangibles 3,436 2,955 8
Accrued revenue 1,564 2,312
Environmental provision 980 680 Jmo L T T T o Vo~
Other provisions 2,137 1,737 LS : .8
Decommissioning Provision 9,429 6,125 3
o
Audit fees 103 116 ®
Other 7,103 5,784
Equity raising costs 201 156 528 P T T e .
Cash flow hedges and hedged interest bearing liabilities 91,262 73,657 § 5 5; %
3
Tax losses * 130,172 125,426 =4 i
254,787 236,346 5
oMo G o '+ e o gl @ °
I+ O N N ~ < [}
. . . . 09O o o 2]
Cash flow hedges recognised directly in equity 38,446 77,471 5 S& ® @
Defined benefit reserve recognised directly in equity 1,097 1,278 :Tl: 2 a
(3]
39,543 315,095 =) @
S
Set — off deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set off provisions (Note 20) (200,005) (221,543) E ‘; S S
Net deferred tax assets 94,325 93,552 m 8 3& _g
% g
* |n addition to the above losses recorded as a deferred tax asset, the Group has unbooked losses as set out in Note 3. O i
oo T T R T S oo 3
w~—~o =
DUET Group DUET Group m 0ec© (O]
30Jun 13 30 Jun 12 3 g
$°000 $000 I I I =3 .
Movements: () @
Opening balance at 1 July 93,552 70,820 m oy @ 0 ot
Credited/(charged) to the Income Statement (8,089) (34,380) 8 § :g - =
= = 3]
Acquisition of subsidiaries 14 - L - 2 3 ’é_ = 5
Credited/(charged) to equity 8,848 57,112 J — 3 © 2 2 e 3 2
Closing balance 30 June 94,325 93,552 s | Z > s g > 4 %
= W= g 2 £ 8 = 5
0 = I o)
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 94,325 93,552 r—— 8 § g A g ? E ? g
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months - - %) =2 £ = _§ 2 )
= o ko] =
94,325 93,552 u E b e g a o c o z2 g 2
1) K S S & S kst 8 9 = A
=1 < 5 & g g @ g § o g 8
- c S = (=) o g %) -
Z = - 5§ 5 g3 & ¢ B g s 5o 8 &
LL] By 8§ =858 3 5 sg. o 8 £ % 8
el 3 o 5,388 25gf£ 285 S = 82 x| o
= = S8 gE2£8E25 828 g=2%,. e g2 5| =
w B s228238288838,383 9 =g 352 2
> SELz9E§22g:s5E83 L83 = 55 3| S
5 5 85 o L 0 O3 O o s 32> 0 =9 ® =
2 Q2 o B o c 25 p O 2 £ c = c c 2 5 5
— 25 E2388£5882£83832¢23 2% 33 B| B
o ™ Fs<O0O=2<0a &E<woogc<<WwOoO+ [S)ya nwaz <
L. A .
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ocNO oo | Coa |
5 § S 14 Intangible Assets
2 = DUET Group DUET Group
3 30Jun13 30 Jun 12
$°000 $'000
©Ng [ RN I [ Intellectual property at cost 127,340 127,340
g § 8 Less: accumulated amortisation (64,117) (57,670)
°g 63,223 69,670
~ o A Co Software 324,098 313,521
E ‘; 8 Less: accumulated amortisation (172,518) (168,554)
2 151,580 144,967
o
[32]
Distribution Licences 1,035,377 1,035,377
Mmoo e s ~ o~
ls \; 8 Employee contract asset (note 21) 2,376 2,376
3% Less: accumulated amortisation (832) (356)
8 1,544 2,020
5 © 8 [ SRS ~ oY~ Development Project Costs 80,164 74,313
g < g Less: accumulated amortisation (34,220) (21,845)
3 45,944 52,468
(2]
gmg et e @ 'le Gooduwill 789,780 789,780
o o Total 2,087,448 2,094,282
o3%
|
3
o
h 2 m 8 . . L} . . . L} .
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FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 =3
™
14  Intangible Assets (continued) %:‘ “:‘4§ I
25 c¢
0on 3%
Impairment for goodwill and distribution licences £78
Ia) '
Goodwill and distribution licences are allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) which are
identified according to the relevant operating segment. E o3 § § % § %
, L . 53580 ¢ 9<
A segment-level summary of the goodwill and distribution licences is presented below. a3 S R al -
™
Dampier Bunbury .
Multinet Pipeline  United Energy Total Lad98 8 R 3|3
O0sc2 2N Qo
2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 350 7 oS o
Goodwill 72,806 670,832 46,142 789,780 = e
Distribution licences 407,963 - 627,414 1,035,377 '
480,769 670,832 673,556 1,825,157 Jamol ' o gl ¢
- 5Ttgl &S
2 S E7 ~ 10
. Dampier Bunbury 3 3 3 A
Multinet Pipeline United Energy Total SN8I8 5 ol %ls Yo
2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 8cola 4 Nl @
- 039 39 ¢ o8|
Goodwill 72,806 670,832 46,142 789,780 Eo = 5|2
o W ® ) I ~N®mO| ' »
Distribution licences 407,963 - 627,414 1,035,377 2 = g-ts8l ¢ 3
o S - -~ <
480,769 670,832 673,556 1,825,157 = 833w «~ < |4
> Yo S
. . . © ™
The recoverable amounts of the Group’s CGUs are determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell < ' 5
i i LL L} L} L} L} =
and value-in-use calculations. sogn © 53 g samg £
. . L . . < 05 c@ =
The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the boards g S ; o :;. ;- 8 633 £
15 iod. A terminal value based on th lated b d to val h CGU o T 22%3 278 e
cover a 15 year period. A terminal value based on the regulated asset base was used to value eac at 53 S I 3 =
the end of the 15 year period. The growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the h 2 a o ' g
. ) . B 15
business in which the CGU operates. m % Ec‘g «‘_ag % § S § %
S €~ - -~ © "~
. . . . D335% 0o o O .
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations 2 o223 vV g
= ® 2
A key assumption used in the value-in-use calculations is that the asset companies will generate the cash O é ' <
flows set out in the business models for the applicable CGU. These business models include expected m 3 Foamgls g 2|58
. . . N
revenues based on regulatory determinations (for UEDH and MGH) and agreed shipper contracts (for DBP) § o 3 sol 3 P ot §
over a period of 15 years and costs determined through a detailed bottom-up planning process. Another key I I I XS] o Y@ g Y2
. . . . . . (2]
assumption is that the discount rate using to discount the forecast cash flows and expected terminal values ﬂ z ‘ z
of each CGU is appropriate. This discount rates used are calculated using a weighted average cost of m o E E
capital methodology using market-based inputs. N 2 2
Impact of possible changes in key assumptions J — % %
N N
Management does not consider that any reasonably possible change in the assumptions will result in the ;, E E
carrying value to exceed the recoverable amount. =) fal a
| T — . —
Amortisation period 0 =y = 5 2 2 2
- L . . . Ll > 2 o
The remaining amortisation period for intellectual property is 9 to 54 years, and software 1 to 5 years. =y & £ 5 @ £ = d
o £ 9 @ € g @
= S 22 3 3 3
= L Sopels
= 2 et g 3|E £ 258
<T 3% £ g% 33238
%)) € 5 o o e = = ™ g
I-IJ — @ o = E 5 o by
S= BN >o € ol 8 = ¢ T|Q
£33 2o 23 5 %o
m— - RS RN £33 5|6
LL. 2 82882 5EF &2
7] oo o m|o
Ll < <
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DFL

30 Jun 12
$'000

DMC1
30 Jun 12
$'000

DIHL Group
30 Jun 12
$'000

DUET3
30 Jun 12
$'000

DFT

30 Jun 12
$'000

DFL

30Jun 13
$°000

DMCA
30Jun 13
$°000

30Jun13
$°000

DUET3 DIHL Group

30Jun 13
$°000

DFT

30Jun13
$°000

Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)

~
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=
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LLl
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(=]
LLl
(=]
-
LLl
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Current

Bank Loan

Unsecured

Bank Loans

113,147
113,147

60,364
60,364

108,829
108,829

212,392
212,392

Borrowings from related parties

Finance lease liabilities

Capitalised borrowing transaction costs

113,147

60,364

Total current interest bearing liabilities

Non-current
Secured

Bank loans

Unsecured
Bank loans

Redeemable preference shares
Borrowings from related party

1,289

1,289

Finance lease liability

Capitalised borrowing transaction costs

1,289

Total non current interest bearing liabilities

1,289 113,147

60,364

108,829

212,392

Total interest bearing liabilities

FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

17 Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)

Financing Arrangements

At balance date the Group had access to the following undrawn lines of credit:

Undrawn balance

Undrawn balance

30Jun 13 30 Jun 12
'000 ‘000
DUET 1
Related party loan - DFT 37,147 37,147
DFT
Related party loan - -
DUET 3
Related party loan — DUET1 20,000 18,711
DIHL
Related party loan — DUET1 200,000 200,000
DUET 2008 Funding Sub Trust
Revolving facility n/a 200,000
n/a 200,000
DMC1
Related party loans - -
DFL
Related party loans - -
Dampier Bunbury Pipeline
Term loan 60,000 72,000
Working capital facility - 5,000
60,000 77,000
United Energy
Senior Corporate Facility — Tranche B Capex facility 30,000 75,000
Senior Corporate Facility — Tranche C 58,000 193,000
Bank loans - working capital facility and AIMRO Capex 18,000 80,000
Westpac facility* 125,000 -
231,000 348,000
Multinet
Senior Corporate Facility 32,577 22,577
Capital expenditure facility 12,500 115,500
Bank loans - working capital facility 20,000 20,000
65,077 158,077
Total 613,224 1,038,935

* facility commences on 16 April 2014
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17 Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)

Bank Loans

DUET Group

DUET Group $200.0 million syndicated corporate senior debt facility was cancelled on 19 December 2012.
Dampier Bunbury Pipeline

On 2 October 2012, DBP reached contract close of a $155.0 million, seven year bank facility to repay part of
$325 million floating rates notes maturing in April 2013.

On 17 December 2012, DBP entered into a $170 million, four year bank debt facility. The amount raised was
applied to repay DBP’s remaining maturing term debt in 2013 and other bank debt facilities.

A working capital facility is in place with a $20 million limit maturing in May 2014.
United Energy

Tranche A of the $120.0 million term bank loan under the senior corporate facilities, matures in June 2018.
The facility limit of Tranche B has been reduced to $30 million after the outstanding balance was paid in full.
This facility has a maturity date of June 2014. A working capital facility with a limit of $30.0 million matures in
December 2013.

Tranche C of the senior corporate facilities, which is a capex facility, matures in June 2014. The facility limit
has been reduced to $88 million from $260 million. The smart meter debt facility which was a $50 million
capex facility maturing in December 2013 for the purpose of funding the roll-out of Advanced Metering
Infrastructure was cancelled in July 2012.

On 11 April 2013, United Energy raised a $400 million five year Asian syndicated bank loan facility, maturing
in April 2018.

On 1 May 2013, United Energy raised a $125 million bank debt facility with Westpac Banking Corporation,
maturing in May 2018.

Multinet

Tranche A of the senior corporate facilities with a facility limit of $300 million matures in November 2016. A
working capital facility with a facility limit of $20.0 million matures in April 2014.

Tranche B of the senior corporate facilities is a capex facility with a facility limit of $120 million, maturing in
November 2014.

A $70 million term bank loan which was refinanced on 12 July 2011, matures in July 2014.

The $50 million IT growth capex bank debt facility which was raised in July 2011, was fully cancelled on 17
June 2013.

FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

17 Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)

Guaranteed notes
Dampier Bunbury Pipeline

There are two tranches of floating rate note facilities outstanding with credit support provided by Ambac
Assurance. There is one tranche of $275.0 million, which matures in April 2017 and one further tranche of
$325.0 million, which matures in April 2018.

The third tranche of $325.0 million was settled in full during the year by using proceeds of a $155.0 million
bank debt facility raised in October 2012 and $300.0 million fixed rate notes issued in November 2012.

A $415.5 million floating rate note matures in September 2015.
A $150.0 million fixed rate note with a coupon of 8.25% matures in September 2015.

A $300.0 million fixed medium term note with a coupon of 6.0% was raised on 2 November 2012 and
matures in October 2019.

United Energy

US$200.0 million (A$263 million) 5.45% fixed rate guaranteed notes maturing in April 2016, were issued on
19 November 2003.

United Energy drew down on funds raised through a US Private Placement in December 2010. The notes
are fixed rate for four years (US$70 million at an interest rate of 3.91%) and seven years (US$365 million at
an interest rate of 5.01%).

A$500 million floating rate guaranteed notes maturing in October 2014, were issued on 31 October 2005.
A$200 million fixed rate notes maturing in April 2017, were issued in April 2012.
A$65 million fixed rates notes maturing in April 2017, were issued in August 2012.

Scheduled payment of principal and interest on the notes is guaranteed by a related entity within the UEDH
Group.

Long term currency swaps have been entered into to convert the USD exposure on the guaranteed notes
into an Australian dollar exposure. The swaps entitle the Group to receive an agreed amount of USD and
oblige it to pay an agreed amount of Australian dollars at the date of maturity of the guaranteed notes. The
value of the guaranteed notes presented above is after the impact of the amount payable under the currency
swap agreement.

Multinet Gas

A$300 million floating rate guaranteed notes were issued on 15 June 2007, matured in July 2011 and were
refinanced. The refinanced notes mature on 10 July 2017.

US$135.0 million 4.2% fixed rate US Private Placement loan notes maturing on 8 November 2015, were
issued on 8 November 2010.

US$50.0 million 4% fixed rate US Private Placement loan note maturing on 10 August 2015, were issued on
9 August 2010.

Scheduled payment of principal and interest on the notes is guaranteed by a related entity within the MGH
Group.
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17 Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)
Redeemable preference shares

The redeemable preference shares issued by United Energy are deferred cumulative preference shares that
are redeemable on the date 20 years from the dates of issue, being 23 July 2003, 21 January 2009, 29
January 2009 and 11 March 2011. Dividends are paid semi-annually or at any time a declaration is made by

17

FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Assets pledged as security

Interest Bearing Liabilities (continued)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are:

. . . . DUET Group DUET Group
the board of Directors of United Energy. The annual dividend rate on the shares is 13.5% and 11.75% per 30Jun 13 30 Jun 12
annum. $°000 $7000
. . Current
Borrowings from related parties Cash and cash equivalents 16,703 179,082
Loan agreements between DUET parent entities are included in borrowings from associates. These loans Receivables 3,900 24,971
have a maturity of 9 years and pay interest at 8% per annum. At 30 June 2013, the amounts payable to Inventories 16,974 15,520
associated entities by DFT is $212.4 million (2012: $60.4 million), by DUET 3 is $Nil (2012: $1.3 million), Other 17,851 19,024
and by DIHL $108.8 million (2012: $113.1 million). Total current assets pledged as security 55,428 238,597
Fair values Non-current
The fair values and carrying values of borrowings of DUET Group, DFT, DUET3 and DIHL are as follows Property, plant and equipment 2,993,223 3,027,877
(based on cash flows discounted using current lending rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles): Intangible asset 672,619 674,198
Investment in associates - 1,445,471
DUET Group 2013 2012 . .
Loans to associated entities - 112,236
Carrying Redeemable Preference Shares
amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value - 331,542
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Other 21,507 21,507
Total non current assets pledged as security 3,687,349 5,612,831
Non traded financial liabilities
Bank loans 2,087,720 2,107,423 1,671,618 1,650,334 Total assets pledged as security 3,742,777 5,851,428
Guaranteed Notes 3,450,532 3,582,015 3,326,585 3,481,115 _ _ _ _ _ _
Redeemable preference shares 178,587 321,253 170,794 313,080 All of DBP's debt is senior secured, ranks pari-passu, and is guaranteed by DBNGP Holdings and its
5,716,839 6,010,691 5,168,997 5.444 529 subsidiaries. The security is via fixed and floating charges over the DBNGP assets.
DFT 2013 2012
Carrying
amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non traded financial liabilities
Borrowings from associated entities* 212,392 212,392 60,364 60,364
212,392 212,392 60,364 60,364

*On 19 June 2013, DFT acquired DUET1'’s share of the Tranche A redeemable preference shares in UED. In consideration, DFT
issued a promissory note to DUET1 in the amount of $154,028,000. Refer to note 7.

DUET3 2013 2012
Carrying
amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non traded financial liabilities
Borrowings from associated entities - - 1,289 1,289
- - 1,289 1,289
DIHL Group 2013 2012
Carrying
amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non traded financial liabilities
Borrowings from associated entities 108,829 108,829 113,147 113,147
108,829 108,829 113,147 113,147
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18 Provisions (continued) 18 Provisions (continued)

Decommissioning provision Movements in provisions

DBP has a legislative obligation to purge and seal the pipeline on retirement of the asset, together with the
abandonment of associated above ground facilities. The cost of carrying out this restoration work (based on

Movements in each class of provision during the year are set out below:

Year ended 30 June 2013

satisfying the minimum obligation) has been estimated at $77.3 million. This estimate has been discounted

; . ; co Other Transition Unaccounted
back at the risk free rate to provide a best estimate of the provision in the Balance Sheet. Property, plant Decommissioning Environmental  Employee services for gas
and equipment is grossed up by this amount and depreciated over the remaining life of the asset, while the Provision provision Benefits Provision Provision Total
provision is escalated to unwind the discount over the remaining life of the asset. . $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $000 $°000
Current consolidated
Environmental provision Carrying amount at 1 July
. . . . . . 2012 - 399 8,094 8,300 - 16,793
United Energy and Multinet provide for environmental management costs to ensure compliance with Additional provisions
environmental management principles using ISO 14001 and The Environmental Protection Act 1970 of recognised ; ; 8,465 8,300 10,725 27,490
Victoria. Transfer of provision - - - - - -
Transition services provision Payments/other sacrifices
of economic benefits - - (2,799) (8,300) - (11,099)
United Energy has previously entered into contracts associated with the transition of service providers. A Carrying amount at 30
remaining payment of $8.3 million is expected to be made in September 2013. June 2013 - 399 13,760 8,300 10,725 33,184
Unaccounted for gas Non-current consolidated
Multinet Gas has made a provision for the estimated unaccounted for gas liability to 30 June 2013, over and Carrying at 1 July 2012 20,417 3,129 1,001 8,300 - 32,847
above that which is expected to be recovered in its regulatory-approved tariffs, which represents the cost of Additional provisions
gas leakage from the distribution network. recognised 11,014 1,001 - - - 12,015
Payments/other sacrifices
of economic benefits - - (342) (8,300) - (8,642)
Carrying amount at 30
June 2013 31,431 4,130 659 - - 36,220
Year ended 30 June 2012
Decommissioning  Environmental Other Employee  Transition services
Provision provision Benefits Provision Total
$’000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Current consolidated
Carrying amount at 1 July 2011 - 399 9,369 - 9,768
Additional provisions recognised - - 3,998 8,300 12,298
Transfer of provision - - (585) - (585)
Payments/other sacrifices of
economic benefits - - (4,688) - (4,688)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 - 399 8,094 8,300 16,793
Non-current consolidated
Carrying at 1 July 2011 15,161 3,129 203 8,470 26,963
Additional provisions recognised 5,256 - 798 - 6,054
Payments/other sacrifices of
economic benefits - - - (170) (170)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 20,417 3,129 1,001 8,300 32,847
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°ec2 20 Deferred Tax Liabilities
92 DUET Group DUET Group
I3 30 Jun13 30 Jun 12
[a) $°000 $'000
o R o The balance comprises temporary difference attributable to:
TRaESS Amounts recognised in profit or loss
D5» .
an~ Borrowing costs 440 425
o
™ Property, Plant and equipment 625,544 606,665
Intellectual property 5,133 5,236
FNg [ oo Intangibles 4,755 1,947
ocg Licence
5% 51,457 51,457
= Cash flow hedges and hedged interest bearing liabilities 23,135 37,139
Other 565 8
Jmo T AR vl 711,029 702,877
I.QL - 8 -~ | -
cx
3% Retirement benefits reserve recognised directly in equity 712 712
sng § °F<8| § g % 2 Cash flow hedges recognised directly in equity 5,810 (1,258)
8 S g N 5 NES 717,551 702,331
E § S ® § g 1 Set - off deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set off provisions (Note 13) (200,005) (221,543)
8 g S& Net deferred tax liabilities 517,546 480,788
3
3
Movements:
oamo v o v Opening Balance at 1 Jul
cmo| o oo ~ |~ 3vg o ¥w® pening _ y 480,788 508,777
3 ‘; S ® N9 22 (,5 £ b Charged /(credited) to the Income Statement (Note 3) 21,437 (22,160)
63e @9 % SlS Ja Acquisition of subsidiaries 101 -
I® . .
E S 3 Charged /(credited) to equity 15,220 (5,829)
o R N Closing balance 30 June 517,546 480,788
h E o §
c =
m g 3 Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months 517,546 480,788
o S 517,546 480,788
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# FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
o O Co co ] N ol o ] .
SO . . . .
8 34 21 Retirement Benefit Obligations
3
I3 During the 30 June 2012 financial year UE & Multinet Pty Ltd (“UEM”) (formerly Energy Retail Holdings Pty Ltd)
e was established to act as the employment vehicle for all United Energy and Multinet Gas employees. UEM
oag o coa | co | ol o oo commenced trading on 1 October 2011. As part of the commencement of its operations UEM took on
weg responsibility for a defined benefit plan for certain employees that transitioned to UEM from Jemena.
[a
] The following sets out details in respect of the defined benefit plan only.
(@) Defined Benefit Employee Superannuation Plan
L8 The Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF) is a defined benefit fund which pays lump sum and pension benefits
i @ to members upon retirement (most of which are calculated as a multiple of the member’s final average
® salary). The RBF has Contributory members, Compulsory Preserved members and pensioners.
This actuarial assessment has been provided by Mercer in a report dated 24 June 2013.
_' m o 1 1 1 ' o o . L} L} L} ° L} . o L) o o °
&6t s il 0 v )0 Actuarial Assumptions
3 &
3
S 30 June 13 30 June 12
Discount rate 3.4% pa 3.1% pa
5 ®g oo 218 o ‘18 g '8 23 Salary increase rate 4.0% pa 5.0% pa
g g g; Contributions tax rate 15.0% 15.0%
3
o
® (b) Balance sheet amounts
aeg o ol coa < Co oo oo The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are determined as follows:
°cs © S & DUET
03 Group DUET Group DUET Group DUET Group DUET Group DUET Group
T S 30Jun13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 11 30 Jun 10 30 Jun 09 30 Jun 08
=) $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
h o ®o R R R . Lo o N Defined Benefit Obligation 17,455 13,359 - - - -
] pu =4 Fair value of defined benefit plan
m 255 assets 14,631 9,081 - - - -
3 Net liability in the Balance Sheet 2,824 4,278 - - - _
o Adjustment for asset ceiling - - - - R B,
Fog o N N oo o o o Net liability/(asset) 2,824 4,278 - - - -
' . 0cQ
3# (c) Profitand Loss impact
3
[=)
(32
m o 30 June 13 30 June 12
— Financial Period ending $000 $:‘000
() - c Current Service cost 462 288
— ™
N S ° g Net Interest 108 60
m (O] £ = ° ) . X
I = g o > - S = E Defined Benefit Cost 570 348
— = 5] = k) =
=) £ ¢ 5 £ 5 2 5 2
— : s foc : :
o @ pu £ e 2z
S e g, 3 2 =2 g £ k5
E— ) [ > & g 5 § ¢ 2 5
= 2 e @ 2 o] ] o o
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21 Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued) 22 Other Non-Controlling Interest

(d)  Fairvalue of plan assets Quoted pricesin  No Quoted prices Non-Controlling Interest Classified as Equity

Asset category Total active markets  in active markets DUET Group DUET Group
As at 30 June 2013 $000 $000 $000 30 Jg%gg 30 J;%ég
Investment Funds 14,631 - 14,631 ;
Interest in:
Total 14,631 - 14,631 Share Capital 327,334 302,558
As at 30 June 2012 ) ’ ’
Retained losses (97,123) (74,400)
Investment Funds 9,081 - 9,081 Reserves 40,673 36.321
Total 9,081 - 9,081 (40,678) (36.321)
Total 189,538 191,837

The percentage invested in each asset class at the reporting date is:

As at 30 June 13 30 June 12
Australian Equity 30% 35%
International Equity 29% 27%
Fixed Income 10% 11%
Property 9% 10%
Growth Alternatives 8% 8%
Defensive Alternatives 7% 2%
Cash 7% 7%

(e) Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets

30 June 13 30 June 12

Financial Period ending $‘000 $'000
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 9,081 8,383
(+) Interest income 274 266
(+) Actual return on plan assets less interest income 1,442 75
(+) Company contributions 483 330
(+) Contributions by plan participants 151 106
(-) Taxes, premiums & expenses paid (152) (79)
(+) Transfers in 3,352 -
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 14,631 9,081

(f)  Reconciliation of the defined benefit obligation

30 June 13 30 June 12

Financial Period ending $000 $'000
Present value of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the year 13,359 10,759
(+) Current service cost 462 288
(+) Interest expense 382 326
(+) Contributions by plan participants 151 106
(+) Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (2,269) 1,800
(+) Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience 2,170 159
(-) Taxes, premiums & expenses paid (152) (79)
(+) Transfers in 3,352 -
Present value of defined benefit obligations at end of the year 17,455 13,359

(g) Other comprehensive income

30 June 13 30 June 12

Financial Period ending $000 $'000
Actuarial (gains)/losses (99) 1,959
(Excess)/shortfall return on plan assets (1,442) (75)
Defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income (1,541) 1,884
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23 Contributed Equity (continued) 438§ ® ' '@
oscg SR &

33°35 |y

(b) Ordinary units in DUET1, DFT, DUET3 and ordinary shares in DIHL g |== a

Each fully paid stapled security confers the right to vote at meetings of security holders, subject to any
voting restrictions imposed on a security holder under the Corporations Act 2001 and the Listing Rules. waaglt N T g
. . — [ee]
On a show of hands, every security holder present in person or by proxy has one vote. On a poll, every ¢ 3 _g) e § & 2
security holder who is present in person or by proxy has one vote for each dollar of the value of the total 0« = =
interest they have in DUET1, DFT, DUET3, and one vote for each share in respect of DIHL, DMC1 and '
DFL. Fangl el
Osc? &N -
539 g~ g
- L] < © (@]
o =~
24 Reserves Q@
Nature and purpose of Reserves doegs RS 'S
O=c9S o © -
- - : -
0) Hedging Reserve 2 3¢ Al
o

The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are gyt g ©

recognised directly in equity, as described in Note 1(z). Amounts are recognised in the profit or loss when the l‘;” o § i % N 8 = § samgeog 'y

associated hedged transaction affects the profit or loss. g o |= = e seoleab g |+

la} QS 3%~ -

(i) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve g

The Foreign Currency Translation Reserve is used to record exchange differences arising on translation of a .

. . . . . . . . . . ano oo ! L

foreign associate investment. The reserve is recognised in the profit and loss when the associate is disposed g8 @mT oo '|o I--g/8 K 3
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26 Investments in Controlled Entities 26  Investments in Controlled Entities (continued)
Class of Polding Polding
Country of shares / 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 Equity Equity
DUET Group Year end incorporation units O%* %* holding holding
Name of enity LG Country of Class of 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
roup Year end incorporation shares / units %* %*
Amistel Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 -
Australia Energy Finance Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 game.of ;ntlt;/ | n tC
Australian Energy Fund No.2 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 Pta;n:_%er unbuly nvestment =ompany 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
Energy Partnership (Gas) Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 DBP Services Co Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 20.0
Energy Partnership (Holdings) Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 DBP Services Trust 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 20.0
Energy Partnership Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 DBP Services Co Nominees Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 20.0
Multinet Gas (DB No1l) Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 AEF2 Management Company Pty Limited 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 R
Multinet Gas (DB No2) Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 DIHL 2 Limited 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 _
Multinet Gas Distribution Partnership 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
Multinet Gas (IE) Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0 DFT, DUET3, DMC1 and DFL have no subsidiaries.
Multinet Group Holdings Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
Power Partnership Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
UEIP Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
United Energy Finance Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
United Energy Finance Trust 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
United Nominee Assets Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
Utilicorp Australia (Gas) Finance Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
Utilicorp Australia (Gas) Holdings Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
Utilicorp Southern Cross Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
Utilities Consulting Service Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 66.0 66.0
UE & Multinet Pty Ltd (formerly Energy
Retail Holdings Pty Ltd) 30 June Australia Ordinary 83.0 83.0
Dampier Bunbury Investment Company Pty
Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
DUET Dampier Bunbury Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
DBNGP Trust 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP Holdings Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP Finance Company Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP WA Pipeline Trust 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP (WA) Nominees Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP (WA) Transmission Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP Compressor Co. Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBNGP (WA) Finance Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 81.1 81.9
DBP Services Co Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 80.0
DBP Services Trust 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 80.0
DBP Services Co Nominees Pty Ltd 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 80.0
DUET 2008 Debt Funding Trust 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 100.0
AEF2 Management Company Pty Limited 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 -
DIHL 2 Limited 30 June Australia Ordinary 100.0 -

*  The equity holding is the equity holding of DUET Group. DUET1, as the deemed parent of the Group, is the deemed parent of these
entities.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

FINANGCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

29 Parent Entity Information 30 Related Party Disclosures

Prior to 4 December 2012, RE1 and RE2 were 50/50 joint ventures between AMP Capital Holdings

a) DUET1 . . . . .
@) (AMPCH) and Macquarie Group Limited (MGL). RE1 is the Manager and Responsible Entity of DUET1 and
DIHL and RE2 is the Manager and Responsible Entity of DFT and DUET3 respectively.
DUET1 DUET1
30Jun 13 30 Jun 12
$000 $000 (@) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The KMP, at the date of this reports, are as follows:
Current assets 27,629 40,900
Total assets 820,215 792,174
Non-Executive Directors during the financial year ended 30 June 2013
Current liabilities 244127 238,711 . . .
Total liabilities 244127 238,711 Douglas Halley Chairman — appointed Chairman 4 December 2012
Ron Finlay Independent Director
Net assets 576,088 553,463 . . .
Eric Goodwin Independent Director
Contributed equity 688,010 650,331 Duncan Sutherland Independent Director
Retained earnings (21,598) (6,544)
Capital reserve (90,324) (90,324) Michael Lee Independent Director
Other reserves - - Emma Stein Independent Director
Total equity 576,088 553,463
Scott Davies Director — appointed 4 December 2012, resigned 30 June 2013
Profit of DUETL 64,951 63,196 Philip Garling Director — resigned 4 December 2012
Total comprehensive income of DUET1 64,951 52,239
_ _ ] - Michael Bessell Alternate director — appointed 7 December 2012, resigned 30 June
DUET1 has no guarantees in relation to the debts of any of its subsidiaries. 2013
DUET1 has no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2013. John Roberts Director — appointed May 2004 and due to retire at the November 2013
AGM and may be invited to seek re-election at the November 2013
(b)  DIHL (as parent of DIHL Group) DIHL OIHL AGM in accordance with the December 2012 internalisation
30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 arrangements with Macquarie and AMP Capital.
’000 $'000 . . : .
L Shemara Wikramanayake | Alternate director- appointed November 2010 and due to retire at the
Current assets 4,482 4,989 November 2013 AGM
Total assets 230,364 226,437 Executives
Current liabilities 3,045 3116 David Bartholomew Chief Executive Officer
Total liabilities 154,684 116,262 Jason Conroy Chief Financial Officer
Net assets 75,680 110175 Except as noteq, the_named persons held their current positions for the whole of the financial year and since
the end of the financial year.
Contributed equity 248,034 244,578 The aggregate remuneration paid to KMP is set out below:
Retained earnings (173,550) (132,874)
Capital . .
aprial reserve Year ended 30 June 2013 Year ended 30 June 2012
Other reserves 1,196 (1,529) $ $
Total equity 75,680 110,175 Short term employment benefits 2,683,741 594,852
Post employment benefits 96,748 53,300
Profit/(loss) of DIHL (40,676) (48,671) Total 2,780,489 648,152
Total comprehensive income of DIHL (37,951) 41,386

DIHL has no guarantees in relation to the debts of any of its subsidiaries.

DIHL has no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2013.
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30 Related Party Disclosures (continued) 30 Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(d) Other Related Party Transactions (continued)

During the year, DUET Group paid AMPCI for debt arranging services $1,320,212 (2012:$2,064,004)
and transaction advisory fees of $ 2,200,000 (2012:$nil).

(b) Responsible Entities

The base management fees and performance fees, excluding GST, that were paid or payable to the
Responsible Entities as compensation are:

DUET Group DFT DUET3 DIHL During the year, DUET paid to MGL underwriting fees of $Nil (2012:$ 4,400,373), debt arranging
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 services $Nil (2012:$715,391) and transaction advisory fees of $2,200,000 (2012:$ 9,704,739).
Base management fees
1 July 2012 — 30 September 2012 5,826 2,630 660 704

DUET hold funds on deposit with Macquarie Bank Limited (MBL) and earns interest on deposits at
commercial rates. Interest income from deposits with MBL is included in the determination of net profit
from continuing activities for the year.

1 July 2011 — 30 June 2012 19,208 8,742 2,362 2,180

Performance fees
1 July 2012 —4 December 2012 - - - -

1 July 2011 — 30 June 2012 16,231 7,311 1,830 1,995 DUET Group DUET2 DUET3 DIHL
. $000 $'000 $000 $'000
Base management fees are calculated as 1% per annum of the net investment value on the last day of Interest earned on deposits
each quarter. For the year ended 30 June 2013, DMCL1 received $2,535,575 (2012: $8,104,559) and 1 July 2012 - 4 December 2012 579 85 109 243
DFL received $3,290,389 (2012:$11,103,700). 1 July 2011 - 30 June 2012 2,255 275 325 274

Following internalisation of management, no performance fees have been incurred in the year ending
30 June 2013 (2012:$16,230,685).

(c) Custodians

Under the terms of the custody agreements with Trust Company Ltd & Perpetual Trustee Co Ltd, fees
paid or payable to the custodian by the Group were $197,406 (2012: $204,843).

(d) Other Related Party Transactions

As at 4 December 2012, Macquarie Group and AMP Group ceased to be related parties of the DUET
Group as a consequence of the internalisation of DUET's management. However, the related party
transactions set out below reflect the entire period to 30 June 2013.

DUET reimbursed MGL $714,812 (2012: $273,731) representing out of pocket expenses incurred by
the Responsible Entity/Manager in the performance of its duties. DUET1'’s share was $205,582 (2012:
$50,958), DFT's share was $141,821 (2012: $50,958), DUET3's share was $106,976 (2012: $17,470)
and DIHL’s share was $260,433 (2012:$154,345).

During the year, DUET has issued 20,789,072 (2012: Nil) stapled securities each to Macquarie Group
and AMP Group at price of $1.972 per stapled security aggregating to $82million (2012:$nil) as
consideration for internalisation of management.

Also, DUET has paid $1,990,060 (2012:$nil) each to Macquarie Group and AMP Group as a share
sale cash payment, being a payment equivalent to the management fee for the period 1 October 2012
to 4 December 2012.

During the year, DUET has paid $3,226,494 (2012:$nil) to Macquarie Group for availability fees and
transitional services as approved under internalisation of management.
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31 Segment Information

The Directors of the Responsible Entities (DMC1 and DFL) of DUET1, DFT, DUET3 and the Directors of

DIHL have determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating

decision maker, being the Boards of DMC1, DFL and DIHL.

The Boards consider the business from the aspect of each of the core portfolio assets and have identified
four operating segments during the year. The segments are the investments in Dampier Bunbury Pipeline
(DBP), United Energy (UEDH), Multinet Gas (MGH), and DBP Services Co.

The operating segments note discloses performance by individual core—portfolio asset in Australian dollars.
The information is presented as DUET’s proportionate share of the earnings before interest, tax,

depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”"), EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure. There is no inter-segment

FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

31 Segment Information (continued)

revenue.
DBP UEDH MGH DBP Services WAGN @ DQE ©® Total

$'000 $’000 $'000 Co 000 $'000 $'000 $000
DUET Group for the 12
months to
30 June 2013
Total segment revenues 370,628 307,951 197,820 3,052 - - 879,451
Total segment expenses (69,782) (98,236) (68,736) (2,631) - - (239,385)
Proportionate EBITDA @ 300,846 209,715 129,084 421 - - 640,066
DUET Group for the 12
months to
30 June 2012
Total segment revenues 366,258 290,700 191,627 - 4,102 76,111 928,798
Total segment expenses (73,242) (108,889) (60,303) - (1,441) (46,688) (290,563)
Proportionate EBITDA @ 293,016 181,811 131,324 - 2,661 29,423 638,235
Total proportionate segment
assets
30 June 2013 3,036,591 2,098,281 1,420,755 6,864 - - 6,562,491
30 June 2012 3,111,861 1,803,366 1,382,105 - - - 6,297,332
Maintenance capital
expenditure
30 June 2013 20,030 42,247 8,191 - - - 70,468
30 June 2012 16,909 18,671 7,513 - 176 9,103 52,372
Total proportionate segment
liabilities
30 June 2013 (2,527,328) (1,958,661) (1,243,271) (5,347) - - (5,734,607)
30 June 2012 (2,567,888)  (1,664,526) (1,212,217) - - - (5,444,631)

DBP
DBP UEDH MGH Services WAGN DQE Corporate Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
DUET Group for the 12 months to
30 June 2013
Proportionate EBITDA 300,846 209,715 129,084 421 - - - 640,066
Additional EBITDA from controlled 68,256 107,521 - 21 - - - 175,798
assets
Exclude non-controlled assets @ - - . - - . . -
Corporate income - - - - - - 325 325
Corporate expenses - - - - - - (16,696) (16,696)
Equity accounted profits @ - - - - - - - -
Gains/(losses) on disposal of
associates, net of transaction costs - - - - - - - -
Internalisation related expenses - - - - - - (111,243) (111,243)
Consolidated EBITDA 688,250
Controlled Assets
Interest income 537 2,352 272 26 - - - 3,187
Depreciation and amortisation (79,630) (133,827) (40,330) (162) - - - (253,949)
Finance costs (223,773)  (147,153) (67,960) (57) - - - (438,943)
Net fx gains(losses) 18 994 - - - - - 1,012
Changes in fair value of derivatives 16,399 25,589 6,104 - - - - 48,092
Corporate
Interest income - - - - - - 3,156 3,156
Depreciation & amortisation - - - - - - (13) (23)
Finance costs - - - - - - (938) (938)
Net foreign exchange
gains/(losses) - - - - - - - -
Changes in fair value of derivatives - - - - - - - -
Other Eliminations - - - - - - - -
Profit before income tax expense 49,854

@ Excludes changes in the fair value of derivatives, net foreign exchange gains/losses and actuarial losses on the Duquesne defined

benefit pension plan.

@ Includes share of WAGN EBITDA up until the date of sale on 29 July 2011.
@ Includes share of Duquesne EBITDA up until the date of sale on 13 September 2011.

@ To consolidate 100% of controlled asset EBITDA.

@ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of associates and includes the equity accounted result.
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31 Segment Information (continued)

DBP UEDH MGH WAGN DQE Corporate Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
DUET Group for the 12 months to 30 June
2012
Proportionate EBITDA 293,016 181,811 131,324 2,661 29,423 - 638,235
Additional EBITDA from controlled assets 72,762 93,660 2,125 - - - 168,547
Exclude non-controlled assets @ - - - (2,661) (29,423) - (32,084)
Corporate expenses - - - - - (38,828) (38,828)
Equity accounted profits @ - - - 753 6,001 - 6,754
Gains/(losses) on disposal of associates,
net of transaction costs - - - - - 8,668 8,668
Consolidated EBITDA 751,292
Controlled Assets
Interest income 2,385 1,368 1,976 - - - 5,729
Depreciation and amortisation (80,925) (118,794) (34,206) - - - (233,925)
Finance costs (230,478) (138,749) (87,641) - - - (456,868)
Net fx gains(losses) 64 1,780 - - - - 1,844
Changes in fair value of derivatives 1,116 (21,794) 1,456 - - - (19,222)
Non-controlled Assets
Change in fair value of derivatives - - - - - - -
Change in defined benefit pension plan - - - - - - -
Corporate
Interest income - - - - - 12,551 12,551
Depreciation & amortisation - - - - - - -
Finance costs - - - - - (9,041) (9,041)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) - - - - - (262) (262)
Changes in fair value of derivatives - - - - - - -
Other Eliminations - - - - - - (5,770)
Profit before income tax expense 46,328

@ To consolidate 100% of controlled asset EBITDA.
@ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of associates and includes the equity accounted result.
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31 Segment Information (continued)

A reconciliation of DUET total proportionate segment revenues to total consolidated revenues is provided as

follows:

30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12

$'000 $’000

Segment Revenue 879,451 928,798
Other Revenue 5,763 17,450
Revenue attributable to investments accounted for under the equity method - (80,214)
Inter-segment revenue adjustment (3,992) -
Carbon Tax adjustment 7,078 -
TUOS adjustment 87,478 72,156
Revenue attributable to non-controlling interest 288,483 281,949
Total revenue from continuing operations 1,264,261 1,220,141

A reconciliation of DUET total proportionate segment assets to total consolidated assets is provided as

follows:

30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12

$'000 $’000

Total proportionate segment assets 6,562,491 6,297,332
Balance of controlled entity assets 1,809,906 1,639,624
Exclude non-controlled assets - -
Cash and cash equivalents 125,025 175,150
Derivatives - -
Other assets 1,279 107
Receivables 1,223 827
Equity accounted investments - -
Intangible assets 1,561 2,020
Deferred tax assets 3,225 2,836
Property, plant and equipment 736 763
Total assets 8,505,446 8,118,659

A reconciliation of DUET total proportionate segment liabilities to total consolidated liabilities is provided as

follows:

30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12

$'000 $’000

Total proportionate segment liabilities (5,734,607) (5,444,631)
Balance of controlled entity liabilities (1,137,854) (981,215)
Exclude non-controlled liabilities - -
Distribution payable (96,468) (88,787)
Deferred tax liability (827) (721)
Payables (14,051) (34,607)
Interest bearing liabilities 405 -
Total liabilities (6,983,402) (6,549,961)
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DET DUETS3
DFT co-owns investments in UEDH, MGH and DBP with DUET1. The Boards consider the business for DUET3 holds a hybrid instrument with MGH. Proportionate earnings for MGH are set out on page 144.
these three segments on a combined proportionate EBITDA basis. Proportionate earnings for DBP, UEDH o i . . . . .
and MGH are set out on page 144. f\lrleconcmatmn of DUET3's proportionate EBITDA to profit before income tax expense is provided as
ollows:
A reconciliation of DFT’s proportionate EBITDA to profit before income tax expense is provided as follows:
DBP UEDH MGH DUET2 Total MGH DUET3 Total
$'000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $'000 $’000 $’000 $’000
DFT for the 12 months to 30 June 2013 DUETS for the 12 months to 30 June
2013
P i EBITDA 4 209,71 12 4 - 4!
roportionate . 300,846 09,715 9.08 639,645 Proportionate EBITDA 129,084 - 129,084
Exclude non-controlled assets (300,846) (209,715) (129,084) - (639,645) Exclude non-controlled assets @ (129,084) R (129,084)
Corporate income - - - 79 79 Corporate expenses - (1,858) (1,858)
Corporate expenses - - - (5,426) (5,426) Internalisation related expenses - (11,245) (11,245)
Equity accounted profits @ - 4,168 5,108 - 9,276 Net gain on disposal of Promissory Note - - -
Equity accounted profits- Other Consolidated EBITDA (13,103)
investments - - - 398 398 ) )
Internalisation related expenses - - - (38,331) (38,331) :D?E Ptrgmlssory note interest 10852 19,852
) - nterest income - , ,
Consolidated EBITDA (34,004) Finance costs ) 1) (91)
Foreign exchange gains - - -
Interest income 77,335 Changes in fair value of derivatives - - -
Finance costs (3,623) Profit before income tax expense 6,658
Changes in fair value of derivatives - @ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of non-controlled assets.
Profit before income tax expense 39,708 MGH DQE @ DUET3 Total
1 . . . . ) $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
@ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of associates and includes the equity accounted share of profits/(losses). DUET3 for the 12 months to 30 June 2012
DBP UEDH MGH WAGN @ DUET2 Total Proportionate EBITDA 131,324 29,423 - 160,747
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Exclude non-controlled assets © (131,324) (29,423) - (160,747)
DFT for the 12 months to 30 June 2012 Corporate expenses - - (5,531) (5,531)
Net gain on disposal of Promissory Note - - 5,901 5,901
Proportionate EBITDA 293,016 181,811 131,324 2,661 - 608,812 Consolidated EBITDA 370
Exclude non-controlled assets (293,016) (181,811)  (131,324) (2,661) - (608,812) ) _
Corporate income ) ) i R 105 105 DQE Prgmlssory note interest - - - -
Interest income - - 22,896 22,896
Corporate expenses - - - - (17,229) (17,229) Finance costs B ) (2,248) (2,248)
Equity accounted profits - (10,333) 800 - (60,0000  (69,533) Foreign exchange gains . . . .
Equity accounted profits- Other Changes in fair value of derivatives - - - -
investments - - - - (1,934) (1,934)
Gain on disposal of WAGN, net of Profit before income tax expense 21,018
transaction costs - - - - 10,807 10,807 @ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of non-controlled assets.
Consolidated EBITDA (77,784) @ Includes share of Duquesne EBITDA up until the date of sale on 13 September 2011.
Interest income - - - - 71,296 71,296
Finance costs - - - - (2,394) (2,394)

Changes in fair value of derivatives - - - - - -

Profit before income tax expense (8,882)

@ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of associates and includes the equity accounted share of profits/(losses).
@ Includes share of WAGN EBITDA up until the date of sale on 29 July 2011.
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31 Segment Information (continued) 32 Financial Risk Management

DIHL Group DUET Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risk, cash
flow interest rate risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

o . ) ) ) ) overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
A reconciliation of DIHL Group’s proportionate EBITDA to profit before income tax expense is provided as potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative financial

Proportionate earnings for MGH, DBP and DBP Services Co are set out on page 144.

follows: MGH DBP DBP BIHL Total instruments_suph as foreign exchange contracts, consumer price index swaps and interest rate swaps to
$000 $000  Services Group $000 hedge certain risk exposures.

BIHL for the 12 months 1o 30 June 2013 $000 $000 R?sk management i_s _ca_rried out by the_ §l_1bsidiaries under policies gpproveq by their respective Board of

Directors. The subsidiaries’ treasury activities are undertaken by service providers but management of each

Proportionate EBITDA 129,084 300,846 ) ) 429,930 subsidiary must approve all transactions. AMPCI, the front office service provider to the Group, arranges all

Exclude non-controlled assets (129,084) (300,846) - - (429,930) transactions in line with the board established policy and the back and middle office service provider to the

Corporate income - - - 6,896 6,896 Group ensures compliance with the approved polices. The board provides written principles for overall risk

anior:tc‘ecg;‘gf;sefoﬁts © i 1 11s (929; (8.362) (182'376522 management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as mitigating foreign exchange,
In(t]erga”saﬁon rela‘ze d expenses R . g (34,902) @ 411%2) interest rate and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing excess liquidity.

Loss on disposal of DQE, net of reserves & The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group are adequately supported in growth

tcri':]ssaoclti'ggtzzssBlTDA ; ; ; ) (2—3614; initiatives while maximising the return to security holders through the optimisation of the debt and equity

’ balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012.
Interest income - - - 424 424 The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (interest bearing liabilities as detailed in Note 17
Finance costs i i ) (6.558) (6.558) offset by cash and cash equivalents) and equity of the Group (comprising contributed equity, reserves,

Depreciation & amortisation - - - 176 176 . . . . . .
For‘;gn exchange gains B ) ( ) ( ) retained profits/(accumulated losses) and other non-controlling interest as detailed in Notes 22 to 25). The

Changes in fair value of derivatives — DQE - - - - - Group is subject to bank covenants related to interest and gearing coverage ratios.
Changes in defined benefit pension plan — DQE - -

(@) Market risk

Loss before income tax expense (29,924)
@ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of associates and includes the equity accounted share of profits/(losses). (i)  Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised monetary assets
MGH DBP DQE DIHL Total il : ; : - ;
$000 $000 $000 Group $000 and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

$000 The Group operates predominantly within Australia and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures to the USD on borrowings. Cross currency swaps are used to manage the
foreign exchange risk and the Group’s policy is to hedge 100% of this risk for the life of the

DIHL for the 12 months to 30 June 2012

Proportionate EBITDA 131,324 293,016 29,423 - 453,763 .

Exclude non-controlled assets @ (131,324) (293,016)  (29,423) - (453,763) transaction.

Corporate income - - - 69 69 DBP enters into procurement contracts with international counterparties and is exposed to foreign

gga‘azr:iecszgfezszfoﬁts ® (1’314; 7'86‘; 61001' (5'220? (151252501) exchange risk arising from currency exposures predominantly in USD. Forward contracts are used to

Loss on disposal of DQE, net of reserves & manage this risk. DBP’s pollcy is to consider a hedging strategy for all foreign exchange transactions

transaction costs ) . - (41,649) (41,649) above AUD$500,000 equivalent.

Consolidated EBITDA (35,249) United Energy and Multinet are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures to

_ the USD on borrowings. Cross currency swaps are used to manage the foreign exchange risk.

Interest income - - - 488 488

Finance costs _ - - - (6,889) (6.889) (i)  Pricerisk

Foreign exchange gains - - - 32 32

Changes in fair value of derivatives — DQE . ) ; . ; The Group is exposed to revenue price risk through United Energy and Multinet and DBP from 2016.

Changes in defined benefit pension plan — DQE - - - - - The nature of their business environments means that an Independent Regulator sets tariff prices. The
tariff price path includes annual revenue growth that is derived from annual CPIl. Management of each

Loss before income tax expense (41,618) business assess this risk on an ongoing basis. Multinet has fully hedged their price risk by entering

@ Excludes proportionate EBITDA of associates and includes the equity accounted share of profits/(losses). into CPI revenue swaps.

@ R
Includes share of Duguesne EBITDA up until the date of sale on 13 September 2011. . . . . o .
The Group is exposed to commodity price risk through DBP. The exposure is indirect and arises from

DMCL1 and DFL the impact of commodity prices on the Western Australian economy. The exposure is assessed by
DBP’s management on an ongoing basis, with any initiatives (to the extent that they exist) put to
DBP’s Board of Directors as appropriate. Commodity price risk is not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

The chief operating decision maker of DMC1 and DFL reviews AIFRS financial information as presented in
this report.
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32

(b)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(iii)  Fair value interest rate risk
Refer to Note 32(d).

Credit risk

Potential areas of credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, derivative
financial instruments and credit exposures to committed transactions. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history
or sufficient credit support. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit
quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one
financial institution.

Sound credit risk management involves prudently managing the risk and reward relationship and
controlling and minimising credit risks across a variety of dimensions, such as quality, concentration,
maturity and security. Management determines concentration of risk from financial instruments that
have similar characteristics and are affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions.

Governments

The credit risk to governments relates to receivables that are due from the Australian Government
which is an institution with a strong credit rating.

Financial Institutions

The credit risk to financial institutions relates to cash held by, receivables due from and negotiable
certificates of deposit and commercial paper that has been purchased from Australian and OECD
banks. In line with the credit risk policies of the Group, these counterparties must meet a minimum
investment grade credit rating.

Corporates

The credit risk to corporates includes shareholder funding of the associated entities and services
provided to users of the gas and electricity networks of MGH and UEDH and the DBNGP. These
counterparties have their own credit ratings which form part of the overall credit risk assessment made
by each business.

DUET Group’s exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Governments Financial institutions Corporates Total
DUET Group $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

30Jun13 30Junl12 30Jun13 30Junl1l2 30Jun13 30Junl12 30Jun13 30Juni2

Cash and cash
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32 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

Governments Financial institutions Corporates Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
DUET 3 30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12
Cash and cash equivalents - - 11,989 21,662 - - 11,989 21,662
Receivables 74 212 - - 258,479 264,023 258,553 264,235
Total 74 212 11,989 21,662 258,479 264,023 270,542 285,897
Governments Financial institutions Corporates Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
DIHL Group 30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12

Cash and cash equivalents

12,136 20,356

12,136 20,356

Receivables 362 187 - - 614 17 976 204
Total 362 187 12,136 20,356 614 17 13,112 20,560
Governments Financial institutions Corporates Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
DMC1 30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12
Cash and cash equivalents - - 5,521 3,476 - - 5,521 3,476
Receivables 23 27 - - 254 10,019 277 10,047
Total 23 23 5,521 3,476 254 10,019 5,798 13,523
Governments Financial institutions Corporates Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
DFL 30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12
Cash and cash equivalents - - 5,511 3,617 - - 5,511 3,617
Receivables 25 62 - - 254 12,983 279 13,045
Total 25 62 5,511 3,617 254 12,983 5,790 16,662

equivalents - - 402,333 243,595 - - 402,333 243,595
Receivables 797 1,663 22,781 21,507 68,422 64,742 92,000 87,912
Other (Financial
Derivatives) - - 49,572 2,266 - - 49,572 2,266
Total 797 1,663 474,686 267,368 68,422 64,742 543,905 333,773
Governments Financial institutions Corporates Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
DFT 30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12  30-Jun-13  30-Jun-12
Cash and cash equivalents - - 52,476 61,280 - - 52,476 61,280
Receivables 178 717 - - 819,709 660,273 819,887 660,990
Total 178 717 52,476 61,280 819,709 660,273 872,363 722,270

(c) Liquidity risk

DUET Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities, an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close-out market positions.
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32 Financial Risk Management (continued) 32 Financial Risk Management (continued)

Undiscounted Future Cash Flows (c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group and parent entities have a liquidity management policy which manages liquidity risk by ) )
monitoring the stability of funding, surplus cash or near cash assets, anticipated cash inflow and Undiscounted Future Cash Flows (continued)

outflows and exposure to connected parties. The tables below set out the contractual maturity of Greater than 5

undiscounted future cash flows of the DUET Group and stapled entities liabilities: Less tg.ggol year ! é.gggrs 2 ;gggrs : :.gggrs ;?Oigg
Greater than 5 30Jun  30Jun 30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years years DMC1 13 12 13 12 13 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12
DUET $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Payables 23 10454 _ - i - g - : -
Group 30Jun13 30Jun12 30Jun13 30Jun12 30Jun13 30Jun12 30Jun13 30Jun12 30Jun13 30 Jun 12 23 10.454 - - - - - - - -
Term Notes )
— fixed rate 99,950 434,624 177,865 98,025 922,817 167,027 1,346,621 1,418,928 - 705,093 Greater than 5
Term. Notes Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years years
— variable $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
rale 75,292 29804 523,235 26680 18,241 520999 452253 25873 - 308,308 30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun  30Jun
Senior Bank DFL 13 12 13 12 13 12 13 12 13 12
Debt 217,121 92,170 571,225 247,712 246,733 575,039 1,294,523 857,292 497,658 316,077 Payables 23 13688 _ _ _ . R . _ R
UEDH -RPS 23,091 22,175 23,091 22,175 23,142 22,175 46,194 44,411 342,452 337,848 23 13688 K _ N _ - _ N _
Derivative
financial . . .
instruments 133,514 142,822 123,062 131,181 167,878 115,590 580 205280 (14,937) 48,441 (d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Finance The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
Lease 1,995 1,809 1,878 1,843 3,791 1,878 3,862 3,862 32,031 30,083 rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the
Payables 332,798 366,935 958 - - - - - - - Group to fair value interest rate risk. Group policy is to fix the rates for at least 80% of its borrowings,
883,761 1,090,339 1,421,314 527,616 1,382,602 1,402,708 3,144,033 2,555,655 857,204 1,740,850 in line with its facility agreements and/or regulatory periods. This policy has been complied with during

the financial year.
Greater than 5

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years years The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by primarily using floating-to-fixed interest rate

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates

DFT 30Jun13 30Jun12 30Jun13 30Jun 12 30 Jun13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into

Inter- fixed rates that are lower than those available if the Group borrowed them at fixed rates directly. Under

company the interest-rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals to align

loan 170,577 80,822 3,207 - 3,216 - 6415 - 58,891 - with the underlying debt reset dates, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate
Payables 52,907 53,055 - - - - - - - -

interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principle amounts.

223,484 133,877 3,207 - 3,216 - 6,415 - 58,891 -

For details of interest rate exposures refer to Note 17 and for details of the Group’s interest rate swaps

Greater than 5 refer to Note 10.

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years years
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 (e) Fair value estimation
DUET3  30Jun13 30Jun 12 30Jun13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
Inter-

measurement or for disclosure purposes.

compan

loanp g 100 1,700 - . - . - . . . The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the

Payables 8,351 19,577 - - - . - - - . Balance Sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial liabilities held by the Group is the
8,451 21,277 - - - - - ; - ; median ask price. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the

estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward
Greater than 5 exchange market rates at the Balance Sheet date.

DIHL Less tg.ggol year 1';3386 z'g,gggrs 3'2.3'885 é%agg Disclosure which_ requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value

Group 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 measurements hierarchy:

Inter- — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

I‘i)oamnpany 5625 155920  5.625 5 640 11250 110.667 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and
Payables 14,760 3,120 - - - - - - - -

20,385 157,040 5,625 - 5,640 - 11,250 - 110,667 - — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Level 3).
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32  Financial Risk Management (continued) 32  Financial Risk Management (continued)
(e) Fair value estimation (continued) (f)  Market risk sensitivities
In assessing the sensitivity of foreign exchange risk, management has utilised a +/- 15% (2012: 19%)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total movement in the Australian dollar. The tables below display the balances for financial instruments that
30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 would be recognised in the Income Statement or directly in equity for movement of +/- 15% (2012:
DUET Group $000 $000 $000 $000 19%) in the Australian dollar. DUET has determined a +/- 15% (2012: 19%
Financial asset 6) in the Australian dollar. management has determined a +/- 6 ( : 6) movement
o ) in the Australian dollar to be an appropriate sensitivity following analysis of foreign exchange volatility
Derivatives for hedging - 49,572 - 49,572

for relevant currencies. The analysis used the average of three standard deviations from the mean, for

- 49,572 - 49,572 .
o each of the last five years to 30 June 2013.
Financial liability
Derivatives for hedging . (339,141) ; (339,141) The table below demonstrates the impact of a 15% (2012: 19%) movement of foreign exchange rates
- (339,141) . (339,141) against the Australian dollar with all other variables held constant, on profit after tax (due to changes in
fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities) and equity. It is assumed that the
relevant change occurs as at the reporting date. As at 30 June 2013 and 2012 DFT,DUET3,DIHL
30 53"1’:'1; 30 "J':;’:'é 30 ";:::'12 30 Ju::t%' Group, DMC1 and DFL did not have a significant exposure to foreign exchange risk. The carrying
DFT $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 value of financial assets and financial liabilities per the tables below represent the net carrying value of
Financial asset - - - - the asset or liability exposed to this specific risk.
Financial liability - - - - Foreign Exchange Risk
- - - - 15% appreciation of 15% depreciation of
Carrying value Australian dollar Australian dollar
Other Other
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total DUET Comprehensive Comprehensive
30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 UET Group P&L Income P&L Income
DUET3 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial asset - - - - Financial Assets
Financial liability - - - - Cash and cash equivalents - - - - -
_ R R R Derivative 1,164 - (2,267) - 3,178
Receivables - - - - -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 1,164 - (2,267) - 3,178
30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 Financial Liabilities
DIHL G ’ , , )
= _rcl’“p t $'000 $000 $°000 $'000 Loan (920,598) 76,814 ; (76,814) ;
inancia’ asse - - - - Derivatives (23,695) (77,028) (218,035) 77,114 274,629
Financial liability - - - -
(944,293) (214) (218,035) 300 274,629
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 Foreign Exchange Risk
D_MC1_ $:000 $°000 $:000 $'000 19% appreciation of 19% depreciation of
Financial asset - - - - Carrying value Australian dollar Australian dollar
Financial liability - - - - Other Other
- - - - Comprehensiv Comprehensive
DUET Group P&L e Income P&L Income
As at 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Financial Assets
30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 30 June 13 .
DEL $°000 $’000 $°000 $°000 Cash and cash equivalents - - - - -
Financial asset - . - - Derivative - - - - -
Financial liability . . . . Receivables - - - - -
- - - - Financial Liabilities
Loan (828,545) 137,742 - (137,742) -
Derivatives (103,767) (140,071) (13,359) 141,113 80,925
(932,312) (2,329) (13,359) 3,371 80,925
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32  Financial Risk Management (continued)

32  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(f)  Market risk sensitivities (f)  Market risk sensitivities (continued)
The following table demonstrates the impact of a weighted average 188 basis point (2012: 173 basis
point) change in Australian interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on profit after tax and

Interest Rate Risk
173 basis point increase 173 basis point decrease

Carrying value in interest rate in interest rate

equity. It is assumed that all underlying exposures and related hedges are included in the sensitivity

analysis, that t'he w.eighted average 188 basis point change churs as at the reporting date .(SO_June 2;’ ZT 333051 2012 $000 $%%I6 %38(')% $%‘f)"6 i‘?ggg
2012: 173 basis point) and there are concurrent movements in interest rates and parallel shifts in the Financial Assets

yield curves. The impact on equity includes the effective portion of the changes in the fair value of Cash and cash equivalents 243 505 3981 i (3.981) )
derivatives that are designated to qualify as cash flow hedges. DUET management has determined Derivatives T o i T .
that a +/- 188 basis point (2012: 173 basis point) movement to be the appropriate sensitivity at 30 Receivables 10,024 293 . (223) .
June 2013 following analysis of the interest spreads of comparable debt instruments. The analysis 262619 4204 i (4,204) -
used the average of the three standard deviations from the mean, for each of the last five years to 30 Financial Liabilities ' ’ '

June 2012. The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities per the tables below Interest bearing liabilities (100,598) (665) . 665 .
represent the net carrying value of the asset or liability exposed to this specific risk. Derivatives (405,347) 31,549 78,372 (24,908) (83,918)
In assessing interest rate risk, management has assumed the following movements in interest rates: (505,945) 30,884 78,372 (24,243) (83,918)

Interest Rate
AUD BBSW (1 month)
AUD BBSY (3 months)

Basis Point Movement
183 basis point
191 basis point

DFT

Carrying value

in interest rate

Interest Rate Risk
188 basis point increase

188 basis point decrease

in interest rate

P&L Equity P&L Equity
AUD BBSW (6 months) 192 basis point As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
USD 10 year government bond 101 basis point Financial Assets
Weighted Average 188 basis point Cash and cash equivalents 52,476 961 - (961) -
Interest Rate Risk Intercompany Loans 79,488 1,524 - (1,524) -
188 basis point increase 188 basis point decrease 131,964 2,485 - (2,485) -
DUET Group Carrying value in interest rate . in interest rate . Financial Liabilities
As at 30 June 2013 $000 $%%|6 Eg%‘gg $%§'5 i‘.‘ggg Inter-company loans - - - - .
Financial Assets - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 402,181 3,637 - (3,637) -
Derivatives 9,489 4,299 72,599 (4,828) (82,328)
Receivables - - - - - Interest Rate Risk
411,670 7,936 72,599 (8,465) (82,328) 173 basis point increase 173 basis point decrease
Financial Liabilities o Carrying value i“PigtLefeSt rate — in g‘;eL’eSt rate a—
T i i
Interest bearing liabilities (644,079) (2,614) - 1,836 - As at 30 June 2012 000 $000 ;180% $000 $E‘(L)‘Oé’
Derivatives (235,167) 23,185 150,977 (18,469) (164,912) Financial Assets
(879,246) 20,571 150,977 (16,633) (164,912) Cash and cash equivalents 61,280 1,024 - (1,024) -
Intercompany Loans 87,983 1,567 - (1,567) -
149,263 2,591 - (2,591) -

Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans
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32  Financial Risk Management (continued) 32  Financial Risk Management (continued)

(f)  Market risk sensitivities (continued) (f)  Market risk sensitivities (continued)

Interest Rate Risk Interest Rate Risk

Carrying value

188 basis point increase
in interest rate

188 basis point decrease
in interest rate

Carrying value

188 basis point increase
in interest rate

188 basis point decrease
in interest rate

DUET 3 P&L Equity P&aL Equity DIHL Group P&L Equity P&L Equity
As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,989 220 - (220) - Cash and cash equivalents 11,984 219 - (219) -
11,989 220 - (220) - 11,984 219 - (219) -
Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans - - - - - Inter-company loans (108,672) (2,083) - 2,083 -
. . . . . (108,672) (2,083) - 2,083 -

DUET 3

Carrying value

Interest Rate Risk

173 basis point increase
in interest rate

173 basis point decrease
in interest rate

Carrying value

Interest Rate Risk

173 basis point increase
in interest rate

173 basis point decrease
in interest rate

P&L Equity P&L Equity DIHL Group P&L Equity P&L Equity
As at 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 As at 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 21,662 362 - (362) - Cash and cash equivalents 20,356 340 - (340) -
21,662 362 - (362) - 20,356 340 - (340) -

Financial Liabilities Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans R ; _ R - Inter-company loans (113,142) (2,015) - 2,015 -
- - - - - (113,142) (2,015) - 2,015 -

Carrying value

Interest Rate Risk

188 basis point increase
in interest rate

188 basis point decrease
in interest rate

DMC1 P&L Equity P&L Equity

As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5,521 101 - (101) -
5,521 101 - (101) -

Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans

DMC1

Carrying value

Interest Rate Risk

173 basis point increase
in interest rate

173 basis point decrease
in interest rate

P&L Equity P&L Equity

As at 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,476 58 - (58) -

3,476 58 - (58) -

Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market risk sensitivities (continued)

DFL

Carrying value

Interest Rate Risk

188 basis point increase
in interest rate

188 basis point decrease
in interest rate

P&L Equity P&L Equity

As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5,511 101 - (101) -

5,511 101 - (101) -

Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans

Carrying value

Interest Rate Risk

173 basis point increase
in interest rate

173 basis point decrease
in interest rate

DFL P&L Equity P&L Equity

As at 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,617 60 - (60) -
3,617 60 - (60) -

Financial Liabilities
Inter-company loans

In assessing price risk, management has assumed a +/- 2.51% (2012: 2.94%) movement in CPI. The
below tables display the balances for financial instruments that would be recognised in the Income
Statement or directly in equity for a movement of +/- 2.51% (2012: 2.94%). DUET management has
determined a +/- 2.51% (2012: 2.94%) movement in prices to be an appropriate sensitivity, based
upon the average of the three standard deviations from the mean for CPI for each of the last five year

to 30 June 2013.

As at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 DFT, DUET3,DIHL Group, DMC1 and DFL did not have a
significant exposure to other price risk.

The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities per the tables below represent the net
carrying value of the asset or liability exposed to this specific risk.
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Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market risk sensitivities (continued)

Carrying value

Other price risk
2.51% adverse movements

2.51% positive movements

DUET Group P&L Equity P&L Equity
As at 30 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivatives - - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives (64,700) (6,673) (66,562) 910 66,506
(64,700) (6,673) (66,562) 910 66,506
Other price risk
Carrying value 2.94% adverse movements 2.94% positive movements
DUET Group P&L Equity P&L Equity
As at 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Derivatives - - - - R
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives (71,288) (8,273) (177,232) 1,535 33,330
(71,288) (8,273) (177,232) 1,535 33,330
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33 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill and indefinite life intangibles

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 1(I). The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use and fair value less costs to sell calculations. These calculations
require the use of assumptions. Refer Note 14 for details of these assumptions and the potential
impact of changes to these assumptions.

(b) Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of over-the-counter derivatives are determined using valuations techniques adopted by
the Directors with assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia. Currently the Group has some tax losses available
for use that have not been brought to account as deferred tax assets. This is based on an assumption
that the use of these losses in the foreseeable future is not probable. If this assumption was to
change, the corresponding tax assets may be recognised in the Groups’ Balance Sheet. Refer Note 3
for level of current tax losses not recognised.

(d) Significance of inputs in fair value hierarchy

An unobservable valuation input is considered significant if stressing the unobservable input to the
valuation model would result in a greater than 10% change in the overall fair value of the instrument.

34 Internalisation of Management

On 31 July 2012, DUET announced that it had reached agreement with AMP Capital and Macquarie Capital
Group (Macquarie) to internalise the management of DUET (the Internalisation Proposal).

Securityholders voted in favour of the Internalisation Proposal at the securityholder meeting held on 23
November 2012. The internalisation was implemented on 4 December 2012.

The DUET Group’s management is now directly employed by DIHL.

As part of the internalisation, the DUET Group acquired the responsible entities, RE1 and RE2 from AMP
Capital and Macquarie and stapled to the previous stapled securities to form a six-stapled structure.

Total consideration of $86.0 million (excl. GST) was paid to AMP Capital and Macquarie. Of the total
consideration, $82.0 million was applied by AMP Capital and Macquarie to subscribe for 41,578,144 stapled
securities in the DUET Group at $1.972 per stapled security. A share sale cash payment of $4.0 million was
also paid, being a payment equivalent to the management fee for the period 1 October 2012 to 4 December
2012.

Refer to the DUET Group Notices of Meeting and Explanatory Memorandum for further information which is
available on the DUET Group website.
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35 Acquisitions and Disposals

Acquisition of DMC1 and DFL

Upon implementation of the internalisation of management, the DUET Group acquired 100% of the
responsible entities, DMC1 and DFL from AMP Capital Holdings Limited and Macquarie Group Limited.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of acquisition were:

DMC1 DMC2 TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 38 44 82
GST receivable 374 472 846
Prepayments 33 33 66
Deferred tax assets 199 271 470
644 820 1,464
Liabilities
Distribution payable (100) (137) (237)
GST payable (293) (353) (646)
(393) (490) (883)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 251 330 581

The total internalisation payments paid to Macquarie and AMP Capital included consideration for the fair
value of the identifiable asset and liabilities of DMC1 and DFL on the date of acquisition. No goodwill arose
on the acquisition of these entities.

Acquisition of additional interest in DBP Services Co

On 26 September 2012, DUET Group acquired the remaining 20% minority interest in the issued capital of
DBP Services Co, bringing the DUET Group’s aggregated ownership in DBP Services Co to 100%. DUET
Group then capitalised DBP Services Co with an equity subscription of $1.2 million to fund certain asset
purchases and provide working capital.
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36 Commitments for Expenditure 38 Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date
DUET Group DUET Group
30 Jun 13 30 Jun 12 DUET Group Simplification Proposal
$000 $'000
Capital commitments On 31 May 2013, DUET announced the conclusion of the review announced on 31 July 2012 with a
Commitments for the acquisition of major capital assets not shown as a liability proposed simplification of the Group’s structure (the Simplification Proposal).
Within one year _ 25,494 416,477 Securityholders voted in favour of the Simplification Proposal at the securityholder meeting held on 18 July
Later than one year but not later than five years - - 2013. The Simplification Proposal was implemented on 1 August 2013.
25,494 416,477
Lease commitments The Proposal has reduced the number of stapled entities from six to four and created a corporate arm (DIHL
Commitments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as and DUECoO0) controlling the Group’s equity interests in its operating businesses and a funding arm (DFT and
follows: DFL) holding intra-group debt investments.
Within one year 3,173 -

On 1 August 2013, securityholders have exchanged all of their units in DUET3 for additional units in DFT,

tzz; :::: Zni:sar but not [ater than 5 years 5,865 ) and all of their units in DUET1 and shares in DMC1 for shares in DUET Company Limited (DUECo0). DUECo
y 5,324 - is an Australian public company which was incorporated on 2 April 2013 and on 1 August 2013, became part
14,362 ) of the DUET stapled group.
Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows: As part of this transaction, the names of DMC2 and DUET2 were changed to DUET Finance Limited (DFL)
Within one year 1,843 1,809 and DUET Finance Trust (DFT) respectively.
Later th but not later than 5 . . . . .
afer fhan Or_]e yearbut notiater fhan > years 7,725 7,583 Refer to the DUET Group Notices of Meeting and Meeting Booklet dated 31 May 2013 for further information
Less future finance charges (16,849) (17.847) which is available on the DUET Group website
Later than 5 years 28,097 30,083 '
20,816 21,628

Final distribution paid

A final distribution of 8.25 cents per stapled security was paid by DUET on 12 August 2013 (2012: 8.00
cents). This consists of a distribution of 3.487 cents per unit from DUET1 (2012: 2.685 cents), 4.176 cents

37 Contingent Liabilities i )
per unit from DFT (2012: 3.812 cents) and 0.587 cents per unit from DUET3 (2012: 1.503 cents).

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2013.
DUET Group securities issued under DRP

Security holders participating in DUET'’s Distribution and Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) reinvested
$40,973,392 of the distribution paid on 13 August 2013 in 19,336,999 DUET Group securities at a price of
$2.117722.
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Statement by the Directors of the Responsible Entity of DUET1 Statement by the Directors of the Responsible Entity of DFT
In the opinion of the Directors of DUET Management Company 1 Limited (DMC1) as the Responsible Entity In the opinion of the Directors of DUET Finance Limited as the Responsible Entity for DUET Finance Trust
for Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.1 (DUETL1), the consolidated Financial Statements for DUET1 and (DFT), the Financial Statements set out on pages 40 to 167 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
it's controlled entities (DUET Group) set out on pages 40 to 167 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
2001, including: - complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
- complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; - are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
- arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;

Accounting Standards Board; - giving a true and fair view of the Trust’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for
- giving a true and fair view of the DUET Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its the year ended on that date; and

performance for the year ended on that date; and There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trust will be able to pay its debts as and when they
There are reasonable grounds to believe that DUET Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

become due and payable. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

accordance with section 2954 of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013, This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of DUET Finance Limited (as

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of DUET Management Company 1 Responsible Entity of DFT).
Limited (as Responsible Entity of DUETL).

i s,

Douglas Halley Emma Stein Q a d“‘-‘(_ﬁ? f'__________.

Director Director
Sydne Sydne
yaney yaney Ron Finlay Eric Goodwin
15 August 2013 15 August 2013 . .
Director Director
Sydney Sydney
15 August 2013 15 August 2013
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Statement by the Directors of the Responsible Entity of DUET3

In the opinion of the Directors of DUET Finance Limited (DFT) as the Responsible Entity for Diversified

Utility and Energy Trust No.3 (DUET3), the Financial Statements set out on pages 40 to 167 are in

accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

- complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

- arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board;

- giving a true and fair view of the Trust’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance, for
the year ended on that date; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trust will be able to pay its debts as and when they

become due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of DUET Finance Limited (as
Responsible Entity of DUET3).

Q.&’d@*z_ﬁ A

Statement by the Directors of DIHL

In the opinion of the Directors of DUET Investment Holdings Limited (DIHL), the Financial Statements for

DIHL and its controlled entities (DIHL Group) set out on pages 40 to 167 are in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including:

- complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

- arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board;

- giving a true and fair view of DIHL Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance,
for the year ended on that date; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that DIHL Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they

become due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of DUET Investment Holdings
Limited.

S,

Ron Finlay Eric Goodwin
Director Director
Sydney Sydney

15 August 2013 15 August 2013

Douglas Halley Emma Stein
Director Director
Sydney Sydney

15 August 2013 15 August 2013
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Statement by the Directors of DMC1

In the opinion of the Directors of DUET Management Company 1 Limited (DMC1), the Financial Statements

set out on pages 40 to 167 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

- complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

- are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board;

- giving a true and fair view of DMC1's financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that DMC1 will be able to pay its debts as and when they become

due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of DUET Management Company 1
Limited.

i S,

Douglas Halley Emma Stein
Director Director
Sydney Sydney

15 August 2013 15 August 2013

Statement by the Directors of DFL

In the opinion of the Directors of DUET Finance Limited (DFL), the Financial Statements set out on pages 40

to 167 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

- complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

- arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board;

- giving a true and fair view of DFL'’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date; and

There are reasonable grounds to believe that DFL will be able to pay its debts as and when they become

due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in
accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of DUET Finance Limited.

Q‘ddl-'..,e_g_/ e

Ron Finlay Eric Goodwin
Director Director
Sydney Sydney

15 August 2013 15 August 2013
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Ernst & Young Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com/au

e GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001
Building a better
working world

Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of Diversified
Utility and Energy Trust No.1, DUET Finance Trust, Diversified
Utility and Energy Trust No.3, and the shareholders of DUET
Investment Holdings Limited, DUET Management Company 1
Limited and DUET Finance Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the stapled entity DUET Group comprising
Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.1, DUET Finance Trust, Diversified Utility and Energy Trust
No.3 (together “the trusts"), DUET Investment Holdings Limited, DUET Management Company 1
Limited and DUET Finance Limited (“the companies™) and the entities they controlled during the
year ("DUET Group"), which comprises the balance sheets as at 30 June 2013, and the income
statements, the statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and the
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the
consolidated entity comprising the trusts, the company and the entities they controlled at the year's
end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the responsible entities of the trusts, and the directors of the companies, are
responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards, the Trust Deeds and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such
internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the
directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Building a better

working world

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. We have given to the directors of the responsible entities and the companies a written
Auditor’'s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors’ report.

Opinion
In our opinion:

a. thefinancial report of Diversified Utility and Energy Trust No.1, DUET Finance Trust, Diversified
Utility and Energy Trust No.3, DUET Investment Holdings Limited, DUET Management Company
1 Limited, DUET Finance Limited and DUET Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the trusts, the companies and consolidated entity's financial
positions as at 30 June 2013 and of their performance for the year ended on that date;
and

ii complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed
in Note 1.

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 19 to 34 of the directors' report for the
year ended 30 June 2013. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of DUET Investment Holdings Limited, DUET Management

Company 1 Limited and DUET Finance Limited for the year ended 30 June 2013, complies with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

fmé%cf‘/w

Ernst & Young
="
Kester C Brown

Partner

Melbourne
15 August 2013



STAPLED SECURITYHOLDER

INFORMATION

AS AT 9 SEPTEMBER 2013

Distribution of Stapled Securities

% of issued

Range Total holders Units capital
1-1,000 1,438 688,355 0.06
1,001 - 5,000 5,985 18,454,503 1.49
5,001 - 10,000 4,765 35,930,999 2.90
10,001 — 100,000 6,599 169,185,363 12.87
100,001 and over 332 1,022,936,080 82.68
Total 19,119 1,237,195,300 100.00

Unmarketable Parcels

Minimum Parcel

Size Holders

Minimum $ 500.00 parcel at $ 2.09 per unit 240 442 23,113

Twenty Largest Investors

% of issued

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Experience and Directorships

Special
Responsibilities

Doug Halley — Chairman, DUET Company Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Chairman
BCom (UNSW), —  Chairman, DUET Investment Holdings Limited (appointed 29 June 2006) Member of the
MBA (UNSW), Doug joined the DUET stapled group entity boards in February 2006 as an independent director Remuneration
FAICD and became the independent chairman of the DUET Group following the internalisation of DUET’s ~ Committee,

management arrangements in December 2012. Since 2 August 2013, Doug serves as the Nominations
Independent chairman of the DUET Corporate Arm entities. Committee
Chairman Doug has held senior financial and general management positions for over 30 years in Australia,

UK and the Netherlands. He has strong skills in banking and commercial sectors in treasury,

finance, business development, investor relations, restructuring, corporate strategy and large scale

acquisitions and divestments.

His experience has been gained in executive positions at national or Asia Pacific level with Philips

Electrical, Hill Samuel Australia (now Macquarie Bank), Rothschild Australia, Goodman Fielder,

John Fairfax Holdings, IBM Gilobal Services and Thomson Corporation (how Thomson Reuters).

Since 2007 Doug has been focusing on advisory and non-executive board activities. He has prior

listed company board experience with John Fairfax Holdings, Television and Media Services and

Mikoh Corporation Ltd (now Kallakorn Corporation Limited).

Other current directorships are: chairman, Foyson Resources Limited; director, Print & Digital

Publishing Pty Limited (“Time Out Sydney”); and chairman, Advisory Board of Australian Enterprise

Holdings Pty Limited.
Emma Stein — DUET Company Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Chair of the
BSc (Hons) Physics — DUET Investment Holdings Limited (appointed 12 July 2006) Audit and Risk
(Manch), MBA Emma’s operational utilities experience includes energy retailing and asset management, Commltteel,
(Manch) international business operations, strategy development and implementation, acquisition Remuqerahon

integration and divestment. Emma has been a director of one of the DUET Group entities since 16 Commttge,
Independent June 2004. Nomlngtlons
director Before leaving the UK in 2003, Emma was the UK managing director for French utility Gaz de commitee

France’s energy retailing operations. She was also a non-executive director for Cofathec Heatsave

Limited and an executive UK board director for Gaz de France Energy.

Other current directorships are: Clough Limited; Programmed Maintenance Group; Alumina

Limited; and Transpacific Industries Limited. Emma is also a member of University of Western

Sydney’s Board of Trustees and a NSW Ambassador for the Guides. Formerly, Emma was a

non-executive director of ARC Energy and of Merlin Petroleum Limited (Australian oil and gas

exploration and production companies) and Transfield Services Infrastructure Fund.
Duncan — DUET Company Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Member of the
Sutherland — DUET Investment Holdings Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Audit and Risk
BA (Yale), MBA Duncan has broad experience in the mining, metals and auto industries, where his focus areas Commltteel,
(Wayne State) included acquisitions and divestment, business analysis and corporate planning. Duncan joined Remuneration

CRA Limited in 1980, and was most recently responsible for acquisitions and divestments and Commlttge,
Independent corporate strategy. After CRA merged with RTZ in 1995 to form Rio Tinto, Duncan was appointed Nominations
director Committee

managing director, Energy Developments, responsible for business development and the
management of acquisitions and divestments in the energy sector. Duncan has been a director of
one of the DUET Group entities since 16 June 2004.

During his career, Duncan has also worked overseas in the USA, Europe, Brazil and Argentina.
Other current directorships are: independent director of a Macquarie-owned manager of a number
of unlisted managed vehicles and a director of Haileybury College, Melbourne.

Investor Number of units capital
1. HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 249,333,148 20.15
2. National Nominees Limited 161,605,773 13.06
3. J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 142,731,789 11.54
4. J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 77,790,701 6.29
5. Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 72,818,978 5.89
6. BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd 37,456,161 3.03
7. Macquarie Capital Group Ltd 31,311,395 2.53
8. JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 22,797,770 1.84
9. Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 17,687,153 1.43
10. AMP Life Limited 14,976,919 1.21
11. Argo Investments Limited 12,683,571 1.03
12. BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Ltd Acf Pengana 12,510,000 1.01
13. UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 10,036,203 0.81
14. RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 9,510,740 0.77
15. Questor Financial Services Limited 8,982,654 0.73
16. Neweconomy Com Au Nominees Pty Limited 7,184,196 0.58
17. HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 5,649,523 0.46
18. RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 5,075,145 0.41
19. Aotearoa Investment Company Pty Limited 4,939,518 0.40
20. RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited 3,318,729 0.27
Total: Top 20 holders 908,400,066 73.42
Total Remaining Holders Balance 328,795,465 26.58
Substantial Stapled Securityholders
Date of Number % issued
CIT o £ E] of stapled stapled
Holder holder notice securities securities
AMP Capital Holdings / Macquarie Capital Group Limited 19 August 2013 97,099,553 8.17
Lazard Asset Management Pacific Co 20 August 2013 108,921,013 9.16
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES CONTINUED

Special Special
Experience and Directorships Responsibilities Experience and Directorships Responsibilities
John Roberts — DUET Company Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Member of the The Hon. — DUET Finance Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Member of the
LLB (Canterbury) — DUET Investment Holdings Limited (appointed 29 June 2006) Remungration Michael Lee Michael is an electrical engineer. He served in the Australian Parliament for 17 years, and was Audit gnd Risk
) John joined Macquarie in 1991 and is based in Sydney, Australia. He is the Macquarie and AMP Commlttge and BSc (UNSW), BEng Minister for Resources, Tourism, Communications and The Arts in the Keating Government. He Commltteel, the
Non-Executive representative on the DUECo and DIHL boards and was the former DUET Group Chairman having  ~ominations (Hons1)UNSW), FIE i o yrently president of the NSW Branch of the Australian Labor Party. He has been a director on  iemuneration
Director been a director of the DUET Group entities since 14 May 2004. Committee (Aust) one of the DUET Group entities since 16 June 2004. th)}orr;jmﬂtge ?nd
John was until June 2013 the executive chairman of the Macquarie Funds Group, which has Independent Other current directorships are: MAp Airports Limited; Chairman, Communications Alliance C(fmr(r)lzgg]: ons
over US$300 billion of capital under management and includes the activity of the Macquarie direth)or Limited, the peak communications industry body, and Superpartners Limited.
Infrastructure and Real Assets division (MIRA). John serves on the Boards and/or Investment Former roles include chairman of NSW TAFE Commission Board and the Central Coast
Committees of a number of MIRA-managed funds to provide oversight and strategic direction to Campuses Board; a director of Essential Energy (formerly Country Energy); a councillor of the City
individual fund management executive teams. of Sydney; and a member of the NSW Architects Registration Board.
Previous roles within Macquarie include Head of Europe; Joint Head of Macquarie Capital
Advisors; and Global Head of Macquarie Capital Funds. Jane Harvey — DUET Finance Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Chair of the
Other directorships are: Sydney Airport Holdings Limited, Macquarie Atlas Roads Limited and BCom (Melo), MBA - A5 4 Partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Jane provided many years of consulting advice to the Audit and Risk
Macquarie Infrastructure Company Inc. His former directorships include Macquarie International (Melp), FCA, FAICD jities sector including commercialisation and privatisation of both gas and electricity entities Committee, and
Infrastructure Fund Limited. across Australia. member of the
Independent Remuneration
Shirley Int’ Veld —  DUET Company Limited (appointed 2 April 2013) Chair of the director Jane retireq from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2002, and since then has developed a portfolio of Committee and
BCom LLB (Hons) — DUET Investment Holdings Limited (appointed 2 August 2013) Remuneration board positions. the Nominations
(Melb) Shirley In’t Veld was the Managing Director of Verve Energy for five years, relinquishing her Committee and Other current directorships are: Non executive director of IOOF Holdings Limited, Medibank Committee
position in April 2012. Prior to her position at Verve Energy, Ms In’t Veld was Vice President Member of the Private Limited, David Jones Limited, the Telecommunications Industry Ombudsman and Colonial
quependent Primary Business Development with Alcoa, and from 2001-2004 she was the Managing Director Nommgmon Fou.ndatlon Trgst. Janelchalrs a number Qf Audit and Risk Committees on _these Boards and also
director of Alcoa Australia Rolled Products. Ms In’t Veld commenced her career as a commercial lawyer Committee chairs the Audit Committee for the Victorian Department of Treasury and Finance.
with Mallesons and has also held senior legal, commercial and marketing positions with WMC
Resources Ltd, Bond Corporation and BankWest.
Ms In’t Veld has held industry group representation positions with the Energy Supply Association
of Australia, the Packaging Council of Australia and the Aluminium Council of Australia, and has
been a board member with the Co-operative Research Centre for Landscape Evolution in Mineral
Exploration (CSIRO) and the Association of Mining and Exploration Companies in WA (AMEC).
Other current directorships are: Independent Non-Executive Director of Asciano Ltd, CSIRO,
Chairperson of the Sustainability Committee of Asciano, Council member of the SMART
Infrastructure Facility (University of Wollongong) and the Australian Institute of Company
Directors (WA).
Ron Finlay — DUET Finance Limited (appointed 16 June 2004) Member of the
LLB (Sydney) — DUET Investment Holdings Limited (appointed 4 August 2006) Audit and Risk
— DUET Company Limited (appointed 2 April 2013) Committee
quependent Ron is a lawyer and chief executive of Finlay Consulting, with over 37 years experience in property, (DFL)
director construction development and infrastructure projects, including as project manager or facilitator
of major infrastructure projects in Australia and overseas for both public and private sector
organisations (such as the Commonwealth Government Solar Flagships Program).
Other current directorships are: Macquarie Generation, NSW'’s largest generator, independent
chairman on a number of government and private sector Project Control Groups and Dispute
Resolution Boards for major projects (such as Brisbane’s New Parallel Runway Project and the
Brisbane Legacy Way Project).
Formerly, Ron was for six years chair of the New South Wales Transport Infrastructure
Development Corporation.
Eric Goodwin — DUET Finance Limited (appointed 16 June 2004) Member of the
BEng (UNSW), MIE Eric joined the Lend Lease Group in 1963 as a cadet engineer. During his 43 year career with Audit alnd Risk
(Aust) Lend Lease he held a number of senior executive and subsidiary board positions in their Australian Commltteel, the
operations. Eric has extensive experience in design, construction and project management, Remuqeraﬂon
Inde.pendent general management and investment and funds management. Eric managed the MLC property Commlttge gnd
Chairman portfolio during the 1980s and was the founding fund manager of Australian Prime Property Fund. tge Nommaﬂons
Other current directorships are: Macquarie Global Property Fund Advisors; the GPT Group; and ommittee
Eureka Funds Management Limited. Eric is also the chair of Jarjum College Council.
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